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St James Parish Government 
P.O. Box 106 

Convent, Louisiana 70723-0106 Peter A. DufreSlie 
(225) 562-2260 Parish Presidenl 

FAX (225) 562-2279 
TDD: (225)562-8500 

Letter of Transmittal 

June 27, 2022 

The Honorable Parish President, Honorable Council Members, and 
The Citizens of St. James Parish 

State taw requires that local governments in Louisiana publish audited financial 
statements within six months of the close of each fiscal year in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles and governmental accounting standards. Pursuant to 
these statutes, we hereby issue for your review the Annual Comprehensive Financial 
Report of St. James Parish, Louisiana for the year ended December 31, 2021. 

This report has been combined and condensed wherever possible to provide meaningful 
and accurate financial data for ail the operations of St. James Parish (the Reporting 
Entity) for which the Parish Council members have been determined to be accountable. 
Responsibility for both the accuracy of the presented financial data and completeness 
and fairness of the presentations, including all disclosures, rests with the Parish's 
Administration. We believe the data, as presented, is accurate in all material respects 
and presented in a manner which fairly sets forth the financial position and results of 
operations of the Parish. Furthermore, we believe that all disclosures necessary to 
enable the reader to gain an understanding of the Parish's financial activities have been 
included. 

The Parish's independent certified public accountants, Postlethwaile & Netterville, APAC 
("P&N"), have examined the accompanying financial statements and issued an 
unmodified (or "clean") opinion on the financial statements for year ended December 31, 
2021, of St. James Parish, Louisiana. The independent auditor's report is located at the 
front of the financial section of this report. 

The independent auditors also performed a "Single Audit" of 2021 federal gram awards 
for conformance with the provisions of the Single Audit Act and Title 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, 
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). The Single Audit and 
evaluation of the Parish's system of internal accounting controls are required by 
governmental auditing standards. Information related to this Single Audit is provided in 
an attached separate report. 

Richard Webra Felix Boughton Ingrid Bergeron-Le Blanc Eric Derochc 
Direcior of Direcior of Direclor of Director of 
Operations Finance Human Resources Emergency EVeparedness 



Management's Discussion and Analysis ("MD&A") immediately follows the independent 
auditor's report and provides a narrative Introduction, overview, and analysis to 
accompany the basic financial statements. The MO&A complements this letter and 
should be read In conjunction with It. 

PROFILE OF THE PARISH OF ST. JAMES 

St. James Is one of Louisiana's 19 original parishes, created by act of the territorial legislature 
on March 31,1807. The original seat of government was the community of St. James, on the 
west bank of the Mississippi River, but this was moved in 1869 to what Is now Convent, on 
the east bank. 

St. James Parish is part of the Acadian Coast. While it Is possible that some Acadians did 
arrive prior to 1755 or between 1755 and 1764, the first documented group of Acadians 
arrived in New Orleans In February 1764. The arrival was documented in a letter dated April 
6, 1764, from Louisiana Governor D'Abbadie to his superior in France. They were settled 
along the Mississippi River in present-day St. James Parish. 

As of 2021, St. James Parish's population was 19,742. The Parish is pari of the New 
Ofleans-Metairie, Louisiana Metropolitan Statistical Area, located between New Orleans 
and Baton Rouge, Louisiana, on the Mississippi River. 

St. James Parish is located roughly equidistant from Louisiana's state capltol Baton 
Rouge and the world-class tourism destination New Orleans. Bisected by the Mississippi 
River, the 242-squar0 mile Parish is situated in the heart of the industrial corridor. 
Approximately 150 miles from the mouth of the Mississippi River and access to worldwide 
shipping commerce, St. James Parish's major economic activity has long centered on 
the chemical, petrochemical, and refining Industries as weJI as agriculture. Sugarcane is 
the foremost agricultural product, and a major sugar refinery makes its home in St. James 
Parish. Crav^rfish farming and growing perique tobacco are two other agriculture 
industries that date back to the native Americans and the early Acadian settlers. 
Commercial sales of cravtrfish began in the late 1800s. Perique tobacco has been grown 
in St. James Parish for more than 250 years and is considered to be one of America's 
first exported crops. This tobacco is grown exclusively in St. James Parish. The Parish 
also boasts approximately 20 major industrial complexes that sen/e as the Parish's 
primary employers and generate significant property and sales and use taxes for the 
Parish. 

BONFIRES ON THE LEVEE 

Any profile of St. James Parish would not be complete without explaining the Bonfires on 
the Levee and the Christmas Eve tradition of their lighting. The tradition began when 
some Acadians (hence Cajuns), exiled from Novia Scotia, settled in St. James Parish as 
earfy as 1765. Originally, the custom was to build bonfires on the balture, the land area 
between the base of the levee and the water's edge, in celebration of New Year's Eve. 
Through the passage of time, the tradition moved to building the bonfires on top of the 
levee and fighting them on Christmas Eve, These bonfires light the way for "Papa Noel" 



(The Cajun version of Santa Claus) to navigate the Mississippi River. The tradition 
continues today and draws annual visitors from around the country. 

REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES 

The Parish of St. James's system of govemment was established by Its Home Rule Charter 
which became effective in 1979. The Parish operates under a President-Council form of 
government with seven Council members and a Parish President who are each elected for 
four-year, concurrent terms. 

The Parish President is the Chief Administrative Officer of the Parish, The current Parish 
President was inaugurated in January 2020 and will serve a four-year term. The Parish 
President is responsible to the Parish Council for carrying out policies adopted by the Council 
and is the supervisor of all Parish departments. The Parish President has the power to appoint 
and remove, subject to the provisions of the Charter, all administrative officers and employees 
responsible to the Parish President. The Parish President submits the Parish budget to the 
Council for approval at least sixty days before the end of the calendar year. 

The Parish Council is the legislative body of the Parish and may adopt such ordinances and 
resolutions as may be needed to function. The Council consists of seven Council members. 
The Council elects a member to be designated as CouncI] Chair. The present Council was 
inaugurated in January 2020 and will serve for four years. 

Louisiana Revised Statute 33:1236 gives the Parish various powers in regulating and 
directing the affairs of the Parish and its citizens. The more notable of these are the power 
to make regulations for their own government, to regulate the construction and maintenance 
of roads, bridges, and drainage systems, to regulate the sale of alcoholic beverages, and to 
provide for the health and welfare of the poor, disadvantaged, and unemployed in the Parish. 
Funding to accomplish these services is provided by property taxes, sales taxes, service 
charges, licenses and permits, state revenue sharing, and various State and Federal grants. 

There are two towns located within St. James Parish, Gramercy and Lutcher, with varying 
degrees of dependence upon the Parish. However, each town has its own independently 
elected officials, and the results of their operations are, therefore, not included in this report. 

The St. James Parish financial reporting entity consists of (a) the primary government (the 
Parish), (b) organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable, and 
(c) other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the 
primary government are such that exclusion would cause the St. James Parish reporting 
entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. 



The Parish has determined thai the following component unit, discretely presented, is part of 
the St, James Parish reporting entity: 

Component Unit Fiscal Year End 

St. James Parish Hospital March 31 

Complete financial statements for St. James Parish Hospital may be obtained from their 
administrative office at 1645 Lutcher Avenue, Lutcher, Louisiana 70071. 

The Parish's financial statements do not include the component units that are multi-parish 
component units. The multi-parish component units include: 

Multi-Parish Component Unit Fiscal Year End Component Unit of 

District Attorney of the Twenty-Third Judicial District December 31 Ascension Parish 

Twenty-Third Judicial District indigent Defender Board December 31 Ascension Parish 

Considered in the determinations of component units of the St. James Parish reporting entity 
were the St. James Parish School Board, St. James Parish Assessor, St. James Parish 
Sheriff. St. James Clerk of Court, and the various municipalities in the Parish. It was 
determined that these governmental entitles are not exponent units of the St. James Parish 
reporting entity. All are governed by independently elected officials. The Parish oversight 
unit neither appoints their governing Boards nor designates management. Furthermore, the 
Parish has no ability to significantly influence operations, nor does it have any accountability 
for fiscal matters of the entities. They are considered by the Parish to be separate 
autonomous governments and issue financial statements separate from those of the St. 
James Parish reporting entity. 

The Parish is responsible for appointing the members of the Boards of the St. James Housing 
Authority and St. James Parish Hospital. The Parish's accountability for the Housing Authority 
and Hospital does not extend beyond making the appointments. The St. James Housing 
Authority is a related organization to the Parish, St, James Parish Hospital is a component 
unit of the Parish. 

YEAR IN REVIEW 

Hurricane Ida 

Hurricane Ida was a Category 4 Atlantic hurricane that was the second most damaging and 
intense hurricane to ever hit Louisiana. It was only surpassed by Hurricane Katrina in 2005, 
It hit the Louisiana coast on August 29, 2021, near Port Fourchon, Louisiana, and made its 
way through St, James Parish. Hurricane ida was considered a "direct hit" on St. James 
Parish. In Its wake. Hurricane Ida left behind major structural damage to homes and 
businesses, downed trees and power lines, and, more importantly, one death. One hundred 
percent (100%) of the parish was without power and remained without power for almost a 
month. The recovery from Hurricane Ida began immediately after the winds subsided. In 2021 

4 



St. James Parish spent $5,185,000 for repairs to infrastructure, debris removal and other 
recovery expenditures and recognized $4,567,000 in revenues from FEMA grants and 
Insurance payments that aided in the recovery efforts. These revenues and expenditures are 
reflected in several of the govemmental funds' financial schedules. In total, the Parish 
anticipates recouping approximately 90% of the expenditures incurred in 2021 from FEMA 
grants and insurance claims, some of which were not recognized in 2021. 

The Parish has four buildings that are currently being evaluated as to whether to declare them 
as a total loss. As a safeguard to protect fund balances, the Parish sold $8,000,000 in 
hurricane recovery bonds to finance the remainder of the infrastructure repairs. This loan can 
be used to pay upfront the cost of reconstructing these buildings. The Parish is expecting to 
recover up to 90% of these construction costs through FEMA grants and Insurance claims. 
The recovery effort is still ongoing. 

Noted below are some of the Parish's major initiatives and accomplishments completed or 
ongoing during 2021: 

• Major drainage upgrades - improved drainage (canals/ditches) structures that 
dramatically improved Parish drainage from notmal rain events and back water 
prevention from probable future hurricanes 

• Major upgrades to our natural gas delivery systems - improved natural gas delivery 
sen/ices to residents 

• Major upgrades to the drinking water delivery system - will help prevent water 
shortages during times of high demand 

• Improvements to recreation including new basketball courts, baseball fields, and other 
facility improvements 

ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND BUDGETARY CONTROLS 

The Finance Department is responsible for providing ail Parish financial services, 
including financial accounting and reporting, payroll and accounts payable disbursement 
functions, cash and investments management, grant management, debt management, 
budgeting, purchasing, and contract administration for Pari^ management. The Finance 
Department is also responsible for the establishment and maintenance of an internal 
control structure to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance regarding: 1) the 
safeguarding of Parish assets against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and 2) 
the reliability of financial records for preparing financial statements and maintainir\g 
accountability for assets. 

All budget appropriations lapse at year-end, and any encumbrances outstanding at year-
end are included in the next year's budget with funds appropriated in that year to finance 
them. The budget is prepared on a modified accrual basis. Formal budgetary accounts 
are integrated into the accounting system during the year as a management control 
device. 

The Parish exercises budgetary control at the function level. Within functions, the Director 
of Finance has the authority to make amendments as necessary. When actual revenues 



within a fund are failing to meet estimated annuai budgeted revenues by five percent or 
more, and/or actual expenditures within a fund are exceeding estimated budgeted 
expenditures by five percent or more, a budget amendment to reflect such changes is 
adopted by the Parish rn an open meeting. Budget amounts Included in the financial 
statements include the original adopted budget and the final amended budget. Further 
details on the budgetary process and controls are explained in the accompanying Notes 
to the Financial Statements, 

TAX ABATEMENTS 

St. James Parish is subject to certain property tax abatements granted by the Louisiana 
State Board of Commerce and Industry (the "State Board"), a state entity governed by 
board members representing major economic groups and gubernatorial appointees. 
Abatements to which the government may be subject Include those issued for property 
taxes under the Industrial Tax Exemption Program ("ITEP") and the Restoration Tax 
Abatement Program ("RTAP"). In addition, St. James Parish has the authority to grant 
sales tax rebates to taxpayers pursuant to the Enterprise Zone Tax Rebate Program 
("EZ"). For the year ending December 31. 2021, the government participated in the 
Industrial Tax Exemption Program and the Enterprise Zone Tax Rebate Program. 

Taxes abated for the year ended December 31,2021. amounted to $10 million for ITEP 
and $160,892 for EZ. Such rebates met or exceeded the program requirements. The 
Administration believes the economic impact, Including new jobs and sales taxes 
generated by these projects, resulting from these tax abatements far exceed the amount 
of such abatements. II by chance, the company falls to expand facilities or otherwise fail 
to fulfil its commitments under the program agreement, St. James Parish may recapture 
all or a portion of any abated taxes. 

PROSPECTS FOR THE FUTURE 

Major Issues and Budget Outlook 

As we move forward in 2022. addressing the continuing negative financial impact to St. 
James Parish as a result of Hurricane Ida. the Parish expects certain primary revenue 
streams to continue to be impacted. 

St. James Parish's economy has been negatively impacted with the closure of Equilon 
Enterprises LLC, the Parish's largest taxpayer for both sales and property taxes. In the spring 
of 2021, Equilon's Shell Convent oil refinery began decommissioning. Equilon's intent to sell 
the refinery was public knowledge, but the closure affected 700 refinery employees, 400 
contract workers, and many support businesses. 

In addition to the negative personal Impact on the closed refinery to employees and contract 
workers, the taxing agencies in St. James Parish were also put on notice that approximately 
27% of the Parish-wide ad valorem taxable value is now at risk. As a result of the closure, the 
Parish's portion of ad valorem tax loss is estimated to be $6 million over the next few years. 



Even i1 the refinery remains idle with no new buyer, the Parish Assessor believes there will 
be some taxable value for the closed refinery. 

The Parish also received less sales taxes in 2021 as compared to 2020, primarily because of 
the refinery being closed. This tax shortfall is being analyzed by the administration. The 
financial plan is to use a combination of surplus funds and reducing expenses by more 
efficiently utilizing in-house departments and restructuring the outsourcing of certain services. 

Further information on the effects of Equllon's refinery closure is contained in the 
accompanying MD&A of this report. 

Not alf news concerning St James Parish's industrial actlvlly has been bad. A major methanol 
facility (YCl Methanol One, LLC) began operations in 2021. Although this will not completely 
fill the void left by the closure of the Shell refinery, it will help. 

Formosa Plastics has announced plans for the construction of a $9.4 billion chemical facility. 
The Formosa Plastics project has been delayed with permitting issues and is appealing the 
permitting process and various court orders issued at the behest of certain environmental 
protection groups. 

Notwithstanding the possibte futiffe negative financial impacts as discussed above, strong and 
conservative fiscal policies and adequate fund balances ccntlnue to position St. James Parish 
well to be able to continue to lead the Parish with a strong and substantial commitment to 
protect our citizens' safety, to continue on-going initiatives and hurricane recovery, including 
fund balance reserve maintenance, possible bond refinancing savings, major infrastructure 
programs, and continued economic growth in the Parish. 

Future projects on the horizon for 2022 and beyond 

St James Parish is looking to the future to improve its infrastructure with the following projects: 

• Continue upgrading/improving its water delivery systems to reduce the risk of water 
shortages during emergencies 

• Continue improving drainage systems by following a comprehensive drainage 
maintenance program 

• Building a multipurpose recreation building on the west bank of the parish 
• Repairing/rebuilding damaged infrastructure from Hurricane Ida 
• Repairing or rebuilding a parish recreation building that has been abandoned for over 

ten years (because of building litigation) 
• Planning, and developing, with the Army Corp of Engineers and the Pontchartrain 

Levee District a comprehensive back water plan for the east and west banks for 
protection from storm surge waters 

• To upgrade fire protection, the Parish Is considering employing paid part-time fire 
members and eventually creating a full-lime paid fire department. 

• Building a new Department of Human Resources building that will allow the expansion 
of social services for the elderly, handicapped, and medically dependent 



St. James Parish Government's overreaching goal and vision is to put the public first by 
striving to provide the highest level of service across all aspects of our government. St. James 
Parish provides services, leadership, and vision to improve the quality of life In St. James 
Parish through well-planned economic development. 

It is an honor and distinct privilege to serve the citizens of St, James Parish, and we recognize 
that the respect of the public can never be anticipated if not first earned. In conclusion, St. 
James Parish remains strong financially, our bond ratings have remained stable, and our fund 
balances are healthy. We are poised to continue to be the economic engine for the entire 
region. 

Respectfully submitted, 

-elix K. Bou^ton. 
Director of Finance 
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Postlethwaite & NetterviUe A Prufes^ortai AoGOunGfiQ CorpomfibP 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the President and Members 
St. James Parish Council 
Convent, Louisiana 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinions 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the govemmental activities, the business-type activities, tfie 
aggregate discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of St. James 
Parish, State of Louisiana, (the Parish) as of and for the year ended December 31. 2021, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the Parish's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

In cur opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in 
all material respects, the respective financial position of the govemmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate 
discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Parish, as of 
December 31, 2021, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year 
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

We did not audit the financial statements of St James Parish Hospital, which represents 100 percent of the assets, net 
position, and revenues of the discretely presented component unit. Those statements were audited by other auditom whose 
report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts Included for St. James Parish Hospital. Is 
based solely on the report of the other auditors. 

Basis for Opinions 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of 
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Parish and to meet our other ethical 
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Responsibiiftias of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal 
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered 
in the aggregate, that raise substantial doutst atx>ut the Parish's ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months 
beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly 
thereafter. 

It 
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Auditors' Responsibifities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to Issue an auditor's report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. The risK of not detecting a material mlss^tement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error as fraud may Involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the overrtde of 
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, 
they would influence the judgement made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 

in performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards, we; 

Exercise pmfessional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design 
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence 
regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circurnstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Parish's internal control. 
Accordingly, no such opinion 1s expressed. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of signiticant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financia! statements. 

Conclude whether, in our judgement, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial 
doubt about the Parish's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 
of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain intemal control-related matters that we identified during the audit. 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted In the United States of America require that the management's discussion and 
analysis on pages 14 through 23, the budgetary comparison information on pages 86 through 91, the ScheduEe of Changes In 
Total Other Postemployment Benefits Liability and Related Ratios on page 92, the Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net 
Pension Liability for the Retirement Systems on page 93. the Schedule of Contributions to Each Retirement System Defined 
Benefit Cost Sharing Plans Only on page 94. and the Notes to Required Supplementary Information on pages 95 through 97 
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information Is the responsibility of management and, although 
not 3 part of the basic financial statements, Is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers It to 
be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context. We and other auditors have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management's responses to our Inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of 
the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us wth sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
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Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the Parish's 
basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules, the schedule of 
compensation, benefits, and overpayments to agency head, the schedule of compensation paid to parish council members.the 
justice system funding schedule - receiving entity, and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards as required by Title 2 U.S. 
Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Pari 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cosf Pnhc/jo/es. and Audit Requirements 
/or Federa//Awards, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 
Such infonmation is the responsibility of management and was denved from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain addiironai procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
infonnation directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America by us and other auditors. In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, the 
combining and Individual nonmajor fund linanclal statements and sctiedules. the schedule of principal officials and salaries, the 
schedule of compensation, benefits, and other payments to agency head, the justice system funding schedule - receiving entity, 
and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial 
statements as a whole. 

O^er information 

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information comprises the 
Introductory and statistical sections but does not include the basic financial statements and our auditors' report thereon. Our 
opinions on the basic financial statements do not cover the other infonriation, and we do not express an opinion or any form of 
assurance thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the oVer information and consider 
whether a materiaf inconsistency exists between the other information and the basic financial statements, or the other information 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material 
misstatement of the other information exists, we are required to describe it in our report. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 27,2022, on our consideration 
of the Parish's intemal control over financial reporting and on our tests of Its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the Parish's intemal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an 
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Parish's intemal control over financial 
reporting and compliance. 

Donaldsonville, Louisiana 
June 27,2022 
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St. James Parish 
Convent Louisiana 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

As financial management of St. James Parish primary government (Parish), we offer readers of the Pansh's financial 
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Parish government for the fiscal year 
ended December 31, 2021 

Financial Highlights 

• The Parish's assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of 
resources at the close of 2021 by over $173.2 million (net position) Of this amount, $74 6 million is 
invested in capital assets including infrastructure. Infrastructure assets are only of value to the Parish and 
cannot be sold. A total of $31.7 million is considered restricted while nearly $17 million Is considered 
unrestricted and may be used to meet the government's ongoing needs. In total, the Net Position of the 
Parish increased $1.8 million from 2020. 

• At December 31, 2021. the Parish's governmental fund statements reported combined ending fund 
balances of nearly $90.6 million, an increase of $1.9 million. The majority of this increase is due to a 
conservative budgetary policy which ensures adequate resources are maintained. 

4 The General Fund, the Parish's primary operating fund, reported a total ending fund balance of nearly 
$15.3 million, a decrease in total fund balance from the last fiscal year of approximately $523,000. 

4 At December 31, 2021, Unassigned fund balance for the General fund was $6.3 million while the other 
categories of Non-spendable and Restricted balances of approximately $7,000 and $9.5 million, 
respectively, reflected an overall 3% decrease from the prior year 2020 ending fund balance. 

4 Total capital assets decreased from the prior year by nearly $572,000 as a result of depreciation totaling 
approximately $4.9 million, and the current year additions of capital assets totaled approximately $4.6 
million to offset this decrease. 

4 Total long-term liabilities increased from the prior year by nearly $1 million mostly due to the increase in 
total OPEB liability. 

Overview of the Financial Staterr^ents 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an Introduction to the Parish's basic financial statements. The 
Parish's basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) 
fund fLnancial statements, and 3] notes to the financial statements. There Is additional supplementary information 
following the financial statements that may be of interest to the reader. 

Government-wide financial statements 

Govemment-wide financial sfafemenfs are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview of the Parish's 
financial position, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. They include a Statement of Net Position and a 
Statement of Activities. These statements appear on pages 24 to 26 of this report 

The Statement of Net Position presents the Parish's assets and deferred outflows less its liabilities and deferred 
inflows at year end. The difference between these assets and deferred outflows and liabilities and deferred Inflows is 
reported as net position. Changes in net position over time may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial 
position of the Parish is improving or deterioratirig. 

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the Parish's net position char>ged during the fiscal year. 
All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of 
the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will 
only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (for example, accounts payable and earned but unused vacation leave). 
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St. James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Both statements attempt to distinguish functions of the Parish that are principally supported by taxes and 
intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a 
significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). Governmental activities 
include general government, public safety, highways and streets, sanitation, public housing, public transportation, health 
and welfare, culture and recreation, and economic development expenditures. Business-type activities include the gas 
and water distribution system. 

The government-wide financiai statements include not only the Parish Itself {primary government), but also separate 
legal governmental entities {component units) to which the Parish may be obligated to provide Hnancial assistance. 
Component units are presented as separate columns in fund financial statements. The component unit agencies issue 
separate, independently audited financial statements. Financial statements for each of the individual component units 
may be obtained at the component unit's administrative offices. 

Fund financial statements 

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for 
specific activities or objectives. The Parish, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and 
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. At! of the Parish's funds can be divided Into two 
categories; governmental funds and proprietary funds. 

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as 
governmental activities In the government-wide financial statements. Unlike the government-wide financial statements, 
however, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources as 
well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in 
evaluating the Parish's hear-term financing requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful 
to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental 
activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so. readers may better understand the long-term impact 
of the government's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental funds' balance sheet and the governmental 
funds' statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this 
comparison between govemmentai funds and governmental activities. 

The Parish maintains 60 individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental funds 
balance sheet and in the governmental funds' statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for 
the General Fund, the Courthouse. Jail, and Public Buildings Maintenance Fund, the Parishwide Drainage Maintenance 
Fund, the Solid Waste Disposal Fund, and the Public Safety Trust Fund all of which are considered to be major funds. 
Data from the other 55 governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data 
for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided In the form of combining statements as supplementary 
information. 

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 27 to 32 of this report. 

Proprietary funds. The Parish maintains and presents two types of proprietary funds: enterprise and internal sen/Ice, 
which can be found on pages 33 to 36 of this report. 

Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities In the government-wide 
financial statements. The Parish has one enterprise fund, the St. James Parish Gas & Water Distribution System Fund, 
which accounts for expenses to distribute natural gas and water. 

Internal service fijnds are an accourrting tool used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among various functions. 
The Parish uses an interna! service fund to account for its self-insured health insurance program. Because this service 
predominately benefits governmental rather than business-type functions, it has been Included within governmental 
activities in the government-wide financial statements. 
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St. James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more 
detail. The St, James Parish Gas & Water Distribution System Fund is considered to be a major fund of the Parish. 

Notes to financial statements. The notes provide additional Information that is essential to a full understanding of the 
Information provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can 
be found on pages 37 to 85 of this report. 

Other information. The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds are 
presented as supplementary information. Combining fund statements and schedules can be found on pages 98 to 184 
of this report. 

Government-wide Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the Parish's financial position. In the case of 
the Parish, governmental activities' assets and deferred outflows exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows by 
$144,013,129 at December 31, 2021 

The following table reflects the condensed Statement of Net Position for 2021 and 2020 

St. James Parish 
Condensed Statement of Net Position 

December 31. 2021 and 2020 

Governmental Activities Business-Type Adivities Total 

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 

Current and other assets i 5 111984.673 $ 106,123,964 $17,356,529 $16,268,642 1 S 129,341,202 $ 122,392.606 

CapHal assets 60.320,635 63,575,330 16.529.302 13,846.550 76,850,017 77.421,680 

Net pension asset 2,006,987 - 318,356 - 2.327.343 -
Total assete 174,314,295 169,699,294 34.204.267 30,115,192 208,518,562 199,814,486 

Deferred outflovirs of 

resources 4.B41.995 3,768,231 740.01 B 590.155 5.382,013 4.358.436 

Long term liabilities 

outstanding 22,209,565 21,632,377 1.678,354 1.366.591 23,887.919 22.998,968 

Other liabilities 7.904.222 5,068,436 3.099,234 813,831 11,003,456 5,902,267 

Total [labilities 30.113,787 26,720.813 4.777.588 2,180,422 34,891375 26.901.235 

Deferred inflows of resource 4.829.374 3,081,779 942.521 788,025 5,771.895 3,869.604 

Net position: 

Net investment in capital 

assets 58,035.249 60,772,724 16.529.382 13.846.550 74,564.631 74,619,274 

Restricted 81,693,836 79,199.812 - - 81,693,336 79,199,812 

Unrestricted 4.284.044 3,692,447 12,694.794 13,890.350 16,978,838 17,582.797 

Total net position $ 144.013,129 $ 143,664,983 $29,224,176 S 27,736.900 ! i 173.237.305 $171,401,883 

Approximately 43,0% ($74,564,631) of the Parish's total net position as of December 31.2021. reflects the Parish's 
investment in capital assets (land, buildings, infrastructure, machinery and equipment) less any related outstanding debt 
used to acquire those assets. The Parish uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these 
assets are not available for future spending. Another 47.2% ($81,693,836) of the total net position Is subject to external 
restrictions on how ttiese assets may be used, such as property tax approved by the electorate for specific purposes. 
The remaining total net position of $16,978,838 is referred to as unrestricted. 
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St James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Governfnental activities 

Governmental activities account for 83.1% of the Parish's net position. One of the major components of general 
revenue collected by governmental adivittes is property taxes, which represents 52.7% of the Parish's total 
governmental revenue. In 2021. property taxes were assessed at a millage rate of 37.45 mills. Property tax revenue 
decreased $348,828 to $20,982,775, a 1.6% decrease from the previous year. The property tax revenue decrease is 
mainly the result of decommissioning of the Shell Convent Refinery during fiscal year 2021. 

Other vahances in governmental activities include: 

4 Sales and use tax collections decreased by $1.5 million, or a 20.9% decrease. The decline in sales tax 
revenues is also a result of the Shell Convent Refinery shutting down during fiscal year 2021. 

• An increase in governmental expenses by over $6.9 million, or 22.6%, from 2020. This increase is the 
result of the recovery efforts in response to Hurricane Ida. Hurricane Ida made landfall on the Louisiana 
coast on August 29, 2021 and caused substantial damage to St. James Parish. We intend to recover these 
costs through insurance reimbursements and requests from the Federal Emergency Management Agency 
(FEMA). 

4 An increase in other gerTera! revenues by $2.3 million is a direct result of Hurricane Ida, as majority of this 
increase relates to insurance proceeds received. 
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St. James Parish 
Convent, LouEsiana 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

The following is a summary of activilyfor 2021 and 2020; 

Govemmenta) Activities Business-type Activitl^ Total 
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 

Revenues; 

Program revenues: 

Charges for services S 1,951,945 £ 1,998.592 S 5.233,855 $ 4,528,644 S 7,185,800 $ 6,527,236 

Operating grants 

and contnbutions 5.067,485 2,840.726 325,995 80.665 5.393,480 2.921,391 

Capital grants 

and contributions 98S.B02 1,033,253 - - 988,802 1.033,253 

General revenues: 

Property taxes 20,982.775 21,331,603 • 20,982775 21,331,603 

Sales and use taxes 5,680,528 7,157.558 - - 5,660,528 7,157.568 

Other taxes 607.144 608.602 - - 607.144 608.502 

Unrestncted revenues 737.842 1,338,968 - - 737,842 1,338,968 

Other general revenues 3.835,646 1,551,773 32,622 103,983 3,868.268 1,655,756 

Tola! revenues 39,832.167 37,360,985 5.592.472 4.713,292 45.424.639 42.574.277 

Expenses: 

General government 8,349,655 7,040,729 - - 8.349,655 7,040729 

Public safety 9,604,023 6,994,265 - - 9,504,023 6.994,265 

Highways and streets 5,275,914 4.854.856 - 5.275.914 4.854.856 

SanitaUon 3,998,832 1.892,196 - 3,998.882 1,892,196 

Public housing 256 560 '• - 256 560 

Public transportation 1,097,443 990,825 - - 1,097.448 990,825 

Health and welfare 5,386,107 4.986.232 - 5,386.107 4,985,232 

Culture and recieation 3,222,195 3,221,320 - - 3.222.195 3,221,320 

Economic development 346,216 300.963 - - 346,216 300,963 

Interest on long-term debt 415.434 390,776 - - 415,434 390,776 

Gas. water and sewer - - 5,993.087 5,081,205 5,993,087 5,081,205 

Total expenses 37,596.130 30.671,722 5,993.087 5,081.205 43.596.217 35,762,927 
Increase (decrease) in net 

position before transfors and 

capital contnbutions 2,236.037 7,189,263 (400,615) (367,913) 1,835,422 6.821.350 

Other sources (uses) 

Capital contribution (2.452,521) - 2,452,521 - - -

Transfers 564,630 (4,084) (564,630) 4,084 - -

Total other sources (uses) (1,887,891) (4,084) 1.887,891 4,084 - -

Increase (decrease) in 

net position 348,146 7,185.179 1.467,276 (363.829) 1.835.422 6.821,350 

Beginning net position 143.664,983 136,479,804 27,736,900 28.100.729 171,401.893 164.580,533 

Ending net position $ 144,013,129 £ 143,564,983 £ 29.224,176 $ 27,736.900 £173,237,305 £171,401,883 
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St. James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

The following graph is a comparison of program revenues and program expenses for all governmental activities. This 
chart Is intended to give the reader an idea of the degree to which governmental activities are self-supporting; 

Expenses and Program Revenues BExpenses 

BProcratn Revenues 

$10,000,000 -I 

$9,000,000 

OenerajOownment Highway ind Streets PublicSafety Keaith and Welfare Economir Cultureartd Sanltaeion Public Transportation 
Development ReoeatliHi 

The following pie chart illustrates composition of governmental activities revenue and Its percentage in relation to 
total govemment revenues; 

Revenues by Source - Govemmentat Activilies 

Cherges For Services 

Praperty Tuta 
8S% 

Unrastncied Grants aii< 
Contrlbullons 

2% 

Capital Grants and 
Contributions 

2% — Other Taxes 
1% 

Sales and UseTaxas 
1*% 

Operating Grants and 
C ontri b utio ns 

13% 

19 



St. James Parish 
Convent Louisiana 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Business-type activities 

The Parish has one business-type activity, the St James Parish Gas & Water Distribution System. The Gas & Water 
Distribution System's principal activities are the providing of gas and water services to the citizens and businesses of 
the Parish. 

The St. James Parish Gas & Water Distribution System's net position at December 31, 2021, was $29,224,176 
compared to the net position in 2020 of $27,736,900. The System's net position increased $1,487,276 in 2021, as 
compared to a decrease of $363,829 in 2020. This is a direct result of a donated asset in the amount of $2,452,521 
from a capital projects fund during the current year. 

The following graph is a comparison of program revenues and program expenses for business-type activities. 

Expenses and Program Revenues 
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The following pie chart illustrates the composition of business-type activities revenue and Its percentage in relation to 
total business-type revenues: 

Revenues by Source - Business-type Activities 
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St. James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Financial Analysis of the Parish's Funds 

As noted earlier, the Parish uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal 
requirements-

Governmei>tal Funds: The focus of governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and 
balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Parish's financing requiremertts In 
particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a governments net resources available for 
spending at tite end of the fiscal year. 

The combined ending fund balance for all governmental funds at December 31. 2021, was $98,578,421. Of this amount, 
$6,261,763 was Included in unassigned fund balance. $58,816 in assigned fund balance, 3858,002 was included In 
committed fund balance. $91,392,810 was included in restricted fund balance, and the remaining $7,030 was in 
nonspendable fund balance. The combined ending fond balance at the end of the year increased $1,851,691 from 
$96,726,730 at the end of the prior year. 

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the Parish and is considered a major fund under criteria set forth by GASB 
Statement No. 34. At the end of the cument fiscal year, the General Fund's total fund balance was $15,748,934 with an 
unassigned fond balance of $6,261,763. Fund balance decreased $522,598 in 2021. The decrease in General Fund's fund 
balance is directly related to the lost tax revenues as a result of the decommissioning of the Shell Convent Refinery as 
described earlier. 

The Parish has four other governmental funds that are considered major funds. Those funds include the Courthouse, Jail, 
and Public Buildings Maintenance Fund, the Parishwide Drainage Maintenance Fund, the Solid Waste Disposal Fund, and 
the Public Safety Trust Fund. A brief discussion of these funds foHows. 

Courthouse, Jail, and Public Buildings Maintenance Fund: This fund manages the general operating and maintenance 
cost of public buildings owned by the Parish. Revenue is received from property taxes and the rental fees for parish 
owned public buildings. The Courthouse, Jail, and Public Buildings Maintenance Fund has a restricted fund balance of 
$13,911,216 for 2021. This fond balance is an increase of $1,088,645 over last year due to revenues exceeding 
expenditures. The decline In property tax and inaease in capital outlay was countered by insurance claims received during 
the year. This resulted in a surplus consistent with the prior year. 

Parishwide Drainage Maintenance Fund: This fund accounts for the operation and maintenance of all Parish drainage 
projects. The Parishwide Drainage Maintenance Fund has a restricted fund balance of $5,108.672 as of December 31, 
2021. This represents a decrease of $1,947,250 which is primarily due to increased personnel costs and increased 
capital outlay expenditures. 

Solid Waste Disposal Fund: This fund accounts for the operation of solid waste management and disposal. The Solid 
Waste Disposal Fund has a restricted fund balance of $4,883,710 as of December 31, 2021. This represents a 
decrease of $154,779 primarily due to increased debris cleanup and disposal countered by increased Federal grants 
pertaining to debris cleanup as a result of Hurricane Ida. 

Public Safety Trust Fund; This fund provides assistance for the cost of providing fire protection to the residents of the 
Parish. The Public Safety Trust Fund has a restricted fund balance of $1,180,652 as of December 31, 2021. This 
represents a decrease of $1,678,731 primarily due to increased personnel costs and an increase In funds transferred 
out to other fonds vrith a consistent purpose. 
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St. James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget were $606,900 (decrease in revenues over 
e^^penditures including transfers) and can be briefly summarized as follows: 

• Increase in budgeted revenues by approximately $346,000 was primanly due to an increase in 
budgeted property taxes of $392,000. The change in budgeted property taxes resulted from an 
overestimation of the impact of the Shell Convent decommissioning. 

• Decrease in budgeted expenditures by approximately $120,000, primarily due to a budgeted increase 
in public safety of $253,000, increase in health and welfare of $65,900, decrease in economic 
development of $183,000, and a decrease in capital outlay of $242,000. 

• Net transfers increased by approximately $1,072,000. 

Capital Asset and Debt Admlnistfation 

Capital assets. The Parish's Investment In capital assets for Its governmental and business-type activities as of 
December 31, 2021, amounts to $76,850,017 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets 
includes land, buildings and system improvements, machinery and equipment, roads, and drainage systems. The total 
decrease in capital assets for the current fiscal year was $571,863 which includes a $3,254,695 decrease for 
governmental activities (5.1%) and a $2,682,832 increase for business-type activities (19.4%). The major additions to 
the Parish's capital assets were the purchases of several pieces of heavy machinery (5934,153), several transit buses 
($361,570), gas line replacements ($1,056,930), the East Bank Multi-purpose Facility ($656,488), and additions to 
active construction projects such as Moiiason Sewer Project ($656,199), the administration buiiding S"* floor renovation 
($274,419), and District 2 Park Renovations ($191,666). The Moiiason Sewer Project was completed in the current year 
with a total asset cost of $2,452,521. Upon completion, the asset was transferred from Governmental Activities to 
Business-Type Activities, which contributed substantially to the gross fluctuations noted above. 

Depreciation expense for the year ended December 31, 2021, totaled $4,938,166. Governmental activities had 
$4,057,967 In depreciation expense and business-type activities' depreciation expense was $880,199. 

A summary of the Parish's capital assets (net of depreciation) follows: 

St. James Parish 
Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation) 

Govemmentai Activities Business-type Activities Total 
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 

Land £ 26,497,987 S 26,497,987 S 60,000 $ 60,000 S 26,557,987 S 26,557.987 

Buildings 17,675,459 18,366.320 - - 17,675,459 18,385.320 
System 

improvements • - 16,246,762 13,569,971 16,246,762 13,559.971 

Improvements other 
than buildings 4.256.336 4,137,917 - - 4.256,336 4,137,917 

Machinery 
arrd equipment 7.126.236 6,944,737 195.734 226.579 7.321.970 7,171.316 

Library col^ction 45,033 38,900 - - 45,033 38.900 

infrastructure 1.440,003 2,925,748 - - 1,440,003 2,925.748 

Construdion in 
progress 3,279,581 4,644,721 26.886 - 3,306,467 4.644.721 

Total $ 60,320,635 $ 63,575,330 $16,629,382 
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St. James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Additional information on the Parish's capital assets can be found on pages 53 to 55 of the Notes to the Financial 
Statements 

Long«term debt 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Parish had long term liabilities outstanding of $23,887,919, Of this amount, 
$1,625,000 is general obligation bonds secured by property taxes The outstanding debt also includes $540,000 of 
limited tax bonds secured by a 4,96 mill ad valorem tax for Road and Bridge Maintenance and $7,440,000 GOMESA 
revenue bonds secured by and solely paid with GOMESA revenues. A summary of the Parish's outstanding long-term 
obligations follows; 

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total 
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 

General obligation bonds 1 1,625,000 $ 2.005,000 $ S $ 1,625,000 £ 2,005.000 

Limited tax bonds 540,000 620,000 - - 540,000 620,000 

GOMESA revenue bonds 7,440,000 7,755,000 • - 7,440,000 7,755,000 

Total OPEB liability 11,185,901 10.206.020 1.402,725 1.206.080 12.588.626 11,412.100 

Net Pension liability 27,279 146,267 - 5,305 27,279 155,572 

Compensated absences 1,391,385 900,090 275,629 151,206 1,667,014 1,051,296 

Total $22,209,565 521,632,377 $ 1.678.354 S 1.366,591 $23,687,919 $22,998,968 

Additlonai information on the Parish's long-term debt can be found on pages 57 to 60 of the Notes to the Financial 
Statements. 

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget 

The following factors were considered in preparing the Parish's budget for 2022: 

> Revenues, not including transfers, are expected to be $46,813,100, an increase of $1,044,000 from 2021 
revenues due to an Increase in federal grant revenues, mainly as a result of Hurricane Jda. 

• Expenditures, not Including transfers, are expected to be $71,596,200, an increase of 29.8% over 2021 revised 
expenditures. Capital expenditures are budgeted at $21,501,500. The capital expenditure budget is up due to 
years of deferred maintenance throughout the Parish, particularly in regards to drainage 

« Property tax revenues are expected to be $17,733,000. 

• Sales tax revenues are budgeted at $5,569,200. 

• Total revenues are forecasted to be $58,507,200, which Includes $46,813,100 of operating revenue and 
$11,694,100 of interfund transfers. Operating revenues are anticipated to be 2.3% more than revenues for 
2021, 

Due to the closure of the Shell Convent refinery, the Parish is anticipating a possible $1.6 million decline in ad valorem 
tax collections beginning in 2022. Although an increase is expected in sales tax revenues, due to the re-building efforts 
as a result of Hurricane Ida, no increase in sales tax is budgeted for 2022. 

Requests for Infarmation 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the finances of the Parish for all those with an interest 
in the government's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided In this report or requests for 
additional financial information should be addressed to the Department of Finance, P.O. Box 106, Convent, Louisiana, 
70723. 
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St. James Parish 
Convent. Louisiana 

Statement of Net Position 
December 31. 2021 

Primafv Gov9rnm9r>t Component Unit 
Governmental Business-Type St, James Parish 

Activities Activities Total Hospital 

ASSETS 
Cash and cesh eQUivalents $ 15,497,208 $ 1,778,899 $ 17,276.107 % 21.316.605 
Investment 66,967.823 13,756,933 00,724,756 
Receivables (net of allowance for uncoilectibles) 27,788.660 887,017 28,675,677 2,116,800 
Estimated third-party payor settlements - - - 4,512,090 
internal balances 62,439 (62.439) - -
Inventories 1,407 389,783 391,190 608.912 
Prepaid items 232.064 22,779 254,843 -
Taxes receivable - - - 16,598 
Restricted and internally designated assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 1.429,325 83,531 1,512,857 -
investments 5.746 500,026 505,772 -
Held by trustee for debt service - - - 1,888,307 
Internally designated for capital acquisition - - - 14,293.468 

Non-depreciable capital assets 29.777,568 86.885 29.864,454 -
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) 30,543,067 16,442,496 46,965.563 21.563,725 
Net pension asset 2.00B.9B7 318.356 2.327,343 2.237,010 
Other assets - - - 200,979 

Total assets 174,314.295 34.204.267 208.518,562 68.754,496 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Deferred outflows related to other postemployment benefits 2.300.9B8 389.445 2.690,433 -
Deferred outflows related to net pension liability 2,291.919 350.573 2,642.492 713,913 
Deferred outflows on debt refundings 49.038 - 49,088 640,653 

Total deferred outflows of resources 4.641.995 740.018 5,382,013 1.354,566 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable e.322.080 387,588 6,709,668 1.203,419 
Accrued salaries and benefits 1,057.520 85,247 1,142,767 1.697,086 
Accrued expenses 495.285 - 495.285 -
Other liabilities 29.337 ' 29,337 -
Liabilities payable from restricted assets - 577,573 S77.573 -
Paycheck Protection Program Loan - - - 2,281,814 
Medicare Accelerated and Advance Payment contractual liability - - - 1,760,376 
Provider Relief Fund deferred revenue - - - 2,800,786 
Unearned revenue - 2.048.826 2.040.826 
Long-term liabilities: 

Due within one year (bonds, notes payable, and 
compensated absences) 1,321,123 124.033 1,445,156 618,515 

Due In more than one year (bonds, notes payable, and 
compensated absences) 9,575,262 151.596 9.826,858 10,267,399 

Due within one year (total other 
postemployment benefits payable) 200,000 24.000 224.000 -

Due In more than one year (total other 
postemployment benefits payable) 10,985,901 1.378.725 12,364.626 -

Due in more than one year (net pension liability) 27,279 - 27,279 -
Total liabilities 30,113,787 4.777,588 34,891.375 20,429.595 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Deferred inflows related to other postemploymerrt llabl% 554,580 281,503 836.083 -
Deferred Inflows related to net pension liability 4,274,794 661,018 4,935,812 2,719,986 

Total deferred Inflows of resources 4,829,374 942,521 5,771.895 2,719,986 

NET POSITION 
Net invesunent in capital assets, net of related debt 58,035.249 16,529,382 74,564.631 10.677,611 
Restricted 81,693.836 - 81.693,836 4.125,317 
Unrestricted 4,284.044 12,694,794 16,978,838 32,156,552 

Total net position $ 144.013.129 $ 29,224,176 $ 173,237.305 $ 46.959,460 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

EXHIBIT A-
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St James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

Statement of Activities 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Program Revenues 
Operating Capital 

Charges for Grants and Grants and 
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions 
Primary government: 

Governmental activities: 
General government $ 8,349,6SS S 835,748 $ 1,074,772 S -
Public safety 9,504.023 497,773 149,695 681,467 
Highways and streets 5.275,914 - 339,471 -
Sanitation 3.998,882 579,055 2,104,620 -
Public housing 256 - - -
Public transportation 1,097,448 14,810 739,746 307,335 
Health and welfare 5,386,107 - 610,590 -
Culture and recreation 3.222.195 24,559 48,591 -
Economic development 345,216 - - -
Interest on long-term debt 415,434 - - -

Total governmental actrvitiea 37.596,130 1,951,945 5.067,485 988.802 

Business-type activities: 
Gas 2,109,372 2,239,366 - -
Water 3,834,143 2,910,081 325,995 -
Sewer 49,572 34,408 - -

Total business-type activities 5,993.087 5,233,855 325,995 -
Total primary govemment $ 43,589,217 $ 7,185,600 $ 5,393.480 % 988,802 

Component unit: 
St. James Parish Hospital $ 27,824,965 $26,135,898 $ 3,828,429 $ -

Total component units $ 27,824.965 $26,135,898 $ 3,828,429 % -

General Revenues 
Taxes: 

Property taxes 
Voluntary payments in lieu of taxes 
Sales and use taxes 
Alcoholic beverages 

Unrestricted grants and contributions 
Investment earnings (losses) 
Other revenue 

Assets transferred 
Transfers 

Total general revenues and special items 

Change in net position 

Net positior^' beginning of year 
Net position - end of year 

The notes to the financial statements are an integraJ part of this financial statement. 

EXHiBITA-2 
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Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position 
Pnmary Government Component Unit 

Govern mental Business-Type St. James 
Activities Act! vibes Total Palish Hospital 

$ (6,439,135) £ $ (6,439.135) 
(8,175,088) - (8,175,088) 
(4,936,443) - (4,936,443) 
(1,315,207) - (1,315,207) 

(266) - (256) 
(35,567) - (35,557) 

(4,775,517) - (4,775,517) 
(3,149,045) - (3.149,045) 

(346,216) - (346,216) 
(415,434) - (415,434) 

(29,587,898) - (29,587,898) 

179,994 179,994 
- (598,067) {598,067) 
- (15,164) (15,164) 
- (433.237) (433,237) 

$ 2,139.362 
2,139,362 

20,982,775 20,982,775 3,232,625 
588.108 - 588,108 -

5,660.528 - 5,660,523 -
19,036 - 19,036 -

737,842 - 737,842 -
(252,561) (50,974) (313,635) 43,438 

4,098,307 83.596 4,181,903 
(2,452,521) 2.452,521 - ' 

564.630 (564,630) - -
29,936,044 1,920,513 31,858,557 3,276,063 

348.146 1,487.276 1,835,422 5,415.425 

143,664.983 27,736,900 171,401,883 41,544,055 
$144,013,129 $ 29.224.176 $173,237,305 S 46,959,430 

EXHIBIT A-2 
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St. James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

Governmental Funds 
Balance Sheet 

December 31,2021 

Courthouse, Jail, Parlshwide 
General and Public Buildings Drainage 

Fund Maintenance Fund Maintenance 
Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents S 1,746,163 $ 234,207 3,019 
Investments 9,077,617 10,573,082 3,176,881 
Receivables 6,188.469 3.667,800 2,642,958 
Due from other funds 761,964 65.582 53,658 
Prepaid items 5,523 - -
Inventories 1,407 -
Restricted cash 1,429,325 - -
Restricted investments 5,748 - -

Total assets 19,216,215 $ 14,540,671 t 5,876.516 

Liabilities and fund balance 
Llabifities: 

Accounts payable $ 2,475.790 $ 450.505 $ 660,292 
Accrued salaries and benefits 733,128 37,918 49,002 
Due to other funds 258,163 141,032 58,550 
Other liabilities 200 - -

Total liabilities 3,467,281 629,455 767,844 

Fund balance; 
Nonspendable 6,930 - -
Restricted 9,480,241 13,911,216 5,108,672 
Committed - - -
Assigned - - -
Unassigned 6,261,763 - -

Total fund balance 15,748,934 13,911,216 5,108,672 
Total liabilities and fund balance $ 19,216,215 $ 14,540,671 $ 5,876,516 

The notes to the finenclal statements are an integral part of this financial statement 

EXHIBIT A-3 
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Solid Public Nonmajor Total 
Waste Safety Governmental Governmental 

Disposal Trust Funds Funds 

$ 349.414 $ 80,956 $ 12,702,137 $ 15,115,896 
3,604,162 830,942 34,778,192 62,040,876 
2,372.690 2,563,135 9.833,877 27,268,929 

44.571 - 2,529.406 3,455,181 
- - 100 5,623 

- - 1,407 
- - - 1,429,326 
- - - 5.746 

$ 6,370,837 5 3,475,033 59,843,712 109,322,984 

$ 1.458,137 $ 108,777 $ 1,105,873 $ 6,259.374 
14.828 - 222,644 1.057,520 
14,162 2,185,604 740,821 3,398,332 

- - 29,137 29,337 
1,487,127 2,294,381 2,098,475 10,744,563 

100 7,030 
4,883.710 1.180,652 56,828,319 91.392,810 

- - 858.002 858,002 
58,816 58,816 

6.261,763 
4,883,710 1,180,652 57,745,237 98,578,421 

$ 6.370,837 3,475,033 $ 59,843,712 5 109,322,984 

EXHIBITA-3 
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St, James Parish 
Convent Louisiana 

ReconcillatJOri of the Balance Sheet of 
Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Position 

December 31. 2021 

Total fund balance at December 31.2021 - governmental funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net 
position are different because; 

Certain long-term assets and defcTed outflows of resources are not 
reported in the fund financial statements because they are not available to 
pay current-period expenditures, but they are reported as assets and 
deferred outflows of resources in the statement of net position. 

Ad valorem taxes receivable 
Prepaid assets 
Net pension asset 
Deferred loss on debt refunding 
Deferred outflows related to other postemployment benefits 
Deferred outflows related to net pension liability 

Capital assets are not reported in fund financial statements because they 
are not current financial resources, but they are reported in the statement 
of net position. 

Cost of capita) assets at December 31,2021 
Less: accumulated depreciation as of December 31, 2021 

Certain long-temi liabilities and deferred inflows of resources are not 
reported as fund liabilities because they are not due and payable in the 
current period, but they are presented as liabilities and deferred Inflows of 
resources in the statement of net position. 

Accrued interest payable 
Bonds payable 
Limited tax bonds 
Revenue bond 
Total other postemployment benefits liability 
Net pension liability 
Deferred inflows related to other postemployment benefits 
Deferred InOows related to pension liability 
Compensated absences 

5 98,578.421 

262.609 
226,441 

2.008.987 
49,088 

2.300.988 
2.291,919 

150,339,352 
(90.018.717) 

(70,285) 
(1.625,000) 

(540,000) 
(7.440,000) 

(11,185,901) 
(27,279) 

(554,580) 
(4,274,794) 
(1.391.385) 

7,140,032 

60,320,635 

(27,109.224) 

Assets and liabilities of the Internal Service Fund related to governmental 
programs are not reported in the governmental fund financial statements 
because they are presented on a different accounting basis, but they are 
presented as assets and liabilities in the statement of net position. 

Total net position at December 31, 2021 - governmental activities 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement 

5,083.265 

$ 144,013,129 

EXHIBITA-4 
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St. James Parish 
Convent. Louisiana 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 
Governmental Funds 

For the Year Ended December 31. 2021 

Courthouse, Jail, Parishwide 
General and Public Buildings Drainage 

Fund Maintenance Fund Maintenance 
Revenues: 

Taxes: 
Property $ 4.686.96B $ 3,263.059 $ 1,971,020 
Voluntary payments in lieu of taxes 588,108 - -
Sales and use 1.415.132 - -
Alcoholic beverages (beer) 19.036 - -

Licenses and permits 335,748 - -
Intergovernmental: 

Federal 259,205 3,322 688,984 
State 667,502 13,890 17,174 
Local 110,487 324 12,694 

Fines and forfeits - - -
Charges for services - - -
Investment earnings (losses) (35,450) (58,565) (24,647) 
Other 1.461,617 611.759 250,357 

Total revenues 10,008.431 3.833,799 2,921,582 

Expenditures: 
Current; 

General government 5,285,875 2,325,843 -
Public safety 1.013,606 94,087 3,862,057 
Highway and streets - - -
Sanitation - ' 
Public housing 256 - -
Public transportation - - -
Health and welfare 2.274,223 -
Culture and recreation - - -
Economic development 332,260 - -

Debt service: 
Principal - - -
Interest and other costs - - -

Capital outlay 397,899 281.039 1,006,775 
Total expenditures 9,304,119 2,700,969 4,868,832 

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures 
before other financing sources (uses) 704,312 1,132,830 (1,947.250) 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers In - - -
Transfers out (1,226,910) (44,185) -

Total other financing sources (uses) (1,226,910) (44,185) -

Net change in fund balance (522,598) 1,088,645 (1,947.250) 

Fund balance, beginning of year 16,271,532 12.822,571 7,055.922 

Fund balance, end of year $ 15,748,934 $ 13,911,216 $ 5,108,672 

The notes to the financial statements are an Integral part of this financial statement. 

EXHIBIT A-5 
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Solid Public Nonmajor Total 
Waste Safety Governmental Governmental 

Disposal Trust Funds Funds 

$ . $ 2,590,663 3 8,438,090 $ 20,949.808 
- - - 588.108 

T,415.132 - 2,830.264 5.660,528 
- - - 19.036 
- - 835,748 

2.104,310 _ 2,252,086 5,307.987 
- «• 623,436 1,322,002 

310 - 40,325 164.140 
- 159,947 159.947 

579.055 377.195 956.250 
(22,716) (1,404) (106,124) (248.906) 
60,830 - 1,592,902 3,983.465 

4.136.921 2.589.259 16,208.121 39,698.113 

1,103,137 8,714.855 
266,648 642,260 2.506,825 8,385,483 

- - 3,416.586 3,416.586 
3,912,839 - 30 3.912.869 

- - - 256 
- - 980,725 980,725 

3,016,603 6.289.826 
- 2,753.279 2.753.279 

- 332,260 

775,000 775,000 
. - 378,449 378,449 

15,000 - 1,770.751 3.471,464 
4,194.487 642,260 16,700,385 38.411,052 

(57,566) 1.946,999 (492,264) 1,287,061 

7,530.843 7,530,843 
(97,213) (3,625,730) (1.972.175) (6.966,213) 
(97.213) (3,625,730) 5.558,668 564.630 

(154,779) (1,678,731) 5.066,404 1.851,691 

6,038.489 2.859.383 52.678.833 96.725,730 

S 4,883,710 $ 1,180.652 $ 57.745.237 5 98.578,421 

EXHIBIT A - 5 
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St James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 

to the Statement of Activities 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Total net change in fund balance • governmental funds (pages 30 & 31} 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in 
the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their 
estimated useful lives and reported as depredation expense 

Capital outlay capitalized 
Depreciation expense for the year ended December 31, 2021 

Capital asset reassignments from governmental activities to business-type 
activities are not presented in fund ^nancials because they do not 
represent a flow of current financial resources, but it is presented In the 
Statement of Activities as a transfer out-

Gains and losses from sale of capital assets are not presented in the hjnd 
financial statements because they do not provide or use current finanda) 
resources, but they are presented in the Statement of Activities. 

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current finanaa! 
resources are not reported as revenue In the funds, but rather deferred to 
subsequent ^scal years. 

Change in ad valorem taxes collected after 60 days 
Nonempioyer contributions to pension plans 

$ 1.851,691 

3,471.464 
(4.057,967) (586,503) 

(2,452,521} 

(215,573) 

32.967 
114,840 147,807 

Governmental funds report principal repayments on debt obligations as an 
expenditure. However, the repayment of principal has no effect on the net 
position. 

Principal payments on long-term liabilities 775,000 

Genereliy expenditures recognized in the fund fnancia! statements are 
limited to only those that use current financial resources but expenses and 
liabilities are reported in the statement of activities when they are incurred. 

Accrued compensated absences 
Accrued interest expense on bonds 
Prepaid insurance 
Other postemployment benefits 
Pension expense 

Activities of internal service fund is reported as r}et revenue In the 
governmental activities. 

Change in net position of governmental activities (pages 25 & 26) 

(491,295) 
(36,935) 
59,396 

(605,619) 
781,358 (293,145) 

1,121,490 

$ 348,146 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement. 

EXHIBIT A-6 
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St. James Parish 
Convent. Louisiana 
Proprietary Funds 

Statement of Net Position 
December 31, 2021 

Assets 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equwalents 
Investments 
Receivables (net of ailowarice for uncoilectibles) 
inventories 
Prepaid items 

Totai current assets 
Noncurrent assets: 

Restricted assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 

Total restricted assets 
Non-depreciable capital assets 

Depreciable capital assete, net 
Total capital assets, net 
Net pension asset 

Total noncurrent assets 
Total assets 

Deferred outflows of resources 
Deferred outflows related to postemplo/ment benefits 
Deferred outflows related to net pension liability 

Total deferred outflovirs of resources 
Liabilities 
Current liabilities (payable from current assets); 

Accounts payable 
Accrued salaries and benefits 
Uabliityfor claims 
Due to other funds 
Compensated absences 
Total other postempioyment benefits liability 
Unearned revenue 

Total current liabilities (payable from oirrent assets) 
Current liabilities (payable from restricted assets) 
Noncurrent liabilities: 

Compensated absences 
Total other postempioyment benefits liability 

Total noncurrent liabilities 
Total liabilities 

Deferred inflows of resources 
Deferred Inflows related to postempioyment benefits 
Deferred inflows related to net pension liability 

Totai deferred inflows of resources 
Net position 

Net investment in capital assets 
Unrestricted 

Total net position 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement. 

EXHIBIT A-7 

Busings-type Governmental 

Activities Activities 

Enterprise Fund 
St. James Parish 

Gas & Water [ntamal 
Distribution System Service Fund 

S 1,770,899 $ 381,312 
13,756,933 4,928,947 

887,017 257,122 
389,783 
22,779 -

16,635,411 5,565,381 

83,531 
500,026 -
583,557 
86.866 -

16,442,496 -
16,529,362 

318,356 
17,431,295 -
34,266,706 5,565,381 

389,445 . 
350,573 -
740,018 

387,588 62,708 
85,247 -

- 425,000 
62,439 (5,590) 

124,033 -
24,000 

2,048,826 -
2,732,133 482,116 

577,573 

151,596 
t.373,725 -
t.530,321 -
4.840.027 482,116 

281,503 
661.018 -
942,521 

15.529.382 
12,694,794 5,033,265 

$ 29,224.176 $ 5,083.265 
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St, James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 
Proprietary Funds 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Business-type 

Activities 

Governmental 

Activities 

Enterprise Fund 
St. James Parish 

Gas & Water 
Disthbution 

System 

internal 
Service 
Fund 

Operating revenues; 
Charges for safes and services 
Other 

$ 5,011,68S 
222,167 

S 4,108,824 

Total operating revenues 5.233,855 4,108,824 

Operating expenses 
Cost of sales and services 
Payrolls 
General and administrative 
Depreciation and amortization 

2,234,987 
1,419,751 
1,458,152 

880,199 

18,824 
2,954,755 

Total operating expenses 5,993,089 2,973,579 

Operating income (loss) (759,234) 1,135,245 

V 
Nonoperating revenues (expenses): 

Investment earnings (losses) 
Intergovernmental: 

Federal 
Capital contributions 
Other 

(50.974) 

325,995 
2,452,521 

83,598 

(13,755) 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 2,811,140 (13,755) 

Income before transfers 2.051.906 1,121,490 

Transfers out (564,630) _ 

Change In net position 1,487,276 1,121,490 

Net position, beginning of year 27,736,900 3,961,775 
Net position, end of year $ 29,224,176 S 5,033,265 

The notes to the financial statements are an Integral part of this flnancfai statement. 

EXHIBIT A-8 
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St. James Parish 

Convent, Louisiana 

Proprietary Funds 

Statement of Cash Flows (Continued) 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Business-i^pe 

Actfviti95 

Enterprise Fund 

St, James Parish 

Gas & Water 

Distribution 

System 

Cash flows from operating activities: 

Receipts from customers and users 

Receipts from interfund services provided 

Payments to suppliers 

Payments to empfoyees 

Payments for interfund services used 

Net cash provided by operating activifies 

Cash flows from noncapital financing activibes: 

Subsidy from grants 

Transfers, net 

Advances from other funds 

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: 

Acquisition and construction of capital assets 

Insurance proceeds 

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 

Purchase of investments 

Interest earnings 

Net cash used in investing activities 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 

Governmental 

ActivEties 

Internal 

Service 

Fund 

s 5,346,117 $ 3,870,459 

535,255 
(3,552,852) (2,724,828) 

(1,409,388) (16.825) 

(535,233) -

333,899 1,126,806 

2,374,821 

(564,630) -
20,625 -

1,830,816 

(1,110,510) 

63.598 

(1,026.912) 

(705,270) (1,453,224) 

8,658 1,225 

(696.612) (1,451,999) 

491,191 (325,193) 
1.371.239 704,505 

$ 1.862,430 $ 379,312 

EXHIBIT A-9 
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St. James Pansh 

Convent. Louisiana 

Proprietary Funds 

Statement of Cash Flows (Concluded) 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Business-type 

Activities 

Enterprise Fund 

St- James Parish 

Gas & Water 

Distribution 

System 

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash 

provided by operating activities: 

Operating income (ioss) 

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (toss) to net cash 

provided by operating activities: 

Depreciation and amortization 

Provision for uncollectible accounts 

Recoveries 

Changes in assets and liabilities: 

Accounts receivable 

Inventory 

Prepaid expenses and other assets 

Net pension asset 

Deferred outflows of resources 

Accounts payable 

Claims liability 
Due to (from) other funds 

Accrued expenses 

Compensated Absences 

Other postemployment benefit liability 

Deferred inflows of resources 

Net pension Itability 

Customers' deposits 
Net cash provided by operating activities 

Cash and cash equ'tvalents for cash flow sta1emer>t include: 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Restricted assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Total cash and cash equivalents 

Noncash investing, capital, and financing activlities: 

Capital contributions 

Increase (decrease) In fair value of investments 

10.354 
(102,025) 
24,114 

(318.356) 
(149,863) 
212,954 

22 

10.363 

124,423 
196,645 
154,496 
(9,305) 
13.260 

Governmental 

Activities 

Internal 

Service 

Fund 

(759.234) $ 1,135.245 

880,199 

7,204 

68.648 

2,452.521 

(54.414) 

(238,36^ 

62,629 
176.O0Q 

(5,590) 

(2.111) 

383,899 $ 1,126,803 

1.778.899 $ 381,312 

83.531 
$ 1,862,430 $ 381,312 

(14,980) 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement. 

EXHIBIT A-9 
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St. James Palish 
Convent. Louisiana 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 31.2021 

INTRODUCTION 

St. James Parish (the Parish) is a political subdivision of the State of Louisiana. The Pansh is governed by seven council 
members (the Parish Council) representing the various distncts \«ithin the Parish. The Parish President, elected by the 
voters of the Parish, is the chief executive officer of the Parish and is responsible for carrying out the policies adopted by 
the Parish Coundl and for administration of all Parish departments, offices, and agencies. The current Parish President 
and seven council members serve four-year terms, which expire on January 8, 2024. 

Louisiana Revised Statute 33:1236 gives the Parish various powers in regulating and directing the affafrs of the Parish and 
Its inhabitants. The more notable of these are the power to make regulations for their own government, to regulate the 
construction and maintenance of roads, bridges, and drainage systems, to regulate the sale of alcoholic beverages, and to 
provide for the health and welfare of the poor, disadvantaged, and unemployed in the Parish, Funding to accomplish these 
tasks is provided by property taxes, sales taxes, service charges, beer and alcoholic beverage permits, state revenue 
sharing, and various other state and federal grants. 

To fulfill its responsibilities to the poor, disadvantaged, and unemployed in the Parish, the Parish may provide for 
specialized health service programs, emergency food and medical assistance, family planning assistance, recreation and 
service centers for the elderly, consumer education, agrlcuttural assistance, and economic development activities. To 
provide funding for these activities, the Parish, in addition to local funding sources, performs the functions of a community 
action agency under the terms and provisions of the United States Economic Opportunity Act of 1964. 

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A. BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

The accompanying financial statements of the Parish have been prepared In conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP) in the United States of America as applied to governmental units. The Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting 
and financfal reporting principles. 

B. REPORTING ENTITY 

The financial reporting entity consists of (a) the primary government (the Parish), (b) organizations for which the primary 
government is financially accountable, and (c) other organizations for which the nature and significance of their 
relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements 
to be misleading or incomplete. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 51, Section 2100, Defining the Financial Reporting 
Entity, establishes criteria for determining which component units should be considered part of the Parish for financial 
reporting purposes. The basic criterion for including a potential component unit within the reporting entity is financial 
accountability. The GASB has set forth criteria to be considered In determining financial accountability. The criteria 
include: 

1. Appointing a voting majority of an organization s governing body and. 

a. The ability of the Parish to impose its will on that organization and/or 
b. The potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to or 

impose specific financial burdens on the Parish. 

37 



St. James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 
December 31.2021 

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

B. REPORTING ENTITY (Continued) 

2. Organizations for which the Parish does not appoint a voting majority but which 
are fiscally dependent on the Parish 

3. Organizations for which tiie reporting entity finandai statements would be 
misleading if data of the organization is not included because of the nature or 
significance of the relationship.. 

Based on the previous criteria, the Parish has determined that the following component unit Is part of the reporting 
entity; 

Rscal Year Criteria Type of 

Component Unit End Used Presentation 

St, James Parish Hospital March 31 1.3 Discrete 

The Parish appoints the board members of the Hospital and can remove them at will. While the Hospital is responsible 
for obtaining voter approval for the levy of taxes or debt Issuance, alJ related Louisiana State Bond Commission 
approvals must be obtained through the Parish, which creates fiscal dependence. For these reasons, the Parish has 
tiie ability to impose its will on the Hospital, hence the Hospital has a financial benefit from the Parish since these 
approvals must first be obtained through the Parish. Complete financial statements for the St. James Parish Hospital 
may be obtained at the component unit's administrative office at 1645 Lutcher Avenue, Lutcher, Louisiana, 70071. 

The Parish's financial statements do not Include the component units that are multi-parish component units. The multi-
parish component units include: 

Multi-Parish Component Unit Fiscal Year End Component Unit of 

District Attorney of the Twrenty-third Judicial District December 31 Ascension Parish 

Twenty-third Judicial District Indigent Defender Board December 31 Ascension Parish 

Considered in the determinations of component units of the reporting entity were the St. James Parish School Board, 
St. James Parish Assessor St. James Parish Sheriff, St James Clerk of Court, and the various municipalities in the 
Parish. It was determined that these governmental entities are not component units of the St. James Parish reporting 
entity All are governed by independently elected officials. The Parish oversight unit neither appoints governing Boards 
nor designates management Furthermore, the Parish has no ability to significantly influence operations nor does it 
have any accountability for fiscal matters of the entities. They are considered by the Parish to be separate autonomous 
governments and issue financial statements separate from those of the St. James Parish reporting entity. 

The Parish is responsible for appointing the members of the board of the St. James Housing Authority. The Parish's 
accountability for the Housing Authority does not extend beyond making the appointments. It was determined that the 
St. James Housing Authority Is a related organization to the Parish. 
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St. James Parish 
Convent. Louisiana 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 
December 31, 2021 

L SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

C. BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities) report 
Information on all of the nonflductary activities of the Parish and Its component units. For the most part, the effect of 
interfund activity has been removed from Uiese statements. Govemmenfa/ activities, which nonmaily are supported by 
taxes and Intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant 
extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the Parish is reported separately from certain legally separate 
component units for which the Parish is financially accountabie. 

These financial statements are presented in accordance with GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements, 
Management's Discussion and Analysis, for State and Local Governments. Statement No. 34 established standards for 
financial reporting, \vith presentation requirements ohglnally including a statement of net assets (or balance sheet), a 
statement of activities, and a statement of cash flows. The definition and composition of these statements, as originafly 
defined in GASB Statement No. 34, are as amended by GASB Statements included m the following paragraphs The 
Parish has also adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 33, Accounting and Financiaf Reporting for 
Nonexchange Transactions that require capital contributions to the Parish to be presented as a change in net position. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment is 
offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identiflable with a specific function or segment 
Pfog/iam revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, 
services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to 
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly 
Included among program revenues are reported instead as genera/ revenues. 

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements. 
Exceptions to this general rule are payments-rn-lieu of taxes and other charges between the Parish's water and gas 
function and various other functions of the government. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and 
program revenues reported for the various functions concerned. 

Fund Financial Statements 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary frinds. Major individual 
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns In the fund financial 
statements. 

The Parish reports the following major governmental funds: 

The Genera/ Fund Is the government's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of 
the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

The Courtfiouse, Jail, and Public Buildings A^a/nfenance Fund accounts for the operation and 
maintenance of the public buildings in the Parish. Financing is provided by property taxes and state 
revenue sharing. 

The Parishwide Drainage Maintenance Fund accounts for the operation and maintenance of all Parish 
drainage projects Major means of financing Is provided by property taxes and slate revenue sharing. 
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Si. James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 
December 31, 2021 

L SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

C. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued) 

Fund Financial Statemenits (Continued) 

The Solid IVaste Disposal Fund accounts for the operation of solid waste management and disposal. 
Major means of financing is provided by one quarter of one percent sales tax imposed parishwide and 
user fees charged to the Parish residents. 

The Public Safety Trust Fund provides funds to assist in paying for the cost of providing fire protection to 
the residents of the Parish. Major means of financing is provided by property taxes. 

The Parish reports the following major proprietary fund: 

The St- James Parish Gas & Water Distribution System Fund accounts for the sale and distribution of 
gas and water to the residents of the Parish. 

Additionally, the Parish reports the following non-major governmental fund types and proprietary funds; 

Spec/a/ revenue funds account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to 
expenditures for specified purposes. 

Debt service funds account for the accumulation of resources the payment of principal and interest on 
long-term obligation debt of governmental funds. 

Capital projects funds account for financial resources received and used for the acquisition, construction, 
or improvements of capital fecililies not reported in other governmental funds. 

interna) service fund accounts for the provision of group health and life insurance provided to the Parish's 
empioyees-

D. MEASUREMENT FOCUS / BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 

Government-Wide Financial Statements fGWFS) 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the econom/c resources measurement focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements Revenues are recorded when earned and 
expenses net of uncollectible amounts are recorded when a liability Is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash 
flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues In the year for which they are levied Grants and similar Items are 
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 

Fund Frnancial Statements fPFS) 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the 
modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. 
Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or within a reasonable 
penod of time after year end. Property tax revenues are considered available when collected within 60 days after year 
end. Intergovernmental revenues and grants are recognized when all eligibility requirements have been satisfied and 
the revenues are available. Expenditures generally are recorded v^en a liability is Incurred, as under accrual 
accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims 
and judgments, are recorded only when a payment is due. 
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St. James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

Notes to the FinandaJ Statements (Continued) 
December 31. 2021 

L SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

D. MEASUREMENT FOCUS / BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (Continued) 

Fund Financial Statements (FFS) (Continued) 

Franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to 
accnjal and so have been recogn.ized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Property taxes that are measurable and 
available (receivable within the current period and collected within the current period or within 60 days thereafter) are 
recognized in the year of levy. Sales and use tax revenues are considered measurable when the underlying transaction 
occurs and are recognized as revenue if collected soon enough to meet the availabihty cfiteria. Revenue from grants 
are recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include 
timing requiremente. which specify the year when the resources can be used. All other revenue items are considered 
to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the government. 

Proprietary funds distinguish opemting revenues and expenses from nonopersting items. Operating revenues and 
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods In connection with a proprietary 
fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Parish's enterprise funds and the Parish's 
internal service fund are charges to customers for sales and services. 

The St James Parish Gas & Water Distribution System fund also recognizes as operating revenue the portion of 
tapping fees Intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers to the system. Operating expenses for 
enterprise funds and the internal service fund Include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and 
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating 
revenues and expenses. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government's policy to use restricted 
resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

E. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/iNFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION 

1. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For reporting purposes, cash and cash equivalents include interest-bearing demand deposits and short-term 
investments with a maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition. Under state law. the Pansh may 
deposit funds within a fiscal agent bank organized under the laws of the State of Louisiana, the laws of any other state 
in the Union, or the laws of the United States. 

2. Investments 

State statutes authorize the Parish to invest in collateralized certificates of deposits, government-backed securities, 
commercial paper, and mutual funds consisting solely of government-backed securities. In addition, local governments 
in Louisiana are authorized to invest in the Louisiana Asset Management Pool. Inc. (LAMP), a nonprofit organization 
formed by an initiative of the State Treasury and organized under the laws of the State of Louisiana, which operates a 
local government investment pool. Investments are stated at fair value. Fair value was determined using quoted 
market prices. 
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St James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

Motes to ttie Financial Statements (Continued) 
December 31. 2021 

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNtFICANT ACCOUNTING POLiCIES (Continued) 

E. ASSETS, LIABILtTIES, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION 
(Continued) 

3. Receivables and Payables 

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal 
year are referred to as either "due to/from other funds" (i.e., the cument portion of interfund loans) or "advances to/from 
other Itinds" (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances between funds are reported 
as "due to/from other funds." Any residual balances outstanding between the govemmental activities and business-type 
activities and any balances not eliminated due to timing differences are reported in the government-wide financial 
statements as "intemal balances." 

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund balance reserve account In 
applicable governmental funds to Indicate that they are not available for appropriation and are not expendable, 
available financial resources 

All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of allowance for uncollectibles. 

Property taxes and the related state revenue sharing (which is based on population and homesteads In the Parish) are 
recorded in the year assessed. Property taxes are assessed on a calendar year basis, become due on November 15 of 
each year, and become delinquent on December 31. The taxes are generally collected In December of the current year 
and January and February of the ensuing year. 

4. Inventory and Prepaid Items 

Inventory in the General Fund consists of expendable supplies held for consumption. The inver^tory Is valued at cost 
(first-in, first-out method), and the cost is recorded as an expenditure at the time individual inventory items are 
requisitioned by the different departments. 

Inventories in the St James Parish Gas & Water Distribution System are stated at the lower of cost (first-in. first-out 
method) or net realizable value. Gas purchased in the system's lines and the water produced by the system is 
expensed when purchased or purified. 

5. Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, and 
similar items), are reported In the applicable govemmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide 
financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the Parish as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than 
$5,000 (equipment), $25,000 (land or land improvements), $50,000 (buildings and leasehold improvements) or 
$250,000 (infrastructure), and an estimated useful life In excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost 
or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets and similar items received in sen/ice 
concession arrangements are recorded at acquisition value rather than fair value. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets' lives 
are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. 
Interest Incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is expensed when incurred 
In accordance with GASB statement 89. 
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St. James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 
December 31, 2021 

L SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

E. ASSETS, LIABILITtES, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION 
(Continued) 

5. Capital Assets (Continued) 

Property, plant, and equipment of the governmental funds, as well as the St. James Youth Center, are depreciated 
using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

Assets Years 
Buildings 40-60 
Building Improvements 7-20 
Infrastructure 25-40 
Heavy Equipment 10-20 
Vehicles 5-8 
Furniture/Office Equipment 5 
Computer Equipment 5 

The St James Parish Gas & Water Distributjon System's plant, property, and equipment are stated at cost and are 
depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

Years 
Utility Plant. Distribution System and Components 5 — 50 
Transport Equipment 5-8 
Office Fumiture. Fixtures and Equipment 3-15 

6. Compensated Absences 

Parish employees eam torn 12 to 18 days of both annual and sick leave each year, dependhg upon length of service. 
Sick leave may be accumulated vuithout limitation; however, annual leave may not be carried fonArard from one year to 
the next unless approved by the Parish President, Upon retirement of an employee enrolled in the Parochial 
Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana or termination of the Chief Administrative Officer and Directors, unused 
accumulated sick leave from 15 (o 60 days depending on length of service is paid to the employee at the employee's 
current rate of pay. Any unused annual leave is paid to the employee upon retirement or termination. 

The cost of leave privileges is accrued when incurred In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. 
A liability for these amounts is reported In the governmental funds only it they have matured, for example, as a result of 
employee resignations and retirements. 

7. Long-term Obligations 

In the government-wide financiai statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term debt 
and other long-term obllgatians are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type 
activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized 
over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond 
premium or discount Bend issuance costs are reported as an outflow of resources in the reporting period in which they 
are incurred. 
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St. James Parish 
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 
December 31, 2021 

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

E. ASSETS, LIABILITIES DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION 
(Continued) 

7. Long-term Obligations (Continued) 

In the fur^d fnancial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond 
issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is repotted as other financing sources. 

Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other linandng sources while discounts on debt Issuances are 
reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are 
reported as debt service expenditures. 

8. Net Petition Classifications 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 

Government-wide and proprietary net position Is divided into three components: 

1. Net investment in capital assets - Consists of net capital assets reduced by the outstanding balances of 
any related debt cbligations and deferred inflows of resources attributable to the acquisition, construction, 
or improvement of those assets and increase by balances of deferred outflows of resources related to 
those assets. 

2. Restricted net position — Net position is considered restricted if their use is constrained to a particular 
purpose. Restrictions are imposed by external organizations such as federal or state laws or buyers of 
the Parish's bonds. Restricted net position Is reduced by liabilities and deferred inltovi^ of resources 
related to the restricted assets. 

3. Unrestricted net position - All other net position that does not meet the definition of "restricted" or "net 
investment in capital assets/ 

Fund Financial Statements 

Accounting standards require governmental fund balances to be reported in as many as five classifications as listed 
below: 

1. Nonspendable - amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in nonspendabte forni or 
because they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact, 

2. Restricted - amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of constitutional provisions or 
enabling legislation or because of constraints that are externally imposed by creditors, grantors, 
contributors, or the laws or regulations of other governments. 

3. Committed - amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a formal decision of the 
Parish Council, which is the highest level of decision-making authority. 

4. Assigned - amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed but that are 
intended to be used for specific purposes. 

5. Unassigned - all other spendable amounts. 
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December 31, 2021 

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

E. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION 
(Continued) 

8. Net Position Classifications (Continued) 

Fund Financial Statements (Continued) 

When an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net posilion are available, the 
Parish reduces restricted amounts first, followed by unrestricted amounts. When expenditures are incurred for purposes 
for which committed, assigned, or unassigned amounts are available, die Parish reduces committed amounts first, 
followed by assigned amounts, and finally unassigned amounte, as needed, unless the Parish has provided otherwise 
in its committed or assignment actions. 

9. Sales and Use Tax 

On April 4,1981, the voters of the Parish approved a one percent sales and use tax, which is levied by the Parish and 
collected by the St. James Parish School Board and then remitted to the Parish. The proceeds of the tax, after paying 
reasonable and necessary costs and expenses of collecting and administering the tax, are dedicated as follows: 

1. One-fourth is to provide care and assistance to the elderly of the Parish and provide 
ambulance services to Parish residents, including the acquisition, operation, and 
maintenance of necessary vehicles; 

2. One-fourth is to provide solid waste management and disposal including the acquisition of 
land, plants, buildings, machinery, and necessary equipment; 

3. One-fourth is to pay the cost of providing recreational facilities, including the acquisition of 
land, buildings, machinery, and equipment; and 

4. One-fourth is to pay the general operation and maintenance costs of the Parish, to acquire 
capital improvements for the Parish, and to service bonds from time to lime for the purpose 
of making capital improvements for the purposes listed above, 

10. Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenues, expenditures, and expenses during the reporting penod, Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 

11. Pension Plans 

The Parish Is a participating employer in three cost-sharing, muStiple-empioyer defined benefit pension plans as 
described In Note IV C. For purposes of measuring the net pension ilabtlity, deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of each of 
the plans, and additions to/deductions from the plan's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis 
as they are reported by the plan. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are 
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments have been reported at fair value 
within each plan. 
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I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

E. ASSETS, LIABILITIES. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION 
(Continued) 

12. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

In addition to assets, the statement of net position wiil sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of 
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net 
position that applies to a future periodfs) and so wi|[ not be recognized as an outflow of resources 
(expense/expenditure) until then. 

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of 
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net 
position that applies to a ftjture perlod(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenues) until that 
time. 

F. CURRENT YEAR ADOPTION OF NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS 

The Parish adopted GASB Statement No. 89 (GASB 89), Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a 
Construction Period. This Statement establishes accounting requirements for Interest cost before the end of a 
construction period. This Statement aims to improve financial reporting by providing users of financial statements with 
more relevant information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period. The resulting 
information also wiil enhance the comparability of information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a 
reporting period for both governmental and business-type activities. The provisions of GASB 89 are effective for 
financial statements for period beginning after DecemberlS. 2020. 

G. CURRENT ACCOUNTING STANDARDS SCHEDULED TO BE IMPLEMENTED 

The foiiowing is a summary of accounting standards adopted by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) that are scheduled to be implemented in the future that may affect the Parish's financial report: 

GASB Statement 87, Leases, This standard will require at] leases to be reported on the statement of net position under 
a single accounting model for both lessors and lessees. The statement will require the recognition of lease assets or 
liabilities for leases previously reported as operating leases. Both operating and capital leases will be reported under 
this single accounting method and reported by lessees as an intangible right to use asset and by lessors as a 
receivable with both reporting a deferred inflow of resources. The standard is effective for annual reporting periods 
beginning after June 15, 2021 The Parish will include the requirements of this standard, as applicable. In Its December 
31, 2022 financial statement. All of the Parish's lease agreements will need to be evaluated to determine the Impact of 
implementing this standard; however, the effect of this standard or its appiicabiiity to the Parish is unknown at this time. 

II. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

A. BUDGETARY INFORMATION 

The proposed budget for the year ended December 31, 2021, was completed and made avaiiable for public inspection 
at the Parish Council Office on October 28, 2020. A public hearing was held on December 9, 2020, tor suggestions and 
comments from taxpayers. The proposed budget was formally adopted by the Parish on December 10, 2020. The 2021 
budget, which included proposed expenditures and the means of financing them for the general, special revenue, debt 
service and capital projects funds, was pubNshed In the official journal fourteen (14) days prior to the public hearing. 

All appropriations lapse at year-end, and any encumbrances outstanding at year-end are included in the next year's 
budget with funds appropriated in that year to finance them. The budget is prepared on a modified accrual basis. 
Formal budgetary accounts are integrated into the accounting system during the year as a management control device 
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II.STEWARDSHIP. COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY {Continued) 

A. BUDGETARY INFORMATION (Continued) 

The Parish exercises budgetary control at the functional level Within ftjnctions, the Director of Rnance has the 
authority to make amendments as necessary. When actual revenues within a fund are failing to meet estimated annual 
budgeted revenues by five percent or more, and/or actual expenditures within a fund are exceeding estimated 
budgeted expenditures by five percent or more, a budget amendment to reflect such changes is adopted by the Parish 
in an open meeting. Budget amounts included in the financial statements include the original adopted budget amounts 
and the final amended budget. 

B. EXPENDITURES WITH UNFAVORABLE APPROPRIATIONS 

For the year ended December 31, 2021, expenditures exceeded appropriations in the following individual funds: 

Fund Budget Actual Un^vorabie Variance 
Public Safety Trust S 4,249,100 $ 4,267,990 $ 18,890 
Non-major Special Revenue Funds: 

EEMS 2,140,900 2,372,047 231,147 
Emergency Food & Shelter 17,400 25,783 8,363 
C2 Home Delivered Meals 210,700 221.145 10,445 
01 Congregate Meals 114,700 129,042 14,342 
AAA - Parish Council on Aging 103,100 111,104 8,004 
Housing Presen/ation Grant 36,300 38,663 1,769 
St. James Youth Detention Center 164,000 195,454 11,454 

LEVIED TAXES 

following is a summary of levied property taxes for the year 2021: 

Parishwide taxes: Millaae Rate 
General Fund 3.20 
Library 2.99 
Department of Human Resources 3.91 
Courthouse. Jail, and Public Buildings Maintenance 4.95 
Road and Bridge Maintenance 4.95 
Parishwide Drainage 2.99 
Hospital District 4.73 
Public Safety 3.93 
Enhanced 911 System Maintenance 1.25 
Consolidated General Obligation Bonds 0.50 
St. James Youth Center 0.60 

Special district taxes: 
Consolidated Road Lighting District #3A 
Gramercy Recreation District 
Fire Protection District #2 
Recreation District V - General Obligation Bonds 
District V Recreation 

1.01 
463 
0.74 
0.70 
1,00 
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II. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued) 

a LEVIED TAXES (Continued) 

The following are the principal taxpayers of the Parish-

2021 Assessed Percentage of Total 
Taxpayer Type of Business Valuation Assessed Valuation 
Equilon Enterprises, LLC Oil Refinery $ 650.198.790 92 38% 
Mosaic Fertilizer, LLC - Uncle Sam Chemical Manufacturer 167,885,056 23,85% 
Louisiana Sugar Refining. LLC Sugar Refinery 133,418.030 18.96% 
Mosaic Fertilizer LLC - Faustina Chemical Manufacturer 94,589.049 13 45% 
Zen-Noh Grain Corporation Grain Export 82,613.907 11,77% 
American Styrenics LLC Chemical Manu^cturer 77,203.277 10.97% 
Noranda Alumina LLC Chemical Manufacturer 15,107.839 2.15% 
LOCAP, Inc. Rpeline 14,419,400 2,05% 
Plains Marketing, LP Oil Refinery 13,643.872 1.97% 
Occidental Chemical Corp. Chemical Manufacturer 13,488.503 1.92% 

Total $1,263,072,723 82.85% 

111. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS 

A. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 

Deposits 

At December 31.2021, the Parish has deposits and certificates of deposit (book balances) as follows: 

Primary Government 
$17,276,107 Cash 

Restricted Assets - Cash 1,512,057 
$ 18.788,964 

These deposits are stated at cost, which approximates market. Under state law. these deposits (or the resulting bank 
balances) must be secured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of securities owned by the fiscal agent bank. 
The market value of the pledged securities plus the federal deposit insurance must at all times equal the amount on 
deposit with the fiscal agent bank. These securities are held in the name of the pledging fiscal agent bank in a holding 
or custodial bank that is mutually acceptable to both parties. 

At December 31. 2021. the primary government has 319,902.189 in deposits (collected bank balances). Custodial 
credit risk Is the risk that In the event of a bank failure, the Parish's deposits may not be returned to it. All of the 
primary government's deposits are either insured by federal deposit insurance or collateralized with U.S. government 
securities held by the pledging financial institution's trust department in the name of the Parish. 

Investments 

State statutes authorize the Parish to invest m Louisiana Asset Management Pool (LAMP), U.S. Treasury notes and 
bonds. U.S. agency securities and other govemmental debt obligations with limited exceptions as noted in LA-R.S. 
32.2955. Investments in time certificates of deposit can be placed with state banks, national banks or federal credit 
unions as permitted in state statute. 
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DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Cantmued) 

A. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

Investments (Continued) 

As of December 31, 2021, the Parish had its assets in money market instruments, U.S. treasury notes, and U.S 
agency securities managed by financial institutions. The accounts managed by the financial Institutions have a fair 
market value of $51.230,528 as of December 31, 2021 

The Parish's investment balance at December 31,2021, consisted of the following: 

Secuntv 

Invesments at fair value 

Commercial Paper 

U.S. ^tpencres: 
U S Treasury Note 

Federal National 
Mortgage Assodaiion 

Federal Home Loan 
Mortgage CorporatiQn 

FedemI Aghcullure 
Mortgage Corporation 

Federal Home Loan Bank 

Federal Farm Credit Bank 

Percentage of POi^lio 
Value 

Standard 
& Poors 
fteting 

Aaa 

Aaa 

Aaa 

Aaa 

Aaa 

Aaa 

Aaa 

Percentage 
ofTofal 
Portfolio 

15% 

9% 

2% 

1% 

13% 

35% 

100% 

Investments measured at the net asset value {NAV} 

E;rternal rnvestmer^t pool AAAm 

Federai Governmental 
Qbligelion Fund AAA 

Total Investments 

Fair 
Market 
Value o-B 

ZS% 10,920761 

7-12 

Months to Maturity 

13-24 25-36 37-48 

86,631.711 83,163.450 S3.468.261 S 

3,665,391 

591,223 469,^3 

49-60 

4,166,241 2,417,234 2.440768 1.696,518 

3,095.010 760,382 

491.938 

487.412 ... - 487412 

5,563.486 404.868 1,249.201 1,690,205 - 756,995 1,482.214 

15 1<».748 ; ; 3872249. 3 D97 435 4 722.481 3.414 584 

S43.576732 63.568.317 65.21 B.750 $_9.728,698 S5.514.6Sa S11.994.600 87j553.e 

100% 8% 12% 22% 13% 28% 17% 

£37.622.602 £37,622.602 S • $ - $ - $ - S 

^31794 31.1S4 - - - -

sai.230.628 S41772 113 S5?lR7fin sa72B.saa 8S-S.14Ja6 sii,9ft4Bnfl S7ssafiaa 

The Parish's investment policy requires all securities to be investment-grade obligations but does not address 
specific credit quality ratings. The Parish does not limit the amount that may be invested in securities of any one 
issuer. Applicable state statutes do not address credit quality ratings, concentration of credit risk by issuer, or 
investment maturity Jimitations. 

As of December 31. 2021. $37,622,602 is invested in an external investment pool, Louisiana Asset Management 
Pool, LAMP is administered by LAMP, Inc., a non-profit corporation organized under the laws of the Stale of 
Louisiana. Only local government entities having contracted to participate in LAMP have an investment interest in 
its pool of assets. The primary objective of LAMP is to provide a safe environment for the placement of public funds 
in short-term, high quality investments, The LAMP portfolio Includes only securities and other obligations in which 
local governments in Louisiana are authorized to Invest in accordance with LA-R.S. 33:2955. 
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IJI. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 

A. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

Investrmer^ts (Continued) 

LAMP is a governmental externa) investment pool that reports at net asset value. The following facts are relevant 
for an investment pool. 

• Credit risk: LAMP is rated AAAm by Standard & Poor's. 

• Custodial credit risk; LAMP participants' Investments In the pool are evidenced by shares of the pool. 
Investments in pools should be disclosed, but not categorized because they are not evidenced by 
securities that exist in physical or book-entry form. The Parish's investment is with the pool, not the 
securities that make up the pool; therefore, no public disclosure Is required. 

• Concentration of credit risk; Pooled investments are excluded from the five percent disclosure 
requirement. 

• Interest rate risk; LAMP is designed to be highly liquid to give its participants immediate access to 
their account balances. LAMP prepares its own interest rate risk disclosure using the weighted 
average maturity (WAM) method. The WAM of LAMP assets is restricted to not more than 90 days, 
and consists of no securities with a maturity in excess of 397 days or 762 days for U S. Government 
floating/variable rate investments. The WAM for I^AMP's total investments is 88 days as of December 
31,2021, 

• Foreign currency risk: Not applicable. 

The investments in LAMP are stated at fair value based on quoted market rates. The fair value is determined on a 
weekly basis by LAMP and the value of the position in the external Investment pool is the same as the value of the 
pool shares. 

LAMP, Inc. is subject to the regulatory oversight of the state treasurer and the board of directors. LAMP Is not 
registered with the SEC as an investment company, 

An annual audit of LAMP is conducted by an Independer^t certified public accountant. The Legislative Auditor of the 
State of Louisiana has full access to the records of LAMP. 

LAMP issues financial reports which can be obtained by writing: LAMP. Inc., 650 Poydras Street. Suite 2220. New 
Orleans. LA 70130. 

Fair Value of Financial instruments 

Determination of Fair Value 

The Parish categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally 
accepted accounting phnciples. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the 
asset. 
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DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 

A. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Continued) 

Fair Value Hierarchy 

In accordance with this guidance, the Parish groups its financial assets and financial liabilities generally measured 
at fair value in three levels, based on the markets in which the assets and liabilities are traded and the reliability of 
the assumptions used to determine fair value. 

• Level 1 - Valuation is based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the 
reporting entity has the ability to access at the measurement date. Level 1 assets and liabilities generally 
include debt and equity securities that are traded in an active exchange market. Valuations are obtained 
from readily available pricing sources for market transactions involving identical assets or liabilitles. 

• Level 2 - Valuation is based on Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable 
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. The valuation may be based on quoted prices for simitar 
assets or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can 
be corroborated by observable market date for substantially the full term of the asset or liability. 

• Level 3 - Valuation is based on unobservabie inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and 
that are significant to the fair value of the assets and liabilities. Level 3 assets and iiabilities Include 
financial instruments whose value is determined using pricing models, discounted cash flow 
methodologies, or similar techniques, as well as instruments for which determination of fair value required 
significant management judgment or estimation. 

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Parish in estimating fair value disclosures for financial 
instruments: 

Securities.' Where quoted prices are available in an active market, we classify the securities within level 1 of the 
valuation hierarchy. Securities are defined as both long and short positions. Level 1 securities include highly 
liquid government bonds and exchange-traded equities. 

If quoted market prices are not available, we estimate fair values using pricing models and discounted cash 
flows that consider standard input factors such as observable market data, benchmark yields, interest rale 
volatilities, broker/dealer quotes, and credit spreads. Examples of such instruments, which would generally be 
classified within level 2 of the valuation hierarchy, include GSE (Government sponsored enterprises) obligations, 
(such as Federal National Mortgage Association, Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation. Federal Home 
Loan Bank, and Federal Farm Credit Bank), corporate bonds and other securities. Mortgage backed securities 
are included in level 2 if observable inputs are available. In certain cases, where there is limited activity or less 
transparency around inputs to the valuaflcn, we classify those securities in level 3. 
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III. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 

A. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Continued) 

Fair Value of Assets Measured on a Recurring Basis 

The following table presents for each of the fair value hierarchy level the Parish's ^nancial assets and liabilities that 
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis at December 31, 2021: 

Level 2 
U.S. Agency Securities 
U.S. Treasury Bonds and Motes 
Commercial Paper 

$ 26.024,260 
10.920,761 
6.631,711 

S 43.576,732 

B. RECEIVABLES 

Receivables as of year-end for the Parish's individual major funds and non-major and internal service funds in the 
aggregate, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows: 

Countwusa. 
Jail, and Public Parisliwlde Nonmejor 

BuilOings Drainage Solid Waste Public Safety Gbwnmantd interrai Service 
Gswal FiHK] Malntenarroe Maintenance Oisoosat Trust Punda Fund Total 

Taids 
Property $ 5.196,208 S 3.228.368 6 1,960,067 s S 2,563.135 S 8,355,259 5 - $ 21,292.037 
Selfsand Use 288,206 - - 266,206 - 532 412 - 1,064.824 

Irt erg a vernrrlanld 
Feoersi 227,747 687,093 2,101.831 251,222 3,287.833 

Stale 33.370 - - - - 16.647 52,217 
Customers 151A47 117 5,798 4,653 134.202 >47 308.454 
Other 304,491 439,316 - - - 541.645 256,075 1.542526 

Gross Rec^VBOles 6.«a,480 3,667.600 2,642,958 2,372,690 2.533,135 0.833 877 257122 2 7 626,061 
IBK atlowKicelDr uncolleclibles - - - . - * 
Net roceivaoies &.189.4Se 3,667,600 2,642.968 2,372.690 2.5S3.135 9.833,877 257.122 57,525,051 
Adjust merit 10 full aesrual basis 39.455 41.392 25.002 32.864 103,896 - 262.809 
Total receivabtes S 6.247.924 S 3,709.192 $ 2,667.060 % 2,372.690 $ 2.595.999 $ 9.937.773 5 257,122 5 27,705,550 

other governmental agendes 
Federal 

Account 
Other 
Gross receivables 
Less: allowance for Lrncollectible 

Net recetvables - business-type Kjnds 

Si- James Parish 
Gas 4 Water 

Distributian System 

s 5,000 
036.291 

54,985 
995.266 

(111,249) 
s 867.017 
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DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 

C. CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31,2021, was as follows: 

Primarv Government 

Governmental activities: 

Capital assets, not being depreciated: 

Land 

Construction in progress 

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 

Buildings 

Improvements other than buildings 

Machinery and equipment 

Library collection 

Infrastructure 

Total capital assets being depreciated 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 

Buildings 

Improvements other than buildings 

Machinery and equipment 

Library collection 

Infrastructure 

Total accumulated depreciation 

Beginning ErvJIng 

Balance Increases Decreases Balance 

$ 26.497,987 $ $ S 26.497,987 

4,644.721 1,411,102 (2.776.242) 3,279,581 

31,142,708 1,411,102 (2,776.242) 29,777,568 

30,011,472 73,150 30,084.622 

7,141,448 435,229 - 7.576,677 

21,951,877 1,830,674 (1.157,784) 22.624.707 

2,054,624 45,029 (15,198) 2,084,455 

56,191,263 _ 58.191,263 

119,350,684 2,384,082 (1.172.962) 120.561,784 

(11,625,152) (783,011) _ (12.409.163) 

(3,003,531) (316.810) - (3,320,341) 

(15,007.140) (1,433.505) 942,114 (15,498,531) 

(2,015,724) (38,896) 15,198 (2.039,422) 

(55.265.515) (1,485.7451 _ (56,751,260) 

(86,918,062) (4,057,967) 957,312 (90.018,717) 

32.432.622 (1.673,885) (215.670) 30,543.067 

$ 63,575,330 $ (262.783) S (2.991.912) S 60,320,635 
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III, DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 

C. CAPITAL ASSETS (Continuedl 

Primary Govemment (Continued) 

Business-type activities! 

Caprtdl assets, not being depreciated; 

Land 

Construction in progress 

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 

Gas distribution system 

Water distribution system 

Office furniture, fixtures, and equipment 

Transportation equipment 

Total capital assets, being depreciated 

Less accumulated depreciation for 

Gas distribution system 

Water distribution system 

Office furniture, fixtures, and equipment 

Transportation equipment 

Total accumulated depreciation 

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 

Business-type activities capital assets, net 

Beginning Ending 

Balance Increases Decreases Balance 

$ eO.OOQ $ $ $ 60,000 

- 26,686 - 26,886 

BO, 000 26,886 86,886 

2,133.802 1.056,930 3.190.732 

28,766,183 2,452,521 - 31,218,704 

409,492 26,694 - 436,186 

578,572 _ 575.572 

31,888,049 3,536,145 - 35,424.194 

(1,721,978) (26,582) (1.748,560) 

(15,618,033) (796,081) - (16,414,114) 

(325,411) (18,863) - (344,274) 

(436,077) (38,673) - (474J50) 

(18.101,499) (880.199) (18.981,598) 

13,786,550 2,555.945 16.442,496 

$ 13,846.550 $2,682,832 $ $ 16,529,382 

Caoltai Reassignment Transfer 

During the year, the Molaison Sewer Project was completed at a cumulative cost of S2.452,521 The project was 
reassigned out of govemmentai activities to business-type activities and reflected increases and decreases 
accordingly in the schedules above. The reassignment is recognized as a capital contribution on the Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, it's reclassified to a transfer on the Statement of Activities. 
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111. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 

C. CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 

Primary Govemment (Continued) 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows: 

Governmental activities: 

General government $ 410,725 

Public safety 1,146,998 
Highway and streets, including depreciation of general infrastructure asset 1.738,355 

Sar^ltation 66,434 

Public transportation 96.502 

Health and welfare 79,185 

Culture and recreation 510,321 

Economic development and assistance 9,147 

Total depreciation expense-governmental activities $ 4,057.967 

Business-type activities: 

Gas and water $ 880.199 

Total depreciation expense-business-type activities $ 880,199 

Construction Commitments 

The govemment has active construction contracts at December 31, 2021, totaling $5,457,442. The remaining 
commitments on active construction projects at December 31,2021. are as follows: 

Remaining 
Project Contract Amount Commitment 

Governmental Funds: 
District V Recreation Building £ 2,863,411 $ 1,533,090 
Drainage work 1,417,428 748,165 
East Bank Rec Facility 534,000 521,988 
Admin Building — 3"^ Floor Renovation 333,335 55,071 
DHR Building 87,675 16,071 

Total govemmenta! funds 5,235,849 2.374,385 
Proprietary Funds: 

East Bank Water Clarifier 221,593 194,707 
Total proprietary funds 221,593 194,707 

Total commitments $ 5,457,442 £ 3.069,092 

The Parish is involved in a dispute with a contractor and an architect over faulty constniction of the District V 
Recreation Building included in construction in progress. Construction of that building is stopped, pending the 
outcome of the dispute. If the outcome for the Parish is negative and the funds dedicated for completion are not 
enough for the repairs, the Parish would have to identify a funding source to complete and repair the building. If the 
outcome is positive, the funds will be used to complete the building and do any necessary repairs. 
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DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 

D. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES. AND TRANSFERS 

The composition of interfund balances as of December 31,2021. is as follows; 

Due to/from other funds; Receivabte Payable 

Governmental Funds: 
General Fund $ 761,964 $ 258,163 
Courthouse, Jail, and Public Buildings Maintenance 65,582 141,032 
Pahshwide Drainage Maintenance Fund 53,656 58,550 

Solid Waste Disposal Fund 44,571 14,162 
Public Safety Trust Fund - 2,185,504 
Nonmajor Governmentai Funds 2,529,406 740,821 
Intemal Service Fund 5,590 -

Total governmental funds 3.460.771 3,398,332 

Proprietary Fund/Enterprise Fund: 
St. James Parish Gas & Water Distribution System - 82,439 

Total proprietary fund/enterprise fund 62,439 

$ 3,460,771 $ 3,460,771 

Due to/from other funds are the result of transfers between funds or collections made on behalf of one fund for 
another which are expected to be paid within one year. 

The composition of interfund transfers for the year ended December 31.2021. is as follows; 

interfund Transfers: Transfers Out Transfers In 

Governmental Funds; 
General Fund $ 1,226,910 $ 
Courthouse, Jail, and Public Buildings Maintenance 44,185 

Solid Waste Disposal Fund 97,213 
Public Safety Trust Fund 3,625,730 
Nonmajor governmental funds 1,972,175 7,530,843 

Tola! governmental funds 6,966,213 7.530.843 

Proprietary Fund/Enterpnse Fund: 

St. James Parish Gas & Water Distribution System 564.630 ^ 

Total proprietary fundyenterprise fund _564,63Q -

Total interfund transfers $ 7,530,843 S 7.530,843 

Interfund transfers are made on a regular basis to supplement other funds' sources and to provide internal financing 
for capital outlay. 
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DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 

E. LEASES 

Operating Leases 

The Parish has several operating leases as of December 31. 2021. The minimum annual commitments under non-
cancelable operating leases and/or agreements are as follows: 

Year Ending Building 
2022 $ 170.063 
2023 179,039 
2024 177,446 
2025 114,966 
2026 54.717 

2027-2031 56,217 
2032-2036 500 
2037-2041 500 
2042-2046 500 
2047-2051 500 
2052-2056 500 
2057-2061 500 
2062-2064 200 

Total $ 763,648 

f. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

General Oblioation Bonds 

The Parish issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major capital 
facilities. These bonds have been issued for governmental activities. The original amount of general obligation bonds 
issued in prior years was $4,230,000. The Interest rate of the gerteral obligation bonds ranges from 2.55 - 4.65%. 
General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the government to be paid for by 
Ad Valorem taxes collected. Events of default are outlined in the transcript of the General Obligation Bonds and 
include principal and interest payment deilnquendes, bankruptcy, or covenant violations. The outstanding balance on 
the general obligation bonds at December 31. 2021. Is $1,625,000. 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation bonds are as follows: 

Governmental Activities 
Year Ending Principal Interest 

2022 $ 395,000 $ 49,893 
2023 415,000 37,474 
2024 430.000 24,506 
2025 120,000 15,114 
2026 130,000 9,300 

2027-2031 135,000 3,139 
$ 1,625,000 $ 139.431 
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DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 

F. LONG-TERM LIASILITIES (Continued) 

Limited Tax Bonds 

The Parish issued a limited tax bond to provide funds for the purpose of road improvements and repairs. The original 
amount of this limited tax bond is $850,000. The interest rate of the limited tax bond is 2.23%. The outstanding note Is 
secured by a special levy and coilection of 4.95 mill tax. The note is subject to early termination if a 60-day written 
notice is provided by either party The outstanding balance on the issue of the limited tax bond at December 31, 2021, 
is $540,000, 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for limited tax bonds are as follows; 

Governmental Activities 
Year Ending Principal Interest 

2022 $ 85,000 $ 12,042 
2023 85,000 10,147 
2024 90,000 8,251 
2025 90,000 6,234 
2026 95,000 4,237 

2027-2031 95,000 2,119 
$ 540,000 $ 43,029 

GOMESA Revenue Bonds 

The Parish issued a revenue bond to prov«de funds for projects and activities for the purpose of coastal protection. The 
original amount of this revenue bond is $6,000,000. GOMESA revenues received by the Parish have been pledged for 
the repayment of the bond. The interest rate of the revenue bond is 3.90%, Events of default are outlined in the 
transcript of the Revenue Bonds and Include principal and interest payment delinquencies, bankruptcy, or covenant 
violations. The outstanding balance on the issue of the revenue bond at December 31, 2021, is $7,440,000. 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for revenue bonds are as follows: 

Governmental Activities 
Year Ending Principal Interest 

2022 $ 215,000 $ 290,160 
2023 225,000 281,775 
2024 235,000 273,000 
2025 240,000 263,835 
2026 250,000 254,475 

2027-2031 1,410,000 1,118,130 
2032-2036 1,710,000 820,560 
2037-2041 2,065,000 460,590 
2042-2046 1,090,000 86,385 

$ 7,440,000 $ 3,848,910 
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III. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 

F. LONG-TERM UABILITfES (Continued) 

Legal Debt Maroin-General Qblioation Bonds 

Governing Authority: Parish of St. James 
Property taxes: 

Assessed valuation. 2021 tax rolls 
Debt limit: 10% of assessed valuation (for any one purpose) 

S 661.512,229 
$ 66,151.223 

At December 31, 2021, the Parish has no outstanding bonds that exceed the legal debt limit. 

Changes in Lono-Temi Liabilities 

Long-temi liability activity for the year ended December 31.2021. was as follows: 

Beginning 
Balance Additions 

Governmental activities: 

Direct borrowing and placement: 

General obligation bonds 
Limited tax bonds 
GOMESA revenue bonds 

Other long-term liabilities: 
Total OPEB liability 
Net pension liability 
Compensated absences 

Govemmental activity 
long-term liabilities 

Business-type activities: 
Total OPEB liability 
Net pension liability 
Compensated absences 

Business type activity 
long-term liabilities 

$ 2,005,000 
620,000 

7,755,000 

10,206.020 
146,267 
900,090 

979,881 

814,792 

Reductions 

$ (380,000) 
(80,000) 

(315,000) 

(118,988) 
(323,497) 

Ending 
Balance 

$ 1,625,000 
540.000 

7,440.000 

11,185,901 
27,279 

1,391,385 

$ 1,206,080 

151,206 

$ 1.357,286 

196,645 

124,423 (95,360) 

$ 321,068 $ (95,360) 

$ 1,402,725 

275,629 

$ 1,678,354 

Due Within 
One Year 

$ 395,000 
85,000 

215,000 

200,000 

626,123 

$ 21,632.377 $ 1.794.673 S (1.217,485) $22,209,565 $ 1,521,123 

3 24.000 

124.033 

$ 148,033 

Compensated absences are generally liquidated by the fund from which the employee's salary Is paid immediately 
prior to the date of retirement or termination. 
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F. LONG-TERN! LIABIUTIES (Continued) 

Defeased Debt 

During 2014, the Parish issued refunding bonds of $2,530,000 to partially defease its 2005 General Obligation 
refunding bonds. The proceeds were deposited in an escrow account to provide for all future debt service on the 2006 
series bonds until they are called on March 1, 2024. As a result, the 2005 series bonds are considered defeased, and 
the Parish has removed the liability from its accounts. 

As of December 31,2021, the defeased debt outstanding but removed from the government wide financial statements 
Is $910,000. 

Conduit Debt 

The Industrial District of the Parish has issued Pollulion Control Revenue Bonds. Solid Waste Disposal Revenue 
Bonds, and industrial Revenue Bonds. Obligations of the industrial districts are payable solely from the income and 
revenues derived from the industrial districts. These bonds do not constitute a debt or pledge of the full faith and 
credit of the Parish and accordingly have not been reported in the accompanying financial stalements. 

As of December 31, 2021, there were welve series of Pollution Control Revenue Bonds. Solid Waste Disposal 
Revenue Bonds, or Industrial Revenue Bonds outstanding. The aggregate principal amount payable for the series 
could not be determined; however, the original issue amounts totaled $1,140,350,000 

G. RESTRICTED ASSETS 

Restricted assets as of December 31, 2021. consist of the following: 

Restricted Assets Amount Purpose 
Cash: 

General Fund $ 1.429,326 Enterprise zone rebates 
St. James Parish Gas & Water Distribution 83,531 Customer deposits 

investments: 
General Fund 5,746 Natural disaster assistance 
St. James Parish Gas & Water Distribution 500,026 Customer deposits 

Total Restricted Assets $ 2,018,629 
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I. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 

H. FUND BALANCES AND NET POSITION 

Fund Balance 
Fund Balance may be classified In the foflowtng categories; Nonspendable, Restricted. Committed. Assigned, or 
Unassigned. See Note I E.8 of these financial statements for definitions of these five fund Balance categories. The 
detail of the composition of Nonspendable. Restricted, Committed. Assigned, and Unassigned Fund Balance as of 
December 31. 2021. follows; 

Courthouse. 
Jail, and Rjblic ^rishwidie Nonmapr 

Buildings Drainage Solid Waste Rjblic Safety Govern<mental 
Gerieral Fund Maintenance Maintenance Disposal Trust Funds Total 

Nonspendable: 
Prepaid expenses $ 5,523 $ S $ 3 $ 100 $ 5,623 
Inventory 1,407 - - - - - 1,407 

6.930 - - - - 100 7.030 
Restricted: 

General government - 13.911.216 - - - - 13,911.216 
Health and welfare 9,480.241 - - - - 4,146,507 13,626,748 
Culture and recreation - - - - - 12,557,490 12,557,490 
Debt service - - - - - 940.223 940.223 
Capital projects - - - - - 9,248.287 9,248,287 
Highw ays and streets - - - - - 11.979,024 11,979.024 
Publk: safety - - 5.108,672 - 1,180,652 17,722.441 24.011,765 
Sanitation - - 4,863.710 • 233.760 5,117,470 
Other - - - • • 587 687 

9.480.241 13,911.216 5.108,672 4,883.710 1.180,652 56.828.319 91.392.810 
Comrrttted for: 

Judicial - - - - - 812,384 812,384 
Highw ays and streets - - - - 45.618 45,618 

- - - - - 858,002 858,002 
Assigned for: 

Judiciat - - - - - 4.609 4.609 
Other - - - - - 54.207 54.207 

- - - - 58.816 58,816 
Unassigned 6.261.763 - ' - - - 5.261.763 

Total fund balance $15,748,934 S 13,911,216 $ 5,108,672 $ 4,883,710 $ 1.180,652 $57,745,237 $98,578,421 
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III. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 

H. FUND BALANCES AND NET POSITION (Continued) 

Net Position 
Net Position may be classified in the following categories; Net investment in capital assets, Restricted, or Unrestricted, 
See Note I E.6 of these financial statements for definitions of these three Net Position categories. The detail of the 
composition of Net Investment in capital assets, Restricted, and Unrestricted net position as of December 31, 2021, 
follows: 

Govemmenta) Business -Type 
Activities Activities Total 

Net investment in capital assets, net of related 
debt S 58.035.249 $ 16,529,382 $ 74,564.631 

Restricted for 
General government 13,928,230 - 13,928,230 
Culture and recreation 11,506,246 - 11,508,246 
Debt service (7,007.733) - (7,007.733) 
Capital projects 9,248.287 - 9,248,287 
Health and welfare 13,417,874 13,417,874 
Highways and streets 11,896,561 - 11,895,561 
Public safety 23,633,017 - 23,633,017 
Sanitation 5,063,763 - 5,063,763 
Economic development and assistance 7,004 - 7,004 
Other purposes 587 - 587 

Unrestricted 4.284,044 12,694,704 16,978,748 
Total net position $ 144,013,129 $ 29,224,086 $ 173,237,215 

IV. OTHER INFORMATION 

A. RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Parish is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and 
omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters for which the Parish carries commercial insurance including: 
general and auto liability, errors and omissions, professional liability, law enforcement liability, workers compensation, 
and various property policies. 

The Parish is exposed to various nsks of loss related to employee health and medical claims for the employees of the 
Parish. The Parish established a Group Hospitalization Claims Clearing Fund (an internal service fund) to account for 
and finance its uninsured risks of loss. As of December 31. 2021, the Group Hospitalization Claims Clearing Fund 
provides coverage for up to a maximum of $100,000 for each employee's health claims The insurance policy will also 
pay aggregate claims in excess of $3,166,984 for the policy period ending June 30, 2021, Once the aggregate claims 
have exceeded the aggregate amount for the policy period, the insurance policy will pay these excess claims. The 
maximum to be paid on these aggregate claims by the Insurance company is $1,000,000. The Parish purchases 
insurance for claims in excess of coverage provided by the Fund. 

All funds of the Parish participate in the program and make payments to the Group Hospitalization Claims Clearing 
Fund based on estimates of the amounts needed to pay prior and cument year claims. 
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IV. OTHER INFORMATION (Continued) 

A. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 

The claims liability of $425,000 reported in the Fund at December 31, 2021, is based on the requirements of Section 
C50 of the GASB Codification of Governmental and Financial Reporting Standards, which requires that a liability for 
dalms be reported if information prior to the issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is probable that a 
liability has been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonably 
estimated. The result of the process to estimate the claims liability is not an exact amount as it depends on many 
complex factors, such as inflation, changes in legal doctrines, and damage awards. 

Accordingly, claims are reevaluated periodically to consider the effects of inflation, recent claim settlement trends 
(Including frequency and amount of pay-outs), and other economic and social factors. The estimate of the claims 
liability also Includes amounts for incremental claim adjustment expenses related to specific claims 
and other claim adjustment expenses regardless of whether allocated to speciHc claims. Changes in the Fund's 
claims liabilities during the past two years are as follows; 

Unpaid claims, beginning of year 
Incurred claims 
Claim payments 
Unpaid claims, end of year 

Year Ended 
12/31/21 

$ 250,000 
2.251,855 

(2,076,855) 
$ 425,000 

Year Ended 
12/31/20 

$ 290.000 
1.556,183 

(1.596,163) 
$ 250,000 

B. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

The Parish is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently determinable, 
In the opinion of legal counsel the resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial 
condition of the Parish. 

Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor agencies, 
principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims. Including amounts already collected, may constitute a 
liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any. of expenditures that may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be 
determined at this time although the Parish expects such amounts, if any, to be Immaterial. 

C. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS 

The Parish is a participating employer in three cost-sharing defined benefit pension plans. These plans are 
administered by three public employee retirement systems, the Parochial Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana 
(PERS), the District Attorneys" Retirement System (DARS), and the Registrar of Voters Employees' Retirement 
System (ROVERS), Article X, Section 29(F} of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974 assigns the authonty to establish 
and amend benefit provisions of these plans to the State Legislature. Each system is administered by a separate 
board of trustees and all Systems are component units of the State of Louisiana. 

Each of the Systems Issues an annual publicly available financial report that indudes financial statements and 
required supplementary information for the System. These reports may be obtained by writing, calling or downloading 
the reports as follows: 
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IV. OTHER INFORMATION (Continued) 

0. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

PERS; 
7905 Wrenwood Blvd. 
Bston Rouge. LA 70809 
(225)928-1361 
www.persla.org 

PARS; 
164.& Nicholson Drive 
Baton Rouge. LA 70802-&143 
(226) 267-4824 
www.ladars-org 

ROVERS; 
PC Boxl9Sg 
Gonzafes, LA 70707 
(800)510-8515 
www.larovers.com 

Plan Descriptions: 

Parochial Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (PERS) 

The Parochial Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (PERS) Is the administrator of a cost-sharing multiple* 
employer defined benefit pension plan. The System was established and provided by R.S.11:1901 of the Louisiana 
Revised Statute (LRS). The System provides retirement benefits to employees of taxing districts of a parish or any 
branch or section of a parish within the State which does not have th^r own retirement system and which elects to 
become members of the System. The System is composed of two distinct plans, Plan A and Plan B. with separate 
assets and benefit provisions. All employees of the Parish are members of Plan A. 

District Attorneys' Retirement System (PARS) 

The District Attorneys' Retirement System. State of Louisiana is the administrator of a cost-sharing multiple 
employer defined benefit pension plan. The System was established on the first day of August, 1956 and was 
placed under the management of the board of trustees for the purpose of providing retirement allowances and other 
benefits as stated under the provisions of R.S. 11. Chapter 3 for district attorneys and their assistants In each 
parish. 

All persons who are district attorneys of the State of Louisiana, assistant district attorneys in any parish of the State 
of Louisiana, or employed by this retirement system and the Louisiana District Attorneys' Association except for 
elected or appointed officials who have retired from service under any publicly funded retirement system within the 
state and who are currently receiving benefits, shall become members as a condition of their employment; 
provided, however, that in the case of assistant district attorneys, they must be paid an amount not less than the 
minimum salary specified by the board for assistant district attorneys. The projection of benefit payments in the 
calculation of the total pension liability includes all benefits to be provided to current active and inactive employees 
through the System in accordance with the benefit terms and any additional legal agreements to provide benefits 
that are in force at the measurement date. 

Registrar of Voters Employees' Retirement System (ROVERS) 

The System was established on January 1, 1955, for the purpose of providing retirement allowances and other 
benefits as stated under the provisions of R.S. Title 11:2032, as amended, for registrars of voters, their deputies 
and their permanent employees in each parish. The projection of benefit payments in the calculation of the total 
pension liability includes all benefits to be provided to current active and inactive employees through the System in 
accordance with the benefit terms and any additional legal agreements to provide benefits that are In force at the 
measurement date. 
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C. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

Funding PQlicv 

Article X. Section 29(E)(2)(a) of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974 assigns the Legislature the authority to determine 
employee contributions. Employer contributions are actuarially determined using statutorily established methods on 
an annual basis and are constitutionally required to cover the employer's portion of the normal cost and provide for the 
amortization of the unfunded accrued liability. Employer contributions are adopted by ^e Legislature annually upon 
recommendation of the Public Retirement Systems' Aduaria! Committee (PRSAC). 

Contributions to the plans are required and determined by State statute (which may be amended) and are expressed 
as a percentage of covered payroll. The contribution rates in effect for the year ended Decemt«r 31, 2021, for the 
Government and covered employees were as follows: 

Government Employees 
Parochial Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana: 

Plan A 12.25% 9.50% 
District Attorneys' Retirement System 9.50% 8.00% 
Registrar of Voters Employees' Retirement System 18.00% 7.00% 

The contribuQons made to the Systems for the past Uiree ffscal years, which equaled the required contributions for 
each of these years, were as follows; 

December 31, 

2021 2020 2019 
Parochial Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana: 

PlanA $1,204,839 $1,076,620 $ 953,019 
District Attorneys' Retirement System 6.640 1.676 1,103 
Registrar of Voters Employees' Retirement System 5.147 6,163 5,019 

Pension Uabllities. Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions 

The following schedule lists the Government's proportionate share of the Net Pension Liability allocated by each of the 
pension plans based on measurement dates of December 31, 2020, for PERS Plan A, and June 30, 2021. for DARS 
and ROVERS. The Government uses these measurements to record its Net Pension Liability and associated amounts 
as of December 31, 2021, In accordance with GASB Statement 68. The schedule also includes the proportionate 
share allocation rate used at December 31, 2020. along with the change compared to the December 31,2019, rate for 
PERS Plan A. and at June 30, 2021, along with the change compared to the June 30, 2020, rate for DARS and 
ROVERS. The Govemment's proportion of the Net Pension Liability was based on the Agency's contributions to the 
pension plan relative to the contributions of alt participating employers. 
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C. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

Pension Liabilities. Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Reiated to Pensions (Continued) 

Governmental Activities; 

Parochial Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana: 

Plan A 

District Attorneys' Retirement System 

Registrar of Voters Employees' Retirement System 

Business-type Activities; 

Parochial Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana: 

Plan A 

Net Pension 
Liability 

(Asset) at 
Measurement 

Date 

$ (2,008,987) 

21,239 

6,040 

$(1,981,708)" 

Rate at 
Measurement 

Date 

1.327321% 
0.119296% 

0.190394% 

Increase 
(Decrease) to 

Prior Year 
Measurement 

Date 

(0.016370)% 

(0.051750)% 

(0.003100)% 

$ (318,356) 1.327321% (0.016370)% 

The followng schedule lists each pension plan's recognized pension expense plus employer's amortization of change 
in proportionate share and different^s between employer contributions and proportionate share of contributions by the 
Parish for the year ended December 31.2021: 

Pension Expense 
Parochial Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana: 

Plan A 5 279,497 

District Attorneys' Retirement System -14 394 

Registrar of Voters Employees' Retirement System 1 _097 

$ 294,988 

At December 31, 2021, the Parish reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related 
to pensions from the following sources: 

PERSLA other Plans 

Differences between expected and actual 
experience 

Changes of assumptions 

Net difference between projected and actual 
earnings on pervsion plan investroents 

Changes in proportion and differences between 
Employer contributions and proportionate 
share of contributions 

Employer contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date 

Total 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resource 

566,629 

761.434 

1,204,639 
S 2.562,667 

Deferred 
Irrflows of 

Resources 

$ (277,782) 

(4,542,297) 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources 

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources 

8 9,597 S (10,012) 

46,725 

(87,437) 

(12.305) 16,219 

7,084 

(5,979) 

$ (4,832,384) 79,625 S (103,428) 
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IV. OTHER INFORMATION (Continued) 

C. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

Pension Liabilitfes. Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions (Continued) 

Summary totals of deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources by pension plan: 

Parochial Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana: 
Plan A 

District Attomeys' Retirement System 
Registrar of Voters Employees' Retirement System 

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources 

$ 2.562,867 
66.566 
13.059 

Deferred Inflows Of 
Resources 

$ (4.B32.384) 
(66,923) 
(36,505) 

$ 2.642,492 $ (4.935,812) 

The Parish reported a total of $1,211,923 as a deferred outflow of resources related to pension contributions made 
subsequent to each plan's respective measurement period which will be recognized as a reduction in net pension 
liability in the year ended December 31. 2022. The following schedule lists the pension contributions made 
subsequent to the measurement period for each pension plan; 

Subsequent 
Contributions 

Parochial Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana: 
Plan A 

District Attorneys' Retirement System 
Registrar of Voters Employees' Retirement System 

$ 1.204,839 
4,490 
2,594 

s 1,211,923 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred Inflows of resources related to pensions ^AAII 
be recognized as an increase (decrease) In pension expense as follows: 

Year PERSA PARS ROVERS Total 

2022 $ (963,299} S (62) $ (6,800) $ (970,161) 

2023 (328,385) 2,424 (7,017) (332,978) 

2024 (1,440,612) (2.767) (5.647) (1.449.026) 

2025 (742,060) (4,442) (6,576) (753,078) 

2026 - - - -
$ (3.474,356) $ (4,847) $ (26.040) $ (3.505,243) 
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C, DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

Actuarial Assumptions 

A summary of the actuanal methods and assumptions used in determining the total pension liability for each 
pension plan as of December 31, 2020, for PERS and June 30. 2021, for both DARS and ROVERS is as follows; 

PERS DARS ROVERS 
Valuation Data 

Actuarial Cost Uethott 

Actuarial Assumptions: 
Expected Remaining 

Service Lives 

investment Rate 
of Return 

Inflation Rate 

Mortality 

Salary increases 

Cost of Living 
Adjustments 

December 31,2020 
Plan A - Enlry Age Normal Cost 
Plan B' Entry Age Normal Cost 

4 years 

S,40% net of investment expenses 

2.30% per annum 

Pub-2010 Public ReiirBmeni Plans 
Mortality Tabie for Health 
Retirees iT>uiliplled l)y 130% for 
males and 12S% for females 
using MP201G scale for annuitant 
and benefiaary mortalrty. For 
emplcyeea. the Pub-2010 Public 
Retirement Plans Mortality 
Table for Ger^eral Employees 
multiplied by 130% for males and 
125% for females u^ng MP201& 
scale. Pub-2010 Public 
Retirement Plans Mortality Table 
for General Disabled Retirees 
multiplied by 130% for males and 
125% for females using 
MP2018 scale for disabled 
annuitants. 

4.75% - Plan A , 4.25% - Plan B 

The present value of ^lure 
retirement benefits is based on 
benefits currently being paid by 
the System and Includes 
previously granted cost of living 
Increases The present values do 
not include provisions for potential 
future inaeases not yet authorized 
by the floard of Tnjstees 

June 30. 2021 
Entry Age Nomnal Cost 

5 years 

6,10% net of investmetit expenses 

2.30% per annum 

Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans 
Modality Rabte for General 
Above-Median Employees 
multiplied by 115% for males and 
females for ojrrent employees, 
each with full generational 
projection using the MP2019 
scale. Pub-2Q10 Public 
Retirement Plans Mortaliiy Table 
for General Above-Median 
Healthy Retirees multiplied by 
115% lor males and females for 
annuitants and beneficiaries, each 
with full generational projection 
using the MP201d scale PuD20lO 
Public Retirement Plans Mortality 
Table for General Disabled 
Retirees multiplied by 115% for 
males and females for disabled 
retirees. each with full 
generational projections using the 
MPZOISscale. 

5.00% {2.2% Inflation. 2.8% l^eril) 

Only those previously granted. 

June 30, 2021 
Entry Age Normal Cost 

5 years 

6.25% rtei of invesiment 
expenses 

2.30% per annum 

RP-2010 Public Retirement 
Plans Mortality Table for 
general employees multiplied by 
120% for males and 120% for 
females each with full 
generational projection using 
the appropriate MP-2Q19 
improvement scale 
Employees, Annuitant and 
Beneficiaries 
RP-2Q10 Public Retirement 
Plans Mortality Table for 
general disabled retirees 
multiplied by 120% for males 
and 120% for females each with 
full generational projection using 
the appropriate f^P-2019 
improvement scale - Disabled 
Annuitants. 

5.25% 
The present value of future 
retirement benefils Is based on 
benefits currently being paid by 
the System and includes 
previously granted cost of living 
increases. The presertl values 
do not include provisions for 
potential future increases not 
yet authorized by the Board of 
Trustees as they were deemed 
not to be substantively 
automatic. 
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IV. OTHER INFORMATION (Continued) 

C. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

Actuana] Assumptions fContinued) 

The following schedule list the methods used by each of the retirement systems in determining the long term rate of 
return on pension plan investments; 

PERS DARS ROVERS 
The long-term expected rate of 
return on pension plan investments 
was determined using a thangulation 
method which integrated the capital 
asset pricing model (top-down), a 
treasury yield curve approach 
(bottom-up) and an equity building-
block model (bottom-up). Risk 
relums and correlations are 
projected on a forward looking basis 
in equilibrium, in which best 
estimates of expected future real 
rates of return (expected returns, net 
of pension plan investment expense 
and Inflation) are developed for each 
major asset dass, These rates are 
combined to produce the long-term 
expected rate of retum by weighting 
the expected future real rates of 
return by the target asset allocation 
percentage and by adding expected 
inHation of 2.00% and an adjustment 
for the effect of 
rebalancing/diversification. The 
resulting expected long-ierm rate of 
return is 7.00% for the year ended 
December 31,2020. 

The long-term expected rate of 
return ort pension plan 
Investments was determined 
using a building-block method in 
which best-estimate ranges of 
expected future real rates of 
return (expected returns, net of 
pension plan investment 
expense and infatlon) are 
developed for each major asset 
class. These ranges are 
combined to produce the long-
term expected rate of return by 
weighting the expected future 
real rates of retum by the target 
asset aiiocation percentage and 
by adding expected Inflation. The 
resulting long-term rate of return 
is 6-25% for the year ended June 
30. 2021. 

The long-term expected rate of 
return on pension plan 
investments was determined 
using a buildir>g-biock method in 
which best-estimate ranges of 
expected future real rates of 
retum (expected retums, net of 
pension plan investment 
expense, and Inflation) are 
developed for each major asset 
class. These ranges are 
combined to produce the long-
term expected rate of retum by 
weighting the expected future 
real rates of retum by the target 
asset allocation percentage and 
by adding expected inflation. 
The resulting long-term rate of 
retum Is 8.75% for the year 
ended June 30. 2021. 
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IV. OTHER INFORMATION (Continued) 

C. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

Actuarial AssumplJons (Continuedl 

The following table provides a summary of the best estimates of arithmetic/geon^ethc real rates of return for 
each major asset class included In each of the Retirement Systems target asset allocations as of December 
31, 2020 for PERS and as of June 30, 2021 for both OARS and ROVERS: 

Target Allocation Long-Term Expected Real Rate of Return 

Asset Class PERS DARS 
Equities 
Fixed income 
Alternatives 
Real assets 
Cash 

Total 
Inflation 

51.00% 
33.00% 
U,00% 
2.00% 

57.11% 
30.19% 
12.67% 

0.03% 
100% 100% 

ROVERS 
57,50% 
22.50% 
10.00% 
10.00%. 

100% 

PERS DARS 
3.36% 
0.86% 
0-67% 
0.11% 

643% 
094% 
0.89% 

5.00% 
2,00% 

5.80% 
2.45% 

ROVERS 
4.51% 
0.65% 
0.63% 
0,45% 

6,25% 
2,50% 

Expected Arithmetic Nominal Return 7.00% 8-25% 8.75% 

Discount Rate 

The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be 
made at the current contribution rate and that sponsor contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference 
between actuarially determined contribution rates and the member rate. Based on those assumptions, each of the 
pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of 
current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to 
all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. The discount rate used to measure 
the total pension liability for PERS was 6.40% for the year ended December 31, 2020. The discount rate used to 
measure the total pension liability for DARS and ROVERS was 6.10% and 6.25%, respectively for the year ended 
June 30.2021. 
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C. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

Sensitivity of the Employer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Assets to Changes in the Discour>t 
Rate 

The followrng table presents the Government's proportionate share of the Net Pension (MP) Liability (Asset) using the 
discount rate of each Retirement System as weii as what the Govemment's proportionate share of the NP Liability 
(Asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage-point lower or one percentage-point 
higher than the current rate used by each of the Retirement Systems; 

1.0% Decrease 
Current Discount 

Rate 1.0% Increase 
PERS A 

Rates 5.40% 5.40% 7.40% 
Parish's Share of NP Liability (Asset) S 4,879,758 3 (2,327,343) $ (8,363.139) 

DARS 
Rates 5-10% 6.10% 7.10% 
Parish's Share of NP Liability (Asset) $ 104,137 $ 21.239 3 (48,213) 

ROVERS 
Rates 5.25% 6.25% 7.25% 
parish's Share of NP Liability (Asset) $ 34,449 $ 6,040 $ (18,142) 

Payables to the Pension Plan 

The Parish recorded accrued liabilities to each of the Retirement Systems for the year ended December 31, 2021 
mainly due to the accrual for payroll at the end of each of the fiscal years. The amounts due are included in ilabilltles 
under the amounts reported as accounts, salaries and benefits. The balance due to each for the retirement systems 
at December 31 is as follows: 

2021 
Governmental Activities: 

Parochial Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana: 
Plan A 

District Attorneys' Retirement System 
Registrar of Voters Employees" Retirement System 

Business-type Activities: 

Parochial Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana: 
Plan A 

479,506 
1,776 

521 

$ 481.803 

$ 71,757 

71 



St. James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 
December 31, 2021 

IV. OTHER tNFORMATIOK (Continued) 

D. DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN 

The Parish offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with internal Revenue Code 
Section 457. The plan, available to all Paiish employees, permits them to defer a portion of their salary until future 
years. The deferred comperrsatlon is not available to employees until termination, retirement, or unforeseeable 
emergency. 

Effective January 3. 2000, all permanent, full-time employees of the Parish ere eligible to participate in the voluntary 
matching deferred compensation program offered by the Parish. The program provides a yearly matching contribution, 
based on the employee's length of service. The maximum yearly matching contribution by the Parish is $2,000 per 
employee. The Parish's contribution to the plan for the year ended December 31, 2021, was $158,159. 

E, POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS (OPEB) 

General information about the QPE8 Plan 

Plan Description • The Parish provides certain continuing health care benefits for its retired employees. The Parish's 
OPEB Plan Is a single-employer defined benefit OPEB pian administered by the Parish. The authority to establish 
and/or amend the obligation of the employer, employees and retirees rests with the Parish. No assets are 
accumulated In a trust that meets the criteria in Government Accounting Standards Board Codification Section P52 
Pos/emp/oymenf Benefds Other Than Pensions - Reporting for Benefits Not Provided Through Trusts That Meet 
Specified Criteria - Defined Benefit. 

Benefits PTOv/ded- Medical/dental benefits are provided through a self-insured comprehensive health benefit program. 
Full details are contained In the official plan documents. Medical benefits are provided to employees upon retirement 
according to the retirement eligibility provisions are as follows; 30 years of service at any age: age 55 and 25 years of 
service; age 60 and 10 years of service; or, age 65 and 7 years of service. Employees hired on or after January 1, 
2007, have the following retirement eligibility provisions: 30 years of service at any age; age 62 and 10 years of 
service: or age 67 and 7 years of service. 

Employees covered by benefit terms - At December 31, 2021, the following employees were covered by the benefit 
terms: 

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments 31 
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefit payments 
Active employees 184 

21ft 
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E. POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued) 

Total OPEB LlabiJitv 

The parish's total OPEB liability of $12,588,626 was measured as of December 31, 2021, and was determined by en 
actuarial valuation as of that date. 

Actuarial Assumptions and other inputs — The total OPEB ilabllity In the December 31, 2021, actuariai valuation was 
determined using the foHowing actuarial assumptions and other Inputs, applied to all periods included in the 
measurement, unless otherwise specified; 

Inflation 2.5% 
Salary increases 4.0%, including inllaflon 
Discount rate 2.12% annually (beginning of year to determine ADC) 

2.06% annually (as of end of year measurement date) 
Healthcare cost trend rates 5.50% annually 

The discount rate was based on the Bond Buyers' 20 Year General Obligation municipal bond irtdex as of December 
31, 2021, the end of the applicable measurement period. 

Mortality rates were based on the SOA RP-2014 Table Employee/Healthy Annuitant without projectton 

The actuariai assumptions used in the December 31, 2021, valuation were based on the results of ongoing 
evaluations of the assumptions from January 1, 2009, to December 31.2021. 

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability 

S 11,412,100 
Balance at December 31,2020 

Changes for the year: 

Service cost 259,264 

Interest 239,942 

Differences between expected and actual experience 738,402 

Changes in assumptions 127,075 

Benefit payments and net transfers (188,157) 

Netchanges 1,176,526 

Balar>ce at December 31, 2021 $ 12,588,626 

Benefit payments due within one year are estimated to be approximately $200,000 for governmental activities and 
$24,000 for business-type activities of the primary government. 
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E. POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS (OPES) (Continued) 

Changes In theTotai OPEB Liability (continued) 

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate-The following presents the total OPEB liability 
of the Parish, as well as what the Parish's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate 
that is 1-percentage-point lower (1.06%) or 1-percentage-point higher (3.06%) than the current discount rate: 

1.0% Decrease Current Discount 1.0% Increase 
(1.06%) Rate (2.06%) (3.06%) 

Total OPEB liability $ 15,214,025 $ 12,588,626 $ 10,562,156 

Sensitivity of the total OPES liabi/ity to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates - The following presents the total 
OPEB liability of the Parish, as well as what the Parish's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using 
healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower (4.5%) or l-percentage-point higher (6.5%) than the 
current healthcare trend rates: 

1.0% Decrease CurrentTrend 1.0% Increase 
(4,5%) (5.5%) (6.5%) 

Total OPEB Icabiltty $ 10.817,065 $ 12,588.626 $ 14,904,624 

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB 

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Parish recognized OPEB expense of $882,465, At December 31, 
2021, the Parish reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred Inflows of resources related to OPEB 
from the following sources: 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows 
of Resources of Resources 

Differences between expected and actual experience 
Changes In assumptions 

Total 

$ 890,328 $ (216,161) 
1,800,105 (619,922) 

$ 2,690,433 $ (836,083) 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be 
recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 

Years Ending December Si: 
2022 S 323.733 
2023 323,733 
2024 323,733 
2025 329,366 
2026 156,271 

Thereafter 397,514 
S 1.B54.35Q 

74 



St, James Parish 
Convent. Louisiana 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 
December 31,2021 

IV. OTHER INFORMATION (Continued) 

F. PROPERTY TAX ABATEMENT 

The local government is subject to certain property tax abatements granted by the Louisiana State Board of 
Commerce and Industry (the "State Board"), a state entity governed by board members representing major 
economic groups and gubernatorial appointees. Abatements to which the government may be subject include those 
issued for property taxes under the Industrial Tax Exemption Program ("ITEP") and the Restoration Tax Abatement 
Program ("RTAP"). In addition, the locaf government has the authority to grant sales tax rebates to taxpayers 
pursuant to the Enterprise Zone Tax Rebate Program C'EZ Program'). For the year ending December 31, 2021, the 
government participated in the Industrial Tax Exemption Program and the Enterprise Zone Tax Rebate Program. 

Under the ITEP, as authorized by Article 7, Secfion 21(F) of the LouisianB Constiivdon and Executive Order 
Number JBE 2016-73, companies that qualify as manufacturers can appfy to the State Board for a property tax 
exemption on all new property, as defined, used in the manufacturing process. Under the ITEP, companies are 
required to promise to expand or build manufacturing facilities in Louisiana, with a minimum Investment of $5 
miflion. The exemptions are granted for a 5-year term and are renewable for an additfonal 5-year term upon 
approval by the State Board. In the case of the local government, these state-granted abatements have resulted In 
reductions of property taxes, which the tax assessor administers as a temporary reduction in the assessed value of 
the property involved. The abatement agreements stipulate a percentage reduction of property taxes, which can be 
as much as 100 percent. The local government may recapture abated taxes If a company fails to expand facilities 
or otherwise fails to fulfill its commitments under the agreement 

Under the EZ Program, as authorized by Louisiana Revised Statute 51:1787, companies can apply for a state or 
local sales tax refund on eligible spending related to a project that creates a minimum number of permanent full-
time jobs within certain specified geographic areas or certain targeted groups. To qualify, a company must either 
create a minimum of 5 net new full-time jobs within 24 months of the project start date or increase their current 
nationwide workforce by 10% within the firet 12 months. These new employees must be from one of four targeted 
groups: 1) residents living within certain geographic areas; li) people receiving an approved form of public 
assistance; Hi) people lacking basic skills - a person performing below a ninth grade proficiency in reading, writing 
and math; or iv) people unemployable by traditional standards, The company must certify that their new employees 
fall into one of the four targeted groups. Companies accepted into the EZ Program must document the sales taxes 
paid on qualifying purchases during the project. Upon completion of the project, the company must submit a 
request to receive a rebate of those sales taxes paid on qualifying purchases. The local government is authorized 
to establish the percent of the sales tax subject to the rebate. A local government is strictly prohibited from rebating 
any sales tax that is dedicated to the repayment of bonded indebtedness or dedicated to schools. 

Taxes abated for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021. were as foilows: 

Approximate Amount of 
Tax Abatement/Refund Program TaxesAbated During 

the Fiscal Year 
Industrial Tax Exemption Program $ 10,857,000 
Enterprise Zone Tax Rebate Program 161,000 
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G. HURRICANE IDA 

On August 29. 2021, Hurricane Ida made landfall on the Louisiana coast near Port Fourchon as a Category 4 
hurricane. This caused extensive damage through southeast Louisiana. As a result, the Parish experienced significant 
damage amounting to over $8 million. Property Insurance maintained by the Parish is expected to cover more than $2 
million of the total damage costs, of which over $800,000 has been received and recorded as other revenue for the 
year ended December 31, 2021. Additionally, the Parish has accrued an additional $1.2 million for insurance claims 
submitted The Parish retains responsibility for the remaining $6 million. The Parish intends to seek reimbursement for 
this amount from Federal Emergency Management Agency's (FEMA) Disaster Public Assistance Grant at a rate of 
100% of eligible costs incurred during the first 45 days after Ida's landfall and at a rate of 90% of eligible costs incurred 
after the first 45 days. 

H. EQUILON ENTERPRISES, LLC 

Equllon Enterprises, LLC, the Parish's largest property and sales tax paying entity, decommissioned its oil refinery in 
Convent. Louisiana during 2021. The closure had widespread impact that affected 700 refinery employees, 400 
contract workers, and many support businesses. Approximately 27% of the Parish-wide ad valorem taxable value is 
now at risk with an estimated $6 million in tax losses spread over the next several years. However, due to the Parish's 
access to the Mississippi River. It is anticipated that these losses will be remedied by new business seeking to build 
along the river. 

I. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

Water rale Increases went into effect on January 1. 2022. The utility fund had been losing money on water sales. 
These losses were being subsidized with gas sales. The Council corrected this situation and also allowed for future 
Increases in water rates which will be linked to the consumer price index (CPl) 

In February 2022, the Parish borrowed SB mfllion from First American Bank at a rate of 1.95% as a means to cover the 
extensive costs brought on by Hurricane Ida while pending their reimbursement from insurance and FEMA. The debt 
is secured by the anticipated FEMA revenues. 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through the date that the financial statements were available to be 
issued. June 27. 2022, and determined that no other events occurred that require disclosure. Events occurring after 
this date have not been evaluated for inclusion In the financial statements. 

J. SELECTED DISCLOSURES FOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS 

Financial reporting standards require footnote disclosures on discretely presented component units considering both 
the units' significance relative to the total discretely component units and the nature and significance of the units' 
relationship to the primary govemment (the Parish), As such, the following disclosures are presented: 

1. SL James Parish Hospital 

Deposits 

State law requires collateralization of all deposits with federal depository Insurance and other acceptable collateral in 
specific amounts. The Hospital's deposit policy for custodial credit risk requires compliance with the provisions of state 
law. which are to be insured or collateralized by U.S. govemment securities held by the pledging financial institution's 
trust department In the name of the Hospital 

Custodial Credit Risk - Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that m the event of a bank failure, the Hospital's 
deposits may not be returned to them. As of March 31. 2021. $8,303,353 of the Hospital's bank balance totaling 
$6,836,723 was exposed to custodial credit risk. At each institution, $250,000 of deposits was secured by federal 
deposit insurance coverage, which was not exposed to custodial credit risk. The remain:ir>g deposits, which were 
exposed to custodial credit risk, were secured by the pledge of securities owned by the fiscal agent bank, 
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J. SELECTED DISCLOSURES FOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (Continued) 

1« St James Parish Hospital (Continued) 

Investments 

The Hospital's investments generally are reported at fair value. The Hospital categorizes its fair value measurements 
within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on 
valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for 
identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other obsen/able inputs; Level 3 inputs are signifcant unobservabfe 
inputs. 

The Hospital had the following recurring fair value measurements as of March 31,2021. 

investments by Fair Value Level 3/31/2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 
U.S Agencies $ 14.293.468 $ 2.125.6S8 $ 12.167,810 $ 

Total S 14.293.468 S 2,125.658 S 12.167,810 $ -

The Hospital had the following investment maturities as of March 31.2021. 

Investment Maturities {in Years) 
Carrying 

Investment Type Amount Less than 1 1-5 6-1D More than 10 

U.S Agencies S 14,293.268 $ 5.699,806 $ 8.393,662 _S - $ • 
Total S 14,293.268 $ 5,899,806 $ 8,383,662 3 - $ 

Interest Rate Risk - The Hospital's investment policy does not limit investment maturities as a means of managing 
Its exposure to fair value losses arising from changing interest rates. 

Credit Risk - The Hospital's investment policy, in compliance with Louisiana Revised Statute 33:2955, allows the 
Hospital to invest In United States Treasuries, United States Agency securities, and certificates of deposit. As of 
March 31, 2021, the Hospital's investment in U.S. Agencies were rated Aaa by Moody's Investors Service and AA-i-
by Standard & Poor's. 

Conceritration of Credit Risk-The Hospital's Investment policy does not limit the amount the Hospital may invest In 
any one Issuer. More than 5 percent of the Hospital's investments are In the Federal Credit Bank, the Federal 
Home Loan Bank, the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, the Federal Agricultural Mortgage Corporation, 
and the Federal National Mortgage Association. These Investments are 10 percent, 40 percent, 40 percent, 4 
percent and 6 percent of total investments, respectively at March 31, 2021. 

Patient Accounts Receivable 

Patient accounts receivable for the Hospital at March 31.2021. consist of the following: 

Gross patient receivables $ 5.QB8.969 
Less: allowance for contractual adjustments and 

doubtful accounts (2.972.169) 
Net patient receivables S 2,116,800 
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J. SELECTED DISCLOSURES FOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (Continued) 

1. St James Parish Hospital (Continued) 

Restricted Assets and Internaliy Designated Assets 

The amounts reported as restricted assets for St. James Parish Hospital are comprised of cash held by the trustee 
bank for debt service on behalf of the Hospital related to their required long-term debt In addition, internally 
designated funds for capital acquisitions are set aside under the control of the Board of Ccommissioners who may, at 
its discretion, use these funds for other purposes. 

The restricted assets and intamally designated assets, which consist of cash, certificates of deposits, and U.S> 
Agencies, as of March 31,2021. are as follows: 

Held by trustee for debt service 
Sinking fund 
Reserve fund-rural development 
Contingency fund 
Rural development transfer account 

Internally designated for capital acquisitions 
Total restricted assets and internally designated assets 

S 137 
1,107,063 

712,396 
68,711 

14.293,468 
$ 16,181,775 

Capital Assets 
Activity for St. James Parish Hospital for the year ended March 31,2021, was as follows: 

March 31.2P20 Additions Disposals March 31.2021 

Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land £ 1480.915 S s $ 1,480.915 

Construction in progress 1,180,421 4,521,948 (4,754,092) 948,277 

Total capital assets not being depreciated 2,661,336 4,521.948 (4,754,092) 2.429,192 

Capital assets being depreciated: 

Buiiding and improvements 24,702,529 512,612 - 25,215,141 

Equipment 10,720.866 4,524,067 . 15,244,933 

Total capital assets being depreciated 35,423,395 5,036.679 40,460,074 

Less: Total accumulated depreciation (19,365,663) (1.459,878) (21,325,541) 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 15,537,732 3,576,801 19,134,533 

Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 18,219,068 $ 8.098.749 3(4,754.092) $ 21,563,725 

For the year ended March 31. 2021. depreciation expense was $1,459,878, respectively 
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J. SELECTED DISCLOSURES FOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (Continued) 

1. St. James Parish Hospital (Continued) 

Long-Term Liabilities 

Long-term liability activity for St James Parish Hospital for the year ended March 31,2021, was as follows; 

Balance Balance Due Within 
March 31,2020 Additions Retirements March 31,2021 One Year 

Revenue Bonds 
Series 2008 R-1 $ 6.478,810 $ $ (123.172) $ 6.355,638 $ 128,792 
Series 2014 5,005,310 (474.842) 4,530,476 439,723 

Total Debt $ 11,484,128 $ $ (698.014) $ 10,086,114 $ 618,515 

On July 2, 2008, the Hospital Issued $7,500,000 of Revenue Bonds, Series 2008 R-1, as a single, fully-registered 
bond issue, payable through July 2, 2048, at an interest rate of 4.125%. 

On June 4, 2014, the Hospital issued $7,470,000 of Hospital Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2014, as a single, 
fully-registered bond issue, payable through June 2,2029, at an interest rate of 3.09% to current refund $8,185,000 of 
outstanding 2008 Series A-D bonds with an average interest rate of 7,80% The proceeds of $7,470,000, together with 
intemal funds of $1,856,370 (which Includes monies in the existing sinking fund, a call premium, a forward fee, and 
accrued interest), were used to secure the repayment of the outstanding 2008 Series bonds. As a result, the 2003 
Series bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability for those bonds has been removed from the general long-
term debt account group. 

The current refunding resulted In a difference between the reacquisltion price and the net carrying amount of the old 
debt of $1,176,708. This difference, reported in the accompanying financial statements as a deferred outflow of 
resources, is being charged to operations through the year 2030 using the straight-line method. For the year ended 
March 31.2021, the deferred amount on refunding totaled $640,653, respectively. 

The bonds are collateralized by a pledge of the Hospital Service District's revenue, land, building and Improvements, 
and personal property thereon. Under the terms of the revenue note indenture, the Hospital is required to maintain 
certain deposits with a trustee. Such deposits are included in restricted and internally designated assets in the 
statements of net position. These funds are maintained at the Trustee and require monthly funding by the Hospital 
Service District. The revenue note indenture also requires that the Hospital satisfy certain measures of financial 
performance as long as Uie notes are outstanding. The Hospital was In compliance with all covenants of its 
outstanding bond issues at March 31, 2021. 
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St. James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 
December 31, 2021 

IV. OTHER INFORMATION (Continued) 

J. SELECTED DISCLOSURES FOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (Continued) 

1. St James Parish Hospital (Continued) 

Long-Term Liabilities (Continued) 

Scheduled interest and principal payments on long-term debt at March 31, 2021, are as follows; 

Revenue Bonds 

FYE March 31 Principai Interest 

2022 $ 618,515 $ 392,815 
2023 639,278 372,052 
2024 660,750 350,581 
2025 682,954 328,376 
2026 705,918 305,412 

2027-2031 2,734,047 1,182,673 
2032-2036 1,057.307 885,253 
2037-2041 1,299,034 643,526 
2042-2046 1,596,028 410,921 
2047-2049 842,283 84.008 

$10,886,114 $ 4.955,617 

Pension Plan 

Plan Descrintlon 

The Hospital is a member of the Parochial Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana ("PERS" or the 'System"). B 
cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. All full-time, permanent employees working at least 28 
hours per week who are paid wholly or in part from the Hospital's funds are eligible to participate in PERS Pian B 
(Tian B"), 

Under PERS Pian B, any member can retire providing he/she meets one of the following: 

For employees hired prior to January 1,2007: 
1, Age 55 with thirty (30) years of creditable service 
2, Age 60 with a minimum often (10) years of creditable service 
3- Age 66 with a minimum of seven (7) years of creditable service 

For employees hired after January 1, 2007: 
1. Age 55 with thirty (30) years of service 
2. Age 62 with ten (10) years of service 
3. Age 67 with seven (7) years of service 

Generally, the monthly amount of the retirement allowance for any member of Plan B shaJI consist of an amount equal 
to two (2) percent of the member's final average compensation multiplied by his years of creditable service. However, 
under certain conditions, as outlined in the statutes, the benefits are limited to specified amounts. Ttie System also 
provides death and disability benefits. Benefits are established by state statute. 
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St. James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued} 
December 31, 2021 

IV. OTHER INFORMATION (Continued) 

J. SELECTED DISCLOSURES FOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (Continued) 

i. St James Parish Hospital (Continued) 

Pension Plan (Continued) 

Plan Description (Continued) 

The System issues a publicly available financial report that Includes fInandaJ statements and required supplementary 
information. 

That report may be obtained by writing to the Parochial Employees' Retirement System, Post Office Box 14619, Baton 
Rouge, Louisiana 70898^19, accessed via Internet at www.persla.gov, or calling (225) 928-1361. 

Contributions 

Contributions to Plan B include one-fourth of one percent of the taxes shown to be coiiectibie by the tax roils of each 
parish except Orleans and East Baton Rouge parishes. Plan B members are required to contribute 3 percent of their 
annual covered salary. The Hospital is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The current rate is 7.5 
percent of annual covered salary for the year ended March 31, 2021. As provided by LRS 11:103, the employer 
contributions are determined by actuarial valuation and are subject to change each year based on the results of the 
valuation of the prior year. The Hospital's contributions to Plan B for the year ended March 31, 2021 were $757,766. 

Net Pension Asset 

At March 3t, 2021, the Hospital reported a net pension asset of $2,237,010 for its proportionate share of the net 
pension asset. The net pension asset was measured as of December 31, 2020, and was determined by actuarial 
valuation as of that date. The Hospital's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the 
Hospital's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all 
municipalities, actuarially determined. At December 31,2020, the Hospital's proportion was 8.713610%. 

For the year ended March 31, 2021, the Hospital recognized pension expense of $757,766. At March 31. 2021, the 
Hospital reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to its pension from tiie 
following sources: 

Differences between expected and actual experience 
Net difference between projected and actual earnings 

on pension plan invesbnents 
Changes In assumptions 
Changes in proportion and differences between Hospital 

change in proportion 
Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date 

Deferred Outflows of 
Resources 

Deferred Inflows of 
Resources 

s 141.897 3 i 64.174 

383,105 
2,643774 

8,473 

180,438 

12,038 

s 713,913 $ 2.719.9B6 

81 

http://www.persla.gov


St. James Parish 
Convent. Louisiana 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 
December 31, 2021 

IV. OTHER INFORMATION (Continued) 

J. SELECTED DISCLOSURES FOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (Continued) 

1. St James Parish Hospital (Continued) 

Pension Plan (Continued) 

Net Pension Liabilitv (Continued) 

1n the /ear ended March 31. 2021, $180,438 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting 
from the Hospltars contributions subsequent to the measurement date wlll be recognized as an addition (reduction) of 
the net pension liability. 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions wlll 
be recognized as an expense In pension expense/(benefit) as follows: 

Year Ending Amount 
2022 $ (662,944) 
2023 (189,644) 
2024 (895,404) 
2025 (438,519) 
Total $ (2.186,511) 

Actuarial Assumptions 

A summary of the actuarial methods and assumptions used in determining the net position liablli^ as of March 31, 
2021, is as fbllows: 

Valuation Date Deoember 31,2020 

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal 

Investment Return 6.40% (net of Investment Expense including Inflation) 

Expected Remain Service Life 4 Years 

Projected Salary Increase 4,25% (1.95% Merit / 2,30% Inflation) 

Cost of Living Adjustments The present value of future retirement benefits is based on benefits 
cuirentty being paid by the System and includes previously granted 
cost of living increases. The present values do not include provisions 
'for potential future increases not yet authonzed by the Board of 
Trustees-

Moftalriy PUB-2Q10 Public Retirement Plans Mortality Table for General 
Employees selected for employees Pub-2010 Public Retirement 
Plans Mortality Table for Healthy Retirees were selected for annuitants 
and beneficiaries. PUB-2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortality Table 
for General Disabled Retirees was selected for dlsab^d annuitants. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 
December 31. 2021 

IV. OTHER INFORMATiON (Contmued] 

J, SELECTED DISCLOSURES FOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (Continued) 

-f. SL James Parish Hospital (Continued) 

Pension Plan (Continued) 

Actuariai Assumptions (Continued) 

Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class inciuded in the System's target asset 
allocation as of December 31,2020, are summarized in the following table: 

Long-Term Expected Portfoiro 
Asset Class Target Asset Allocation Real Rate of Return 

Fixed Income 33% 0.86% 
Equity 51% 3.36% 
Alternatives 14% 0.67% 
Real Assets 2% 0.11% 

100% 5.00% 
Inflation 2.00% 
Expected Arithmetic Normal Return 7.00% 

The long-term expected rate of retum on pension plan investments was determined using a trianguiation method 
which integrated the CAPM pricing model (top-down), a treasury yield curve approach (bottom-up), and an equity 
building-block model (bottom-up). Risk retum and correlations are projected on a forward looking basis in equilibrium, 
in which best estimates of expected future real rates of retum (expected retums, net of pension plan investment 
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset ciass. These rates are combined to produce the long-term 
expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage 
and by adding expected inflation of 2.00% and an adjustment for the effect of rebalancing/diversification. The resulting 
expected long-term rate of retum is 7.00%, for the year ended December 31, 2020. 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.40% for Plan B. The projection of cash flows used 
to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plart members will be made at the current contribution 
rates and that contributions from participating employers and non-employer contributing entities will be made at the 
actuarially determined contribution rates, which are calculated in accordance with relevant statutes and approved by 
the Board of Trustees and the Public Retirement System's Actuarial Committee. Based on those assumptions, the 
System's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current 
plan members. Ttterefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all 
periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 
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St. James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

Notes to the Financiai Statements (Continued) 
December 31,2021 

IV. OTHER INFORMATION (Continued) 

J. SELECTED DISCLOSURES FOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (Continued) 

1. St James Parish Hospital (Continued) 

Pension Plan (Continued) 

Sertsitivity of the Hospital's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Asset tLtabllitvt to Changes in the Discount Rate 

The following presents the net pension asset (liability) of the Hospital as of March 31, 2021, using the discount rate of 
6,40%: 

1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase 
(5.40%) Rate (6.40%) (7.40%) 

Hosprtal's proportionate share of the 
net pension asset (liability) $ (2,091,299) S 2,237>01Q £ 5,853,894 

Patient Service Revertue 

The Hospital has agreements with third-party payors providing payments to the Hospital at amounts different from the 
Hospital's established rates. A summary of the payment arrangements with major third-party payors foiiov^s: 

Medicare - Since obtaining critical access designation, inpatient and outpatient sen/ices rendered to Medicare 
programs beneficidhes are reimbursed under cost reimbursement methodologies. The Hospital Is reimbursed by the 
Medicare fiscal intermediary at a tentative Interim rate with final settlement determined with the submission of annual 
cost reports and audits. The Hospital's Medicare cost reports have been filed with the Medicare fiscal intermediary 
through March 31, 2021. Desk reviews have been performed on reporU issued through March 31,2019. 

Medicaid - Inpatient and outpatient services rendered to Medicaid program beneficiaries are reimbursed under a cost 
reimbursement methodology. The Hospital is reimbursed at a tentative rate with final settlement determined after 
submission of annual cost reports by the Hospital and audits thereof by the Medicaid fiscal Intermediary. The 
Hospital's Medicaid cost reports have been filed with the fiscal intermediary through March 31, 2020. A desk review 
has been performed on Medicaid reports issued through March 31,2016. 

The Hospital has also entered Into payment agreements with certain commercial insurance carriers, health 
management organizations, and prefemed provider organizations. The basis for payment to the Hospital under these 
agreements includes prospectively determined rates per discharge, discounts from established charges, prospectively 
determined daily rates, and Medicare fee schedules. 

The Hospital is located In Lutcher, Louisiana and grants credits without personal collateral to its patients and their 
Insurance companies, most of whom are residents in the area. The mix of patient service revenues as of March 31, 
2021, is as follows: 

Medicare 15% 
Medicare Advantage 31 
Medicaid 24 
Commercial Providers 27 
Self-pay 3 

100% 
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December 31. 2021 

IV. OTHER INFORMATION (Continued) 

J. SELECTED DISCLOSURES FOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (Continued) 

1. Si James Parish Hospital (Continued) 

Insurance Programs 

Risk Management 

The Hospital is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of. damage to. and destruction of assets; errors 
and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Hospital is a member of two separate trust funds 
established by the Louisiana Hospital Association that encompasses self-insurance of (1) hospital professional liability 
and comprehensive general liability, and (2) statutory workers' compensation. The Hospital carries commercial 
insurance for all other risk of loss. 

The trust funds for professional liability/comprehensive general liabiiity and statutory workers' compensation are 
pooling arrangements whereby there is a sharing of risk among the participants of the trust funds. The Hospital reports 
its premiums as insurance expenditures and expenses these premiums over the pro rata periods involved. 

The Hospital is self-insured for Its employees' health claims. The Hospital has commercial insurance that provides 
coverage for claims in excess of certain self-insured limits. The Hospital accrued approximately $200,000 at March 31, 
2021. 

The following table summarized the changes to the self-Insured Irability; 

Beginning of Current year claims 
Year ended fiscal year and change In Balance at 
March 31, liability estimate Claims paid fiscal year end 

2021 $ 280.51Q $ 1,256,676 $(1,337,186) $ 200,000 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION OTHER 
THAN MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 



MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

General Fund 

The General Fund is the principal fund of the Parish and Is used to account for resources traditionally associated with 
government which are not required legally or by sound financial management to be accounted for in another fund. 

Courthouse, Jail, and Public Buildings Maintenance Fund 

The Courthouse. Jail, and Public Buildings Maintenance Fund accounts for the operation and maintenance of the public 
buildings in the Parish. Financing is provided by property taxes and state revenue sharing. 

Paiishwide Drainage Maintenance Fund 

The Parishwide Drainage Maintenance Fund accounts for the operations and maintenance of ail Parish drainage projects; 
Major means of financing is provided by property taxes and state revenue sharing. 

Solid Waste Disposal Fund 

The Solid Waste Disposal Fund accounts for the operation of soiid waste management and disposal. Financing is provided 
by one quarter of one percent sales tax imposed parishwide and user fees charged to the Parish residents 

Public Safety Trust Fund 

The Pubiic Safety Trust Fund provides funds to assist In paying for the cost of providing ambulance services to the 
residents of the parish. Financing is provided by property taxes. 
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St. James Parish 

Convent, Louisiana 

General Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Exper^ditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 
Budget and Actual 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Budget 

Variar>ce with 

Final Budget 

Posititve 
Original Final Actual (Negative) 

Revenues: 

Taxes: 

Property £ 3,962,600 $ 4,354,500 S 4,686,966 3 332,466 

Voluntary payments In lieu of taxes 500.000 550,000 583,108 38.108 
Sales and use 1,767,800 T350,10Q 1,415,132 65,032 

Alcoholic beverages (beef) 19,300 18,400 19,036 636 

Licenses and permits 868.300 801,100 635,743 34,648 

Intergovernmental: 

Federal 22,900 37,300 259,285 221,985 

State 411,000 477,900 667,502 189.602 

Local 158.100 115,600 110,487 (5,113) 

Investment earnings (losses) 77,300 9,400 (35,450) (44,850) 

Other 685,800 1,105,400 1,461,617 356,217 

Total revenues 8,473.900 8.819,700 10,008,431 1,188,731 

Expenditures: 

Current: 
General government 5,171,300 5.159,600 6,285,875 (126,275) 

Public safety 911,000 1,164,000 1.013.606 150,394 

Public housing 2,400 800 256 544 
Health and welfare 2,193,600 2.259,500 2,274,223 (14.723) 

Economic development 556,800 373,900 332.260 41,640 

Capital outlay 662.200 440.000 397,899 42,101 

Total expenditures 9,517,300 9,397,800 9,304,119 93,681 

Excess of revenues over (under) 

expenditures before other financing sources (uses) (1,043,400) (578.100) 704.312 1,282,412 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 1,200,000 - - -
Transfers out (1,539,600) (1,411,800) (1,226,910) 184,890 

Total other financing sources (uses) (339,600) (1,411.800) (1.226,910) 184,890 

Net change in fund balance (1.383,000) (1,989.900) (522,598) 1,467,302 

Fund balance, beginning of year 14,705,022 16,271,532 16.271,532 
Fund balance, end of year S 13,322,022 $ 14,281.632 $ 15.748.934 £ 1,467,302 

EXHIBIT A-10 
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St. James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

Courthouse, Jait, and Public Buildings Maintenance Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended December 31. 2021 

Variarice with 
Final Budget 

Budget Positive 
Origin aJ Final Actual (Negative) 

Revenues: 
Taxes; 

Property $ 2,762,100 $ 3,031.600 $ 3,263,069 S 231,469 

Intergovemmental; 

Federal - 3,300 3,322 22 

State 13,700 14,000 13,890 (110) 

Local - 300 324 24 
Investment earnings (losses) 61,600 8,100 (58,565) (66,665) 

Other - 400 611,759 811,359 

Total revenues 2,837,400 3.057,700 3.833,799 776,099 

Expenditures: 
Current; 

General government 2,169.100 2,702,900 2,325.843 377,057 
Public safety 144.000 168.100 94,087 74,013 

Capital outlay 400,000 366,600 281,039 85,581 

Total expenditures 2,713.100 3.237,600 2.700.969 536,631 

Excess of revenues over (under) 
expenditures before other financing sources (uses) 124,300 (179,900) 1,132,830 1,312,730 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers out (1.400,000) (500,000) (44,185) 455,815 

Total other financing sources (uses) (1.400,000) (500,000) (44,185) 455,815 

Net change in fund balance (1,275,700) (679,900) 1,088,645 1,768,545 

Fund balance, beginning of year 11,913,997 12,822,571 12,822,571 _ 

Fund balance, end of year $ 10,638,297 $ 12,142,671 $ 13,911,216 £ 1,768,545 

EXHIBITA-11 
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St. James Parish 
Convent. Louisiana 

Parishwide Drainage Maintenance Fund 
Schedule of Revenues. Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended December 31,2021 

Budget 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
Original Final Actual (Negative) 

Revenues: 
Taxes: 

Property $ 1,867,300 $ 1,831,200 $ 1,971,020 $ 139,820 
IntergDvernmentai: 

Federal 17,200 934,600 688.984 (245,616) 
State 1,016,900 17,300 17.174 (126) 
Local - 15,200 12.694 (2,506) 

Investment earnings (losses) 37,500 3,900 (24,647) (28,547) 
Other - 235,300 256.357 21,057 

Total revenues 2,738,900 3.037,500 2,921,582 (115,918) 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Public safety 3.901,900 4,687,000 3,862,057 824,943 
Capital outlay 1,020,000 1,258,200 1,006,775 251,425 

Total expenditures 4,921,900 5,945,200 4,868,832 1,076.368 

Excess of revenues over (under) 
expenditures before other f nancing sources (uses) (2,183,000) (2,907,700) (1,947,250) 960,450 

Net change in fund balance (2,183,000) (2,907,700) (1,947,250) 960.450 

Fund balance, beginning of year 4,772,672 7,055,922 7,055,922 _ 

Fund balance, end of year s 2.589.672 $ 4,148,222 $ 5,108,672 $ 960.450 

EXHIBIT A-12 
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St. James Parish 
Convent. Louisiana 

Solid Waste Disposal Fund 
Schedule of Revenues. Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended December 31.2021 

Budget 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Posltltve 
Original Final Actual (Negative) 

Revenues: 
Taxes: 

Sales and use S 1,767,500 $ 1,350,100 $ 1,415,132 $ 65,032 

Intergovernmental: 

Federal - 802.500 2,104,310 1,301,810 

LocaJ - - 310 310 

Charges for sen/ices 574,400 578.900 579,055 155 

Investment earnings (losses) 26,200 2,800 (22,716) (25,516) 

Other 15,000 30,000 60,830 30,830 

Total revenues 2,383.400 2,764.300 4,136,921 1.372.621 

Expenditures: 

Current: 

Public safety 215,600 315,500 266,648 48,852 

Sanitation 1,796.500 4,816,500 3,912,839 903,661 

Capital outlay 60,000 180,000 15,000 165,000 

Total expenditures 2,072,100 5.312,000 4,194,437 1,117,513 

Excess of rever>ues over (under) 

expenditures before other financing sources (uses) 311,300 (2,547,700) (57,566) 2,490,134 

Other financing uses: 

Transfers out (266,000) (97,200) (97,213) (13) 

Total other financing uses (266,000) (97,200) (97,213) (13) 

Net change in fund balance 45,300 (2,644,900) (154,779) 2.490,121 

Fund balance, beginning of year 4,865,823 5,038,489 5,038,489 _ 

Fund balance, end of year S 4,911,123 $ 2,393,589 $ 4,833,710 $ 2.490,121 

EXHIBITA-13 
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St. James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

Public Safety Trust Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual 

For the Year Ended December 31,2021 

Budget 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Posititve 

Original Final Actual (Negative) 

Revenues: 

Taxes: 
Property 

Investment earnings (losses) 

S 2.189,700 E 

5,300 

2,406,900 

1,100 

E 2.590,663 
(1,404) 

$ 183.763 

(2.504) 

Total revenues 2.195,000 2.408,000 2,589,259 181,259 

Expenditures: 

Current: 
Public safety 1,376,000 973,600 642,260 336.340 

Total expenditures 1.376,800 973,600 642,260 336,340 

Excess of revenues over expenditures 

before other financing sources (uses) 818,200 1.429,400 1,946,999 517,599 

Other financing uses: 

Transfers out 

Total other financing sources uses 

(1,917,900) 

(1,917,900) 

(3,270.500) 

(3,270,500) 

(3,625,730) 

(3,625,730) 

(355,230) 

(355,230) 

Net change in hjnd balance (1,099,700) (1,841,100) (1,678,731) 162,369 

Fund balance, beginning of year 3,121,116 2,859,383 2,859.383 _ 

Fund balance, end of year E 2,021.416 E 1.018,283 $ 1,180,652 $ 162,389 

EXHIBIT A-14 
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SI. Jaimes Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

Schedule of Changes in Total Other Postempioyment Bene^ts Liability and Related Ratios 
December 31, 2021 

Financial statement reporting date 

Measurement date 

Total OPEB Liability 

December 31, 2018 December 31,2019 December 30. 2020 December 31, 2(^1 

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2019 December 3D. 2020 December 31, 2021 

Service cost S 191,373 $ 164,616 $ 225,562 $ 259,264 

Interest 315,976 344,095 300,901 239,942 

Difference between expected and actual experience (31,457) 195,429 (323,972) 738,402 

Changes of assumptions (895,456) 2,091,326 295,806 127,075 

Benefit payments (469,893) (276,548) (135,941) (188,157) 

Net change in total OPEB liabiiity (889.457) 2,518,918 362,356 1.176.526 

Total OPEB liability - beginning 9.420.203 8,530,826 11,049.744 11,412.100 

Total OPEB [lability - ending $ 8,530,826 $ 11.049,744 £ 11.412,100 £ 12,588,626 

Covered-employee payroll E 6,683,335 $ 6,950,668 £ 7,726,745 $ 8,035,815 

Net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered'employee payroll 127.64% 158-97% 147-70% 156.66% 

77i/s schedule is Intended to report information for 10 years. Additionaf years wKl be dispfayed as they become avai/ab/e. 

EXHIBIT A-15 
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St. James Parish 

Convent. Louisiana 

Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability for the Retirement Systems 

For the Year Ended December 31. 2021 (*) 

Pension 
Plan Year (*) 

Empioyer's 
Proportion of 

the Net 
Perjsion 

Liability (Asset) 

Employer's Proportior^ate Stiare of 
the Net Pension Liability (Asset) 

Governmental Business - Type Employer's 
Activities Activities Covered Payroll 

Employers 
Proportionate Share 
of the Net Pension 

Liability (Asset) as a 
Percentage of its 

Employers Covered 
Payroll 

Plan Fiduciary Net 
Position as a 

Percentage of the 
Total Pension 

Liability 

Parochial Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana Plan A 

2021 1.3273% S (2,008,987) $ (318,356) ¥ 8.790,364 -26.4761% 103.99% 

2020 1.3110% 52,407 9,305 8,287,107 0.7447% 99.89% 

2019 1.3153% 4,956,314 881,291 8.085.694 72.1967% 88.86% 

2018 1.2758% (810,186) (136,786) 7,852,894 -12.0589% 101.98% 

2017 1.3102% 2,341,423 356,891 7,770,042 34 7271% 94.15% 

2016 1.4037% 3,219,285 475,649 8,048,241 45.9098% 92.23% 

2015 1.3896% 333,995 45,934 7,792,033 4.8759% 99.15% 

meys' Retirement System 

2021 0.1193% $ 21,239 S - $ 74,751 28,4130% 96,79% 

2020 0.0675% 53,512 - 41,676 127.7868% 84.86% 

2019 0,0713% 22,936 - 42,001 54,6082% 93.13% 

201S 0.0690% 22,204 - 42,915 51,7395% 92,92% 

2017 0.0741% 19,990 - 45,044 44,3788% 93,57% 

2016 0.1190% 22,783 - 72,047 31.6224% 95,09% 

2015 0,1247% 6,714 - 73,088 9.1882% 98.56% 

2014 0,2205% 1,724 - 65,974 2.6132% 99.45% 

Voters Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana 

2021 0.1904% $ 8,040 S - S 28,478 21.2108% 97.68% 

2020 0,1873% 40,348 - 28,681 140.6785% 83.32% 

2019 0.2088% 39,051 - 28,681 136,1563% 84.83% 

2018 0.2067% 48,797 - 28,681 170.1370% 80.57% 

2017 0.2184% 47,938 - 29,908 150.2849% 80.51% 

2016 0.2168% 61,522 - 29,784 206.5606% 73.98% 

2015 0.2114% 51,779 - 28,681 180,5342% 76 86% 

2014 0.2205% 50,967 - 28,681 177.7030% 77,6800% 

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available. 

(*) The amounts presented have a liability measurement date as follows; 

Measurement Date Pension Plan 

December 31 of the prior year 

June 30 of the year ended 

June 30 of the year ended 

Parochial Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana Plan A 

District Attorneys' Retirement System 

Registrar of Voters Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana 

EXHIBIT A-16 
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St. James Parish 
Schedule of Contributions to Each Retirement System 

Defined Benefit Cost Sharing Plans Only 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Contributions in 
Relation to 

Contractually Contractuaily Contribution Employer's Contributions as a % 
Pension Required Required Deficiency Covered of Employer's 

Plan Year Contribution' Contribution^ (Excess) Payroll^ Covered Payroll 

Parochial Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana Plan A 
2021 
2020 
2019 
2018 
2017 
2016 
2015 
2014 

1,204,839 
1,076,820 

953,019 

929,856 

981,613 
1,010,106 
1,166,995 

1,246,726 

$ 

District Attorneys' Retirement System 
2021 
2020 
2019 

2018 

2017 

2016 

2015 

2014 

$ 6.640 

1.676 

1.103 

252 

1,187 

4,056 

5,738 

1,204,839 
1,076,820 

953,019 
929,856 
981,613 

1,010,105 

1,166,995 

1,246,726 

6,640 

1.676 

1,103 

262 

1.187 

4,056 

6,738 

$ 

Registrar of Voters Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana 
2021 

2020 

2019 

2010 
2017 

2016 

2015 

2014 

$ 5,147 
5,163 
5,019 

4,876 

5,551 

6,095 

6,955 

6.955 

S 5,147 

5,163 

5,019 

4,876 
5,551 

6,095 

6.955 

$ 

9,835,423 
8,790,364 
8,287,107 
8,085,694 
7,852,894 
7,770,042 
8,048,241 
7,792,033 

101,018 
41,876 
42,001 

12.2500% 
12.2500% 
11.5000% 
11.5000% 
12.5000% 
13.0000% 
14.5000% 
16.0000% 

6.5731% 

4.0023% 

2.6261% 
( r. 25% for 6 manrns S 4% ftsr 6 monrhs) 

42,001 0.6233% 
(0.0% for 6 months & 1.25% for 6 months) 

43.791 0.0000% 
57,101 2.0788% 

^3.5% for 6 months & 0% for 6 months) 

77,001 5.2675% 
(Z% for 6 months & 3.596 for 6 months) 

68.492 8.3776% 

$ 28,546 18,0305% 

28,681 18,0015% 
28,681 17.4994% 

(17% for Smooths £ 18% for 6 months ) 

28,681 17.0008% 
29,908 18.5603% 

(20.0% for Smooths & 17.0% for 6months) 

28,681 21.2510% 
(22.5% for 6 months & 20.0% for 6 months) 

29.784 23.3515% 
(24.25% for 6 months & 22.5% for 6 months) 

28.681 24.2495% 6,955 
Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additlonaf years will be displayed as they became available. 

For reference only: 

^ Employer contribution rate multiplied by employer's covered payroU 
® Actual employer contributions remitted to Retirement Systems 
^ Emptoyer's covered payroll amount for each of the years ended December 31 

EXHiBITA'17 
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St. James Parish 
Convent Louisidne 

Notes to Required Supplementary Information 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

CHANGES IN BENEFIT TERMS RELATED TO DEFINED PENSION PLANS 

Parochial Emclov&es' Retirement System of Louisiana Plan A 
There were no changes of benefit terms for the years presented. 

District Attomevs' Retirement System 
There were no changes of benefit terms for the yeara presertted. 

Reaistar of Voters Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana 
There were no changes of benefit terms for the years presented. 

CHANGES IN ASSUMPTIONS RELATED TO DEFINED PENSION PLANS 

Parochial Emolovees' Retirement System of Louisiarva Plan A 

The following changes in actuarial assumptions for each year are as follows: 

OfscDunf Rate: Merit: 
Measurement Measurement 

Year End date Rate Change Year End date Rate Change 
12/31/2021 12/31/2020 6.40% -0.10% 12/31/2021 12/31/2020 2.35% 0.00% 

12/31/2020 12/31/2019 6.50% 0.00% 12/31/2020 12/31/2019 2.35% 0.00% 

12/31/2019 12/31/2018 6.50% -0.25% 12/31/2019 12/31/2018 2.35% -0,40% 
12/31/2018 12/31/2017 6.75% -0.25% 12/31/2018 12/31/2017 2.75% 0,00% 
12/31/2017 12/31/2016 7,00% 0.00% 12/31/2017 12/31/2015 2.75% 0,00% 
12/31/2016 12/31/2015 7.00% -0.25% 12/31/2016 12/31/2015 2.75% 0-00% 
12/31/2015 12/31/2014 7,25% 0.00% 12/31/2015 12/31/2014 2.75% 0.25% 
12/31/2014 12/31/2013 7,25% 12/31/2014 12/31/2013 2.50% 

tnftation Rater tnyestment rate of return: 
Measurement Measurement 

Year End date Rate Change Year End date Rate Change 

12/31/2021 12/31/2020 2.30% -0.10% 12/31/2021 12/31/2020 6.40% -0,10% 
12/31/2020 12/31/2019 2,40% -0.10% 12/31/2020 12/31/2019 6 50% -0,25% 
12/31/2019 12/31/2018 2.40% -0.10% 12/31/2019 12/31/2010 6.50% -0 25% 
12/31/2018 12/31/2017 2,50% O.GO% 12/31/2018 12/31/2017 6 75% •0,25% 
12/31/2017 12/31/2015 2.50% Q.GO% 12/31/2017 12/31/2016 7.00% 0.00% 
12/31/2016 12/31/2015 2.50% -0.50% 12/31/2016 12/31/2015 7.00% -0 25% 
12/31/2015 12/31/2014 3.00% -Q.25% 12/31/2015 12/31/2014 7.25% 0.00% 
12/31/2014 12/31/2013 3,25% 12/31/2014 12/31/2013 7.25% 

Sala/y /ncreasesr 
Measurement 

Year End date Rate Change 

12/31/2021 12/31/2020 4.75% 0.00% 
12/31/2020 12/31/2019 4,75% 0.00% 
12/31/2019 12/31/2018 4,75% -Q.50% 
12/31/2018 12/31/2017 5,25% 0.00% 
12/31/2017 12/31/2015 5,25% 0.00% 
12/31/2016 12/31/2016 5,25% -0.50% 
12/31/2015 12/31/2014 6,75% 0.00% 
12/31/2014 12/31/2013 575% 
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St. James Parrsh 
Convent, Louisiana 

Notes to Required Supplementary Information 
For the Year Ended December 31. 2021 

CHANGES IN ASSUMPTIONS RELATED TO DEFINED PENSION PLANS (Continued] 

Dislfict Attorneys' Retirement System 

The following changes In actuarial assumptions for each year are as foiiows: 

Discount Rats: Merit: 
Measurement Measurement 

Year End date Rate Change Year End date Rate Change 
12/31/2021 6/30/2021 6 10% -0.15% 12/31/2021 6/30/2021 2,70% 0.00% 
12/31/2020 6/30/2020 6.25% -0.25% 12/31/2020 6/30/2020 2.70% -0.40% 
12/31/2019 6/3O/2019 6.50% 0.00% 12/31/2019 6/30/2019 3.10% 0.00% 
12/31/2018 6/30/2018 6,50% -0.25% 12/31/2010 6/30/2018 3.10% 0,10% 
12/31/2017 6/30/2017 6,75% •0.25% 12/31/2017 B/30/2O17 3.00% 0.00% 
12/31/2016 6/30/201S 7-00% 0.00% 12/31/2016 6/30/2016 3.00% 0.00% 
12/31/2015 6/30/2015 700% •0.25% 12/31/2015 6/30/2015 3.00% -0.50% 
12/31/2014 6/30/2014 7.26% 12/31/2014 6/30/2014 3,60% 

inffatio/i Rate: /nvesCment rate of return; 

Measurement Measurement 
Year End date Rate Change Year End date Rate Change 

12/31/2021 6/30/2021 2,30% 0.00% 12/31/2021 6/30/2021 6.10% -0.15% 
12/31/2020 6/30/2020 2.30% -0.10% 12/31/2020 6/30/202Q 6-25% -0,25% 
12/31/2019 6/30/2019 2,40% 0.00% 12/31/2019 6/30/2019 6.50% 0.00% 
12/31/2018 6/30/2018 2,40% -0.10% 12/31/2018 6/30/2018 6.50% -0.25% 
12/31/2017 6/30/2017 2.50% 0.00% 12/31/2017 6/30/2017 B.75% -0.25% 
12/31/2016 6/30/2016 2,60% 0.00% 12/31/2016 6/30/2016 7.00% 0.00% 
12/31/2015 6/30/2015 2,50% -0.25% 12/31/2015 6/30/2015. 7.00% -0,25% 
12/31/2014 6/30/2014 2,75% 12/31/2014 6/30/2014 7.25% 

Salary /nereases; 
Measurement 

Year End date Rate Change 

12/31/2021 6/30/2021 5.00% -0.50% 
12/31/2020 6/30/2020 5.50% 0.00% 
12/31/2019 6/30/2019 5,50% 0.00% 
12/31/2018 6/30/2018 6,50% 0.00% 
12/31/2017 6/30/2017 5,50% 0.00% 
12/31/2016 6/30/2018 5.50% 0.00% 
12/31/2015 6/30/2015 5.50% -0.75% 
12/31/2014 6/30/2014 6,26% 
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St. James Paiish 
Convent. Louisiana 

Notes to Required Supplementary information 
For the Year Ended December 31. 2021 

CHANGES IN ASSUMPTIONS RELATED TO DEFINED PENSION PLANS (Cor>tinued) 

Registrar of Voters Emplovees' Retirement System of Louisiana 

The failowing char^ges in actuarial assumptions for each year are as follows. 

D/scox/n( Rate: Merft; 
Measurement Measurement 

Year End date Rate Change Year End date Rate Change 

12/31/2021 6/30/2021 6.25% -0.15% 12/31/2021 6/30/2021 3.60% 0.00% 
12/31/2020 6/30/2020 6.40% -0.10% 12/31/2020 6/30/2020 3,60% 0,00% 
12/31/2019 6/3O/Z019 6.50% 0.00% 12/31/2019 6/30/2019 3.60% 0,00% 
12/31/2018 6/30/2018 6,50% •0.25% 12/31/2018 6/30/2018 3.60% 0,10% 
12/31/2017 6/30/2017 6,75% •0.25% 12/31/2017 6/30/2017 3.50% 0.00% 
12/31/2016 6/30/2016 7.00% 0.00% 12/31/2016 6/30/2016 3.50% 0 00% 
12/31/2015 6/30/2015 7.00% 0.00% 12/31/2015 6/30/2015 3.50% 0.25% 
12/31/2014 6/30/2014 7,00% 12/31/2014 6/30/2014 3.25% 

tnfiation Rate: /nvestmenf rate of return: 
MeasurerT;ent Measurement 

Year End date Rate Change Year End date Rate Change 
12/31/2021 6/30/2021 2.30% 0.00% 12/31/2021 6/30/2021 6.25% -0.15% 
12/31/2020 6/30/202Q 2,30% •0.10% 12/31/2020 6/30/202D 6.40% •0,10% 
12/31/2019 6/30/2019 2.40% 0.00% 12/31/2019 6/30/2019 6.50% 0,00% 
12/31/2018 6/30/2018 2.40% -0.10% 12/31/2018 6/30/2018 6.50% •0 25% 
12/31/2017 6/30/2017 2.50% 0.00% 12/31/2017 6/30/2017 6.75% •0,25% 
12/31/2016 6/30/2016 2.50% 0.00% 12/31/2016 6/30/2016 7.00% 0 00% 
12/31/2015 6/30/2015 2.50% -0.25% 12/31/2015 6/30/2015 7.00% 0,00% 
12/31/2014 6/30/2014 2,75% 12/31/2014 6/30/2014 7.00% 

Salary Inereasas: 
Measurement 

Year End date Rate Change 

12/31/2021 6/30/2021 5.25% 0.00% 
12/31/2020 6/30/2020 5.25% -0.75% 
12/31/2019 6/30/2019 6.00% 0.00% 
12/31/2018 6/30/2018 6.00% 0 00% 
12/31/2017 6/30/2017 6,00% 0-00% 
12/31/2016 6/30/2016 6.00% 0.00% 
12/31/2015 6/30/2015 6.00% 0.00% 
12/31/2014 6/30/2014 6.00% 

CHANGES IN BENEFIT TERMS AND ASSUMPTIONS RELATED TO TOTAL OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT 
BENEFITS LIABILITY 

No assets are accunnulated in a trust that meet the criteria of paragraph 4 of GASB 75 to pay reiated benefiis. 

Changes in benefit terms: 

There were no changes in benefit terms for the year ended December 31, 2021. 

Changes in assumptions: 

The changes in assumptions balance was a result of changes in the dlsoiunt rate. The foHowing are the discount 
rates used in each measurement of total OPEB [lability: 

Measurement Date Discount Rate 
12/31/2021 2.06% 
12/31/2020 2.12% 
12/31/2019 2.74% 
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St. James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
Combining Balance Sheet 

December 31,2021 

Total 
Special Debt Capital Nonmajor 
Revenue Service Projects Governmental 

Funds Funds Funds Funds 
Assete 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,344,818 $ 481,474 S 8,875.845 12,702,137 
Investments 33,333.924 - 1,444,268 34,778,192 
Receivables 9,312,737 474,026 47,114 9.833.677 
Due from other funds 2,438,191 - 91,215 2,529,406 
Prepaid items 100 - - 100 

Total assets $ 48,429,770 $ 955,500 $ 10,458,442 i 59,343,712 

Liabilities and fund balance 
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable $ 871,266 $ 15,277 $ 219,330 s 1,105,873 
Accrued salaries and benefits 222,644 - - 222,644 
Due to other funds 705,143 - 35,678 740,821 
Other llabKlties 29,137 - - 29.137 

Total liabilities 1,828,190 15,277 255,008 2,096,475 

Fund balar>ce: 
Monspendable 100 - - 100 
Restricted 45,730,280 940.223 10,157,816 56,828,319 
Committed 812,384 - 45,618 858,002 
Assigned 58,816 - - 58,816 

Total fund balance 46.601,580 940,223 10,203,434 57,745,237 
Total liabilities and fund balance $ 40,429,770 S 955,500 $ 10,458,442 3 59.843,712 

EXHIBITB-1 
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St James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Total 
Special Debt Capital Nonmajor 
Revenue Service Projects Governmental 

Funds Funds Funds Funds 
Revenues: 

Taxes: 
Property $ 7,961.009 1 £ 477.081 $ $ 8.438.090 
Sales and use 2.830,264 - - 2.830,264 

Intergovernmental: 
Federal 1.570,619 - 681,467 2,252,086 
Slate 623,436 - - 623,436 
Local 40,325 - - 40,325 

Fines and forfeits 159,947 - - 159,947 
Charges for services 377,195 - - 377,195 
Investment earnings (losses) (108,561) 147 2,290 (106,124) 
Other 1,592,902 - - 1,592,902 

Total revenues 15,047,136 477,228 683,757 16,208,121 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

General govemment 1,066,766 16,371 - 1,103,137 
Public safety 2,106,318 - 400,507 2.506,825 
Highway and streets 3,056,341 - 360.245 3.416,586 
Sanitation - - 30 30 
Public transportation 980,725 - - 980,725 
Health and welfare 3,015,603 - - 3,015.603 
Culture and recreation 2,753,145 - 134 2,753,279 

Debt service: 
Principal - 775,000 - 775.000 
Interest and other costs - 378,449 - 378.449 

Capital outlay 1,114,552 - 656,199 1,770,751 
Total expenditures 14,113,450 1,169,820 1.417,115 16,700,385 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) 
expenditures before other ̂ nancing sources (uses) 933,686 (692,592) (733,358) (492,264) 

Other financing sources (uses); 
Operating transfers in 5,374,724 777,134 1,378,985 7,530.843 
Operating transfers out (911,920) (356,897) (703,358) (1,972,175) 

Total other financing sources 4,462,804 420,237 875.627 5,558,668 

Net change in fund balance 5,396,490 (272,355) (57,731) 5,066,404 

Fund balance, beginning of year 41,205,090 1,212,578 10,261,165 52,678,833 

Fund balance, end of year $ 46.601.580 S 940,223 $ 10,203,434 $ 57,745,237 

B(HIBITB-2 
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NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues derived from taxes or other dedicated revenue sources. 
They are usuafly required by statute, charter provision, or local ordinance to finance particular functions or acfivities of 
government. The Parish maintains the foliowing special revenue funds: 

Pire Protection District No. 2 Maintenance Fund 

The Fire Protection District No, 2 Maintenance Fund accounts for the operation, maintenance and/or construction of the 
water distribution system within the district. Financing Is provided by property taxes. 

Road and Bridge Maintenance Fund 

The Road and Bridge Maintenance Fund accounts for the maintenance of existing roads and bridges. Major means of 
financing Is provided by property taxes, state revenue sharing, the State of Louisiana Parish Transportation Fund, and the 
Parish Royalty Fund. Use of these funds is restricted by Louisiana Revised Statute 43:753, 

St James Parish Library Fund 

The St. James Parish Library Fund accounts for the operation and maintenance of the St. James Parish Library. 
Financing is provided by property taxes, federal grants, and state revenue sharing funds. 

Consolidated Road Lighting District Ho. 3A Fund 

The Consolidated Road Lighting District No, 3A Fund accounts for the operations and maintenance of lighting in public 
places. Financing is primarily provided by property taxes. 

Wetlands Mldgatlon Fund 

The Wetlands Mitigation Fund is used to provide for the purchase, maintenance, and restoration of wetlands for future use 
as mitigation areas. Funding is from the Louisiana Capital Outlay Program. 

Coastal Impact Assistance Program Fund 

The Coastal Impact Assistance Program Fund received funding from the U.S. Department of the Interior. U.S. Fish and 
Wlldlife Service, for the purchase of existing wetlands. The wetlands will be used in a Wetlands Conservation and 
Preservation project to protect habitat, prohibit wetlands destruction, and aid In the restoration of the Parish's and State's 
coastal wetlands area. 

St James Transit System Fund 

The St. James Transit System Fund accounts for the operation and maintenance of the parishwide transportation program. 
Financing is provided by federal grants, state grants, bus fares, and transfers from other funds. 

Enhanced 911 System Maintenance Fund 

The Enhanced 911 System Maintenance Fund accounts for the operation and maintenance of an enhanced 911 
emergency telephone system. Financing is provided by proper^ taxes and emergency telephone service charges. 
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NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
(Continued) 

Emergency Communication Fund 

The Emergency Communication Fund accounts for the collection of all revenue of landline, wireless, and prepaid 
revenues. Pursuant to Acts 590 and 665 of the 2016 Regular Session of the Louisiana Legislature. 911 fees generated 
from these surcharges are to be used for the sole purpose of providing 911 emergency response communications service 
and operations. 

Elderly and Emergency Medical Services Fund 

The Elderly and Emergency Medical Services Fund accounts for the cost of providing care and assistance to the elderly 
persons of the Parish and the cost of providing health services to the residents of the Parish. Financing Is provided by one 
quarter of one percent sales tax imposed parishwide and transfers from other funds. 

Energy Assistance Fund 

The Energy Assistance Fund is used to help subsidize utility bills for low income residents within the Parish. The program 
is funded through the Louisiana Housing Corporation. 

Parks and Recreation Fund 

The Parks and Recreation Fund accounts for the cost of providing recreational facilities throughout the Parish. Rnanclng 
is provided by one quarter of one percent sales tax imposed parishwide. 

Gramercy Recreation District Fund 

The Gramercy Recreation District Fund accounts for the costs incurred by the district for providing recreational facilities 
within the corporate limits of the Town of Gramercy, Financing is provided by property taxes, state revenue sharing, and 
self-generated revenues. 

District V Recreation Fund 

The District V Recreation Fund accounts for the costs Incurred by the district for providing recreational facilities within 
District 5 of St James Parish. Financing is provided by property taxes, state revenue sharing, and self-generated 
revenues. 

St. James Volunteer Fire Department Fund 

The St. James Volunteer Fire Department Fund accounts for the payment of expenditures and capital outlays for the 
stations that fall under its jurisdiction. Financing is provided by a property tax and emergency telephone service charges. 

Gramercy Volunteer Fire Department Restricted Fund 

The Gramercy Volunteer Fire Department Restricted accounts for the payment of expenditures and capital outlay activity 
for the protection improvements within Its jurisdiction. Financing is provided by a property tax millage thai Is partially 
dedicated to each fire department. 

Union-Convent Volunteer Fire Department Fund 

The Union-Convent Volunteer Fire Department Fund accounts for the payment of expenditures and capital outlay activity 
for the stations that fail under Its jurisdiction. Financing is provided by a property tax miilage that Is partially dedicated to 
each fire department. 
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NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
(Continued) 

North Vactierle Volunteer Fire Department Fund 

The North Vacherie Volunteer Fire Department Fund accounts for the payment of expenditures and capital outlay activity 
for the stations that fall under its junsdiction. Financing is provided by a property tax mlllage that is partially dedicated to 
each f re department. 

South Vacherie Volunteer Fire Department Fund 

The South Vacherie Volunteer Fire Department Fund accounts for the payment of expenditures and capital outlay activity 
for the stations that fail under its jurisdiction. Financing is provided by a property tax milJage that is partially dedicated to 
each fire department. 

Criminal Court Fund 

The Criminal Court Fund accounts for the expenditures attributable to the Twenty-Third Judicial District Court. Financing Is 
provided by fines and forfeitures imposed by the district courts. The district Is comprised of the parishes of St, James, 
Ascension, and Assumption. Only St. James Parish is reported in these statements-

Criminal Court: Juror Compensation Fees Fund 

The Criminal Court: Juror Compensation Fees Fund accounts for the juror-related expenditures attributable to the Twen^-
Thjrd Judicial District Court. Financing Is provided by fines and forfeitures imposed by the district courts. The district is 
comprised of the parishes of St. James, Ascensfon, and Assumption. Only St. James Parish Is reported in these 
statements. 

Criminal Court: Law Enforcement Officer Witness Fees Fund 

The Criminal Court: Law Enforcement Officer WiUiess Fees Fund accounts for the witness-related expenditures 
attributable to the Twenty-Third Judicial District Court. Financing is provided by fines and forfeitures imposed by the 
district courts. The district is comprised of the parishes of St. James, Ascension, and Assumption, Only St. James Parish 
Is reported In these statements-

Community Services Block Grant Fund 

The Community Services Block Grant (CSBG) Fund accounts for the outreach and housing programs administered by the 
Parish Department of Human Resources. Funding is provided by the United States Department of Health and Human 
Services and Is passed through the Louisiana Department of Labor. 

Emergency Food and Shelter Fund 

The Emergency Food and Shelter Fund is used to provide emergency food vouchers to the needy families in the Parish. 
United Way provides the funding, 

Title lll-C-2 Home Delivered Meals Fund 

The Title lll-C-2 Home Delivered Meals Fur^d accounts for the expenditures to deliver meals to those citizens who are 
unable to attend any one of the senior citizens' centers. Funding is provided by the United States Department of Health 
and Human Services and is passed through the Governor's Office of Elderly Affairs and from contributions received on the 
meals. 

Title lll-C-1 Congregate Meals Fund 

The Title lll-C-1 Congregate Meals Fund represents cost associated with feeding the elderly citizens at the four senior 
citizens' centers located throughout the Parish. Funding Is provided by the United States Department of Health and 
Human Services and is passed through the Govemoris Office of Elderly Affairs and from contributions received on the 
meals. 

102 



NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
(Continued) 

Title lll'B Supportive Services Fund 

The Titie lll-B Supportive Services Fund is used to pay for the administration of programs for the eldeily. Funding is 
provided by the United States Department of Health and Human Services and is passed through the Governor's Office of 
Elderly Affairs. 

Title lli-C-1 Area Agency Administration Fund 

The Title [ll-C-1 Area Agency Administration Fund is used to account for a portion of the costs of administrating the 
Parish's special programs for the aging. The Governor's Office of Elderly Affairs provides the Parish with funds to help pay 
for the costs of administering these programs. 

Title lll-O Preventive Health Fund 

The Titie lll-D Fund accounts for funds used for wellness, which include disease prevention and health promotion 
activities. 

Title lll-E NFC5P (Caregiver) Fund 

The Title lil-E Fund accounts for funds relating to the National Family Caregiver Support program. The program is 
designed to provide multifaceted systems of support services for family caregivers and for grandparents or older 
individuals who are relative caregivers. The program targets older, low-income individuals. Specific types of services that 
can be provided by this program include; Adult Day Care. Adult Health Care, Material Aid, Case Management, Personal 
Care, Counseling, Support Groups, Respite Care, Sitter Service, Information, and Assistance. Eligible participants include 
(1) adult family members, or another adult person, who provides uncompensated in-home and community care to an older 
person, who needs supportive services or (2) grandparents, or a person 60 years of age or older, who is related to a child 
by blood or marriage and (1) lives with the child, (2) is the primary caregiver, and (3) has a legal relationship to the child or 
is raising the child infonmalfy. 

Senior Center Fund 

The Senior Center Fund is used to help subsidize the cost for meals at the senior citizens' centers. Funding is provided by 
the Governor's Office of Elderly Affairs. 

GOEA Supplemental Senior Center Fund 

The Louisiana Legislature appropriated additional money to be used to supplement the primary state grant for senior 
centers. The ftinds are distributed by the Govemor's Office of Elderly Affairs. The money received is used to supplement 
the cost of meals for the elderly 

Senior Canter Additional Appropriation Fund 

The Senior Center Acfdftional Appropriation Fund accounts for additional funding for the Senior Center provided by the 
Governor's Office of Elderiy Affairs. 

Tide V Senior Employment Fund 

The Title V Senior Employment Fund accounts for funds used for the Senior Community Service Employment Program. 
Tfits program provides part-time work opportunities in the community service employment activities for low-income persons 
who are 55 years of age and older. The Govemor's Office of Elderly Affairs provides the parish with funds to help pay for 
the cost of administering this program. 
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NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
(Concluded) 

Area Agency on Aging - Parish Council on Aging Fund 

The Area Agency on Aging - Parish Council on Aging Fund accounts for any expenditure associated with the feeding 
program for the elderly. Funding is provided by the Governor's Office of Elderly Affairs. 

Area Agency on Aging - Nutritional Services Incentive Program Fund 

The Nutritional Sen/ices Incentive Program Fund is used to account for the administration of NSIP fijnds provided by the 
Administration on Aging. U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. The funds are passed through to the Parish by 
the Govemons Office of Elderiy Affairs. The funds are distributed to the Parish based on how many elderly meals were 
served in the previous year in relation to the total meals served statewide. The Parish uses the funds to supplement the 
cost of providing congregate and home-delivered meals to the elderly in the Parish, 

Older Americans Act Fund 

The Older Americans Act Programs: Expanding Access to the C0VID19 Vaccine Fund provides delivery of supportive 
services to older individuals to enable them to have access to the COVID 19 Vaccine by providing credible information, 
assisting with scheduling vaccination appointments, arranging accessible transportation to vaccination distribution sites, 
and facilitating the receipt of reminders for the second vaccination appointments. 

River Parish Youth Build Fund 

The River Parish Youth Build Fund helps Jow-income youth and young adults ages 16-24 work toward their GED or high 
school diploma while learning job skills by repairing and building affordable housing for homeless and low-income people. 
Funds are provided by the United States Department of Labor's National Emergency Grant and the Louisiana Department 
of Labor. Office of Workforce Development. 

YouthBuild AmerlCorps Fund 

The YouthBuild AmerlCorps Fund is a comprehensive youth and community development program allowing unemployed 
and underappreciated youths to work toward a GED or high-school diploma while learning construction skills by building 
affordable housing for low-income families. This program is funded by the Corporation for National and Community 
Services. 

Housing Preservation Grant Fund 

Housing Preservation Grant Fund provides assistance for the repair or rehabilitation of housing owned or occupied by low 
and very low-income rural citizens. 

St- James Youth Center Fund 

The St. James Parish Youth Center Fund's principal activity is to provide juvenile detention. 
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SI James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 
Combining Balance Sheet 

December 31,2021 

Fire 
Protection Road and St James Consolidated 

District No. 2 Bridge Parish Road Lighting Wetlands 
Maintenance Maintenance Library District No 3A Mitigation 

Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 148.508 $ 241,497 $ 136,958 S 136,767 S 587 
Investments 534,710 6,289,609 4,693.707 1,127,459 -
Receivables 443,510 3,353,617 1.972,650 583.149 -
Due from other funds 1,452 41,310 7,255 - -

Prepaid items - - - - -
Total assets $ 1,188.180 S 9,926,033 $ 6,810,580 $ 1,847,375 $ 587 

Liabilities and fund balance 
Liabilities; 

Accounts payable $ 15,591 $ 118,011 $ 9S,737 $ 46,279 $ -
Accrued salaries and benefits 8,757 60.622 29,309 3,925 -
Due to other funds 12,817 220,122 58,500 21,194 -
Other liabilities - - - - -

Total liabilities 37.165 398,755 186,546 71,398 -

Fund balance: 
Nonspendabte - - - - -
Restricted 1,151,015 9.527,278 6,624,034 1.775,977 587 
Committed - - - - -

Assigned - - - - -
Unassigned - - - - -

Total fund balance 1.151,015 9,527,278 6,624,034 1.775,977 587 
Total liabilities and fund balance $ 1,188,180 $ 9,926.033 $ 6,810,580 $ 1.847,375 % 587 
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Coastal 
Impact St James Enhanced 

Assistance Transit 911 System Emergency 
Program System Maintenance Communicatjon 

s 54,207 $ $ 294.582 $ 7,402 
- - 2,998,872 -
- 128,193 890,916 70,976 
- 100,019 84,053 -

$ 54,207 $ 234,212 $ 4,268,423 $ 78,380 

$ $ 1,020 97,685 $ 725 
- B767 719 22.235 
- 224,425 26,634 2,882 

- 234,212 125,038 25,842 

- -
4,143,386 52,538 

54,207 K - -

54.207 - 4,143,305 52,533 
s 54.207 $ 234,212 % 4.268,423 $ 78,380 

(Continued) 
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St. James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 
Combining Balance Sheet 

December 31. 2021 

Elderly and 
Emergency Gramercy 

Medical Energy Parks and Recreation District V 
Services Assistance Recreation District Recreation 

Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents S 245,048 $ 101 S 261,153 3 87,875 $ 107,226 
Investments 3,101,459 - 3,845,927 - 829,954 
Receivables 496,690 5.463 430,813 272,039 211,297 

Due from other funds 620,536 - 83,276 - -
Prepaid items - - 100 - -

Total assets $ 4,463.933 $ 5,509 $ 4,621,269 5 359.914 S 1,148,477 

Liabilities and fund balance 
Liabilities. 

Accounts payable $ 249.259 $ - $ 84,351 3 16,3^ $ 16.297 
Accrued salaries and benefits 49.234 - 26,785 1.016 443 
Due to other funds 18,960 5,469 27,649 10,698 7,742 
Other liabilities - - 5,300 - -

Total liabilities 317,453 5,469 144,085 28,066 24,482 

Fund balance; 
Nonspendable - - 100 - -
Restricted 4.146,480 100 4.477,084 331,848 1,123,995 

Committed - - - -
Assigned - - - - -
Unassigned - - - - -

Total fund balance 4.146,480 100 4,477,184 331,848 1,123,995 
Total liabilities and fund balance $ 4.463,933 $ 5,569 $ 4,621,269 S 359,914 $ 1,148,477 
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107 



Gramercy 
St. James Volunteer Fife Union-Convent North Vacherie South Vacherle 

Volurtteer Frre Department Volunteer Fire Volunteer Fire Volunteer Fire 
Department Restricted Department Department Department 

s 240,048 S 177.243 $ 348,975 $ 190,856 S 97,284 
2,540.050 - 946,162 1,274,215 1,736,597 

3.575 - - - • 
556,496 - 252,217 403,709 275,778 

$ 3,340,169 $ 177,243 ¥ 1,547,354 $ 1,868,780 $ 2,109.659 

s 4.826 3 - $ 2.072 $ 2,988 S 2,943 

2.556 - - -

7,382 - 2,072 2,988 2,943 

3.332,787 177.243 1,545,282 1,865,792 2,106.716 

3,332,787 177.243 1,545,282 1,865.792 2,106,716 
5 3,340,169 S 177,243 $ 1,547,354 $ 1,868.780 $ 2,109,659 

EXHIBIT B-3 
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St. James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 
Combining Baiance Sheet 

December 31, 2021 

CC-Law Community 
CC-Juror Enforcement Services Emergency 

Criminal Compensation Officer Block Food and 
Court Fees Witness Fees Grant Shelter 

Assets 
Cash and cash equivaients $ 41,013 $ 245,696 % 90,245 $ 127 J 626 
Investments - 473,143 - - -
Reoeivables 14,269 - - 3.500 -
Due from other funds 4,127 - - - -
Prepaid items - - - - -

Total assets $ 59,409 $ 723,839 $ 90,245 $ 3,627 S 626 

Liabilities and fund balance 
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable $ 52,205 5 5 1,700 S 228 $ 300 
Accrued salaries and benefite 2,595 - - - -

Due to other funds - - - 3,390 -

Other liabilities - - - 3 326 
Total liabilities 54,800 • 1.700 3,627 626 

Fund balance: 
Nonspendabie - - - - -
Restricted - - - - -
Committed - 723,839 88,545 - -
Assigned 4.609 - - - -
Unassrgned - - - - -

Total fund balance 4,609 723,839 88,545 - -

Total liabilities and fund balance $ 59.409 S 723,839 $ 90,245 $ 3,627 £ 626 
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Title III 
C-2 C-1 B C-1 D E 

Home Delivered Congregate Supportive Area Agency Preventive NFC5P Senior 
Meals Meals Services Admin tstfation Health (Caregiver) Center 

S 22,033 $ 5,063 $ 2,451 $ $ 1,648 $ 5,02S 3 1,012 

319 

22,033 I 5,063 5 2,451 $ $ 1.648 $ 5.348 $ 1.012 

18,116 $ 6,051 $ $ 5,348 $ 

3,917 
22,033 

12 
5,063 

2.451 
2,451 1,648 

1.012 
5.348 1,012 

- - - - -
$ 22,033 S 5,063 ¥ 2.451 $ - $ 1.648 $ 5.348 5 ; 1.012 

(Continued) 
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St- James Pansh 
Convent, Louisiana 

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 
Combining Balance Sheet 

December 31. 2021 

GOEA 
Supplemental 

Senior 
Center 

Area Agency on Aging 
Senior Center 

Additional 
Appropriation 

Title V 
Senior 

Employment 

Parish 
Council 

on Aging 

Nutritional 
Services Incentive 

Program 
Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Receivables 
Due from other funds 
Prepaid items 

Total assets 

Liabnitles and fund bafanoe 
Liabilities; 

Accounts payable 
Accrued salaries and benefits 
Due to other funds 
Other liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Fund balance: 
Nonspendable 
Restricted 
Committed 
Assigned 

Unassigned 
Total fund balance 
Total liabilities and fund balance 

$ 2,765 $ 2,040 $ 9,824 $ 

2,765 $ 2,040 $ 9,824 $ 

V $ 2,013 $ 

2,765 9.824 
2,765 2,013 9,824 

27 

27 
s - $ 2,765 $ 2,040 $ 9.624 $ 
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Older River Parish Housing 
Americans Youth Youth Build Preservation St. James 

Act Build AmeriCorps Grant Youth Center Total 

$ 1.879 $ 18,487 £ 9,682 £ $ 108,881 £ 3,344,818 
- • - - 2,877.060 33,333,924 
- - 832 36,907 393,805 9,312,737 
- 1,536 - - 427 2,438.191 
- - - - - 100 

£ 1,879 £ 20,023 $ 10,514 £ 36,907 £ 3,380,173 £ 48,429.770 

S S 7,381 5 $ 1,037 £ 20,751 $ 871,266 
- 8,237 - - - 222,644 
- 3.976 10,514 35,870 11,739 705.143 

1,879 - - - - 29,137 
1,879 19,594 10,514 36,907 32,490 1,828,190 

100 
- 429 - - 3,347,683 45,730,280 

- - - - 812,384 
- - - - - 58,816 

- 429 - - 3,347,583 46,601,580 
$ 1,879 $ 20,023 $ 10,514 £ 36,907 $ 3.330,173 S 48,429,770 

(Concluded) 
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St. James Parish 
Convent. Lauisians 

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in fund Balances 

For the Year Ended December 31. 2021 

Fire 
Protection Road and St. James Consolidated 

District No. 2 Bridge Parish Road Lighting Wetlands 
Mamtenar>ce Maintenance Library District No. 3A Mitigation 

Revenues: 
Taxes: 

Property $ 430,019 $ 3,263,069 % 1,971,029 $ 586,883 % 
Sales and use - - - -

1 n te rgove rnmeotal: 
Federal 1.530 39,451 47,065 557 -
State - 291,928 21,224 3,952 -
Local - 14,481 - - -

Fines and forfeits - - 483 -
Charges for services - - 13,904 - -
Investment earnings (losses) (1,649) (30,116) (24,951) (5,434) -
Other revenues - 116,574 39,555 - -

Total revenues 429,900 3.695,387 2.068,309 585,958 -

Expenditures 
Current: 

General govemment - - - -
Public safety 276,966 - - - -
Highways and streets - 2,584.382 - 471.459 -
Public transportation - - - - -
Health and welfare - - - - -
Culture and recreation - 1.221,887 - -

Capital outlay - 37,399 52,369 - -

Total ejqjenditures 276,968 2,622,281 1,274,256 471.459 -

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under) expenditures before other 

financing sources (uses) 152,932 1,073,106 794,053 114,499 -

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in - 20,050 - - -
Transfers out (20,000) (464,071) - - -

Total other financirQ sources (uses) (20,000) (434.021) - - -

Net change in fund balance 132.932 B39.0B5 794.053 114,499 -

Fund balance, beginning of year 1,018.083 8,888,193 5,829.981 1,661,478 587 
Fund balance, end of year $ 1.151.015 $ 9.527.270 $ 6.624.034 $ 1.775,977 6 587 
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Coastal 
Impact 

Assistance 
Prop ram 

St James 
Transit 
System 

Enhanced 
911 System 

Maintenance 
Emergency 

Communication 

S - $ - $ 824,012 $ 

-• 1,038,765 
8,316 

16,563 

1,831 

5,050 

3,042 

14,810 
(3.735) 

258,782 

337,826 

- 1,061,891 1.097,453 345,918 

-

980,725 

444,325 496,868 

~ 
361,570 

- -

- 1,342,295 444,325 498.868 

(280,404) 653.128 (150.950) 

- 278,377 84.053 
(75.000) 

75,000 

- 278,377 9,053 75,000 

- (2,027) 662,181 (75,950} 

54,207 2.027 3,481,204 128,488 
$ 54.207 $ - $ 4,143,385 $ 52,538 

(ConlinMed) 
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St- James Parish 
Convent. Louisiana 

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 
Combining Statement of Revenues. Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Year Endefl December 31, 2021 

Elderly and 
Emergency Gramercy 

Medical Energy Parks and Recreation District V 
Services Assistance Recreation District Recreation 

Revenues: 
Taxes: 

Property $ s $ $ 278,819 $ 211,835 
Sales and use 1,415.132 - 1,416.132 - -

lntergovernrr\entak 
Federal 2,889 128,139 1,323 203 -
State 779 - - 6,830 -
Local - - - - -* 

Fines and forfeits - - - - « 
Charges for services - -- 10,655 -
Investment earnings (losses) (6,540) - (6,889) - 422 
Other revenues 366,631 99 248.262 15,383 5.582 

Total revenues 1.778,941 128,238 1.668.483 301 035 217,839 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

General government - - - - -
Public safety - - - - -
Highways and streets - - -r - -
Public transportation - - - - -
Health and welfare 2,320,415 128,138 - - -
Culture and recreation - - 1,198,952 200,021 132.285 

Capital outlay - - 150,303 220,374 211,966 
Total expenditures 2.320.416 128,138 1,349,555 420,395 344.251 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under) expenditures before other 

financing sources (uses) (541,475) 1O0 318,928 (119.360) (126.412) 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 1,066,391 - 44.185 91,484 -
Transfers out (51,631) - (91,484) - -

Total other financing sources (uses) 1,014,760 - (47.299) 91,464 -

Net change In fund balance 473.285 100 271.629 (27.076) (126,412} 

Fund balance, beginning of year 3,673,195 4,205.555 359,724 1,250,407 
Fund balance, end of year $ 4,146.480 $ 100 $ 4,477.184 $ 331,848 $ 1,123,995 
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St. James 
Gramercy 

Volunteer Fire Union-Convent North Vacherie South Vacherie 
Volunteer Fire Department Volunteer Fire Volunteer Fire Volunteer Fire 
Department Restricted Department Department Department 

$ £ $ s $ 

44.795 7,327 18.981 13,807 

(10.097) 
-

(2.148) (1.831) (3.478) 
43,560 - 142,631 234,396 27 
78.258 - 147,810 251.546 10,356 

165,063 ~ 69,002 308,936 149,700 

11.350 
- -

7.415 61.506 
176,413 - 69,002 316,353 211,206 

(98,155) 78,808 (64,807) (200.850) 

924.505 - 457,627 699,416 497.791 

924,505 - 457,627 699,416 497.791 

826.350 - 536,435 634,609 296.941 

2,506,437 177.243 1.006,847 1,231,183 1,609.775 
$ 3,332.787 $ 177,243 $ 1.545,282 $ 1.865,792 $ 2,106.716 

fContinued) 
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St, James Parish 
Convent. Louisiana 

Nonmajcr Special Revenue Funds 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

GC -Law Community 
CC - Juror Enforcement Services Emergency 

Criminal Compensation Officer Block Food and 
Court Fees Witness Fees Grant Shelter 

Revenues: 
Taxes: 

Property $ E $ $ S 
Sales and use - - - - -

Intergovernmental: 
Federal - - - 65.024 17.364 
State 15.79a - - -
Local 20.971 - - - -

Fines and forfeits 158,463 • - - -
Charges for services - - - - -
Investment earnings {losses) (720) - - -
Other revenues 844 48,274 38,600 (1) 7,195. 

Total revenues 196,076 47,554 38,500 65,023 24,559-

Expenditures: 
Current: 

General government 1,066,168 11,098 9,500 - -
Public safety - - - - -
Highways and streets - - - - -
Public transportation - - - - -
Health and welfare - - - 65,023 25,783-
Culture and recreation - - - - -

Capital outlay - - - - -
Total expenditures 1,066,168 11,096 9,500 65,023 25,783 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under) expenditures before other 

financing sources (uses) (870.092) 36,456 29,100 - (1.224) 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 861.000 - - - 1,224 
T ransfers out - - • - -

Total other financing sources (uses) 861,000 - - - 1.224 

Net change in fund balance (9,092) 36,456 29.100 - -

Fund balance, beginning of year 13,701 687,383 59,445 . 
Fund balance, end of year $ 4,609 S 723,839 S 88,545 $ $ 

EXHIBITS-4 
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Title III 
C-2 C-1 B C-1 D E 

Home Delivered Congregate Supportive Area Agency Preventive NFCSP Senior 
Meals Meals Services Administration Health (Caregiver) Center 

S S 5 3 - 3 3 - $ 
* 

41,622 23.236 27,602 10,339 3.309 14.401 
7,888 27,129 6,157 3,447 

-
3,658 30,506 

4,088 4,222 (6,203) (4) 12 2,943 (1.012) 
53,798 54,587 27,556 13,782 3.321 21,002 29,494 

221,145 129.042 39,122 13,782 
* 

30,044 3.945 

221,145 129.042 39,122 13,782 - 30.044 3.945 

(167,347) (74,455) (11,566) 3.321 (9,042) 25,549 

167,347 74,455 11,566 9,042 8,955 
- - - - (3.321) - (34.504) 

167,347 74.455 11,566 - (3.321) 9,042 (25,549) 

-

$ $ $ 3 * $ $ - $ -

(Continued) 
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St- James Parish 
Convent. Louisiana 

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 
Combining Statement of Revenues. Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

GOEA 
Supplemental 

Senior 
Center 

Senior Center 
Additional 

Appropriation 

Title V 
Senior 

Employment 

Area Agency on Aging 

Revenues: 

Parish Nutritional 
Councii Services 
on Aging Incentive Program 

Taxes: 
Property $ 
Sales and use 

intergovernmental: 
Federal 
State 
Local 

Fines and forfeits 
Charges for services 
Investment eamings (losses) 
Other revenues 

- $ 

3,100 

- $ 

7,814 

1.141 

- s 

27 

- 5 

100,000 

11.104 

47.201 

11,549 
Total revenues 3,100 8.955 27 111.104 58,750 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

General government 
Public safety 
Highvvays and streets 
Public transportation 
Health and welfare 
Culture and recreation 

Capital outlay 

-

*9' 

- -

Total expenditures - - -

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under) expenditures before other 

financing sources (uses) 3,100 B.955 27 111.104 58,750 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 
Transfers out (3,100) (8,955) 

-
(111.104) (58,750) 

Total other financing sources (uses) (3,100) (8.955) - (111.104) (58,750) 

Net change in fund balance - - 27 - " 

Fund balance, beginning of year _ _ 
Fund balance, end of year $ - $ - $ 27 S - $ -
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Older 
Americans 

Act 

River Parish 
Youth 
Build 

Youth Build 
AmeriCorps 

Housing 
Preservatiorr 

Grant 

St. James 
Youth 
Center Total 

S 395,543 $ 7,961,009 
2,830.264 

1,879 

(1.879) 429 

36,907 

1,001 

(11,395) 
41 

1,570,619 
623,436 
40,325 
159,947 
377,195 

(108,561) 
1,592,902 

- 429 36,907 385,190 16,047.136 

494 38,669 

195,454 
1,086,766 
2,106,318 
3,056.341 
980.725 

3,015,503 
2,753,145 
1,114.552 

494 38,669 195,454 14,113,450 

(65) (1,762) 189,736 933,686 

- 494 1,762 - 5,374,724 
(911,920) 

- 494 1,762 - 4,462,804 

429 189,736 5,396.490 

_ _ _ 3.157,947 41,205,090 
$ - $ 429 S _ $ S 3.347,683 $ 46,601,580 

(Concluded) 
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SI. James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

Fire Protection District No. 2 Maintenance Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended December 31. 2021 

Budget 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positltve 
Original Final Actual (Negative) 

Revenues; 
Taxes; 

Property S 370.400 S 402,600 $ 430,019 S 27,419 
intergovernmental: 

Federal - 1.500 1,530 30 
Investrnent earnings (losses) 4.000 700 (1,649) (2,349) 

Total revenues 374.400 404,800 429,900 25,100 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Public safety 426,900 320.900 276.968 43,932 
Total expenditures 426,900 320,900 276,968 43,932 

Excess (defidency) of revenues over (under) 
expenditures before other financing sources (uses) (52,500) 83,900 152,932 69,032 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers out (40,000) (40,000) (20,000) 20,000 

Total other financing sources (uses) (40,000) (40,000) (20,000) 20,000 

Net change In fund balance (92,500) 43,900 132,932 89.032 

Fund balance, beginning of year 945,064 1,018,083 1,018,083 
Fund balance, end of year $ 852,564 $ 1,061,983 5 1,151,015 J 89,032 
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St James Paristi 
Convent. Louisiana 

Road and Bridge Maintenance Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual 
for the Year Ended December 31. 2021 

Budget 

Variance vi/ith 
Final Budget 

Posititve 
Original Final Actual (Negative) 

Revenues: 

Taxes: 
Property $ 2.762.100 $ 3,031.600 $ 3.263,069 S 23V469 

Intergovemmentat 

Federal - 9,500 39,451 29,951 

State 26B.QOO 280,700 291,928 11728 

Local - 12.500 14,481 1931 

Investment earnings (losses) 3&,500 7.000 (30,116) (37.116} 

Other revenues - 60.300 116,574 56,274 

Totat revenues 3,069,600 3,401.600 3,695,387 293.787 

Expenditures: 

Current: 

Highways and streets 4,535.300 3,339,500 2,584,882 754,618 

Capital outlay 300.000 97,900 37,399 60,501 

Total expenditures 4,835.300 3,437,400 2,622,281 815,119 

Excess (deficient) of revenues over (under) 

expenditures before other financing sources (uses) (1765.700) (35,800) 1.073,106 1,108,905 

Other financing sources (uses); 

Transfers in 400.000 35,400 20.050 (15,350) 

Transfers out (1,213700) (454,200) (454.071) 129 

Total other financing sources (uses) (813,700) (418,800) (434,021) (15.221) 

Net change in fund balance (2,579,400) (454,600) 639,085 1.093,685 

Fund balance, beginning of year 8,266,906 8,383,193 8,886,193 

Fund balance, end of year $ 5,687,506 5 8.433.593 S 9,527,278 $ 1,093.685 
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St. James Parish 

Convent Louisiana 

St James Parish Librar/ Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Revenues: 
Taxes; 

Budget 

Onainai Final Actual 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Posititve 

CNegative) 

Property $ 1.6Q7,300 $ 1,831,200 $ 1,971,029 % 139,829 
Intergovemmentai: 

Federal - 47.100 47,065 (35) 

State 21,900 21,400 21.224 (176) 

Fines and forfeits 1,000 1,000 483 (517) 

Charges lor services 9,000 9,000 13,904 4,904 

Investment earnings (losses] 2B,90Q 3,500 (24,951) (28,451) 

Other revenues - 16,100 39,555 23,455 

Total revenues 1,728,100 1.929,300 2,068,309 139,009 

Expenditures: 

Current; 
Culture and recreation 1,293,600 1,383,000 1,221,387 162,013 

Capital outlay 73,500 58,800 52,369 6,431 

Total expenditures 1.367.100 1,442,700 1,274,256 168,444 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) 

expenditures before other financing sources (uses) 361,000 486,600 794,053 307,453 

Net change in fund balance 361,000 486,600 794,053 307,453 

Fund balance, beginning of year 5,663.916 5.329,981 5.829,981 
Fund balance, end of year $ 6.014,916 $ 6,316,581 $ 6,624,034 $ 307,453 
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St. James Parish 

Convent, Louisiana 
Consolidated Road Lighting District No. 3A 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 
Budget and Actual 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Budget 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Posilitve 

Original Final Actual (Negative) 

Revenues; 

Taxes; 
Property $ 500,€00 S 549,300 £ 586,683 $ 37.393 

IntergovemmenlaL 

Federal - 600 5ST (43) 

State 3,800 4.000 3.952 (48) 

Investment earnings (losses) 5,300 1,100 (5.434) (6,534) 

Total revenues 509,700 555,200 585,958 30,758 

Expenditures: 
Current; 

Highways and streets 559,600 502,400 471,459 30,941 

Capital outlay 190,000 - - -
Total expenditures 749,800 502,400 471,459 30,941 

Excess (dehciency) of revenues over (under) 

expenditures before other financing sources (uses) (240,100) 52.800 114.499 61.699 

Net change irt fund balance (240,100) 52,800 114,499 61,699 

Fund balance, beginning of year 1,570,666 1,561,478 1,561.470 
Fund balance, end of year S 1,330,566 S 1,714,278 £ 1,775,977 S 61,699 
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St. James Parish 

Convent. Louisfane 

Wetlands Mitigation Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Budget 

Original Final Actual 

Variance with 

Rnal Budget 

Posltitve 

Fund balance, beginning of year 
Fund balance, end of year 

S 587 S 587 S 587 
S 587 S 587 S 587 s 
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St. James Parish 
Convent. Louisiana 

Coastal Impact Assistance Program Fund 
Schedule of Revenues. Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Budget 
Original Final Actual 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Posititve 

Fund traianc^, beginning of year 
Fund balance, end of year 

$ 54,207 5 54,207 $ 54.207 S 
$ 54,207 S 54,207 $ 54.207 s 
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St. James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

St James Transit System Fund 
Schedule of Revenues. Expenditures, and Changes In Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Variance with 

Final Budget 

Budget Posititve 

Original Final Actual (Negative) 

Revenues: 
Intergovernmental: 

Federal S 921,300 S 982,200 S 1.038.765 $ 56,565 

State a.300 6,300 8.316 16 

Charges for services 15,700 15.600 14.810 (790) 

Total revenues 945,300 1,006,100 1,061,891 55,791 

Expenditures; 

Current: 

Public T ransportatlon 1,143,000 1.048,100 980,725 67.375 

Capital outlay 361,600 361,600 361,570 30 

Total expenditures 1.504.600 1.409.700 1,342,295 67,405 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) 

expenditures before other financing sources (uses) (559.300) (403.800) (280,404) 123,196 

Other financing sources (uses): 

Transfers in 559.300 404.500 278,377 (126,123) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 559.300 404.500 278,377 (126,123) 

Net change In fund balance SOO (2,027) (2,927) 

Fund balance, beginning of year 6.174 2,027 2,027 

Fund balance, end of year $ 5,174 $ 2,927 5 $ (2,927) 
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St. James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

Enhanced 911 System Maintenance Fund 
Schedule of Revenues. Expenditures, and Changes ih Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Budget 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Posltitve 
Original Final Actual (Negative) 

Revenues; 

Taxes; 

Property $ 694.700 S 765,600 $ 824,012 $ 55,412 

intergovernmental 

Federal 67,700 61,200 16,563 (44.637) 
Local - 1,100 1.831 731 

Investment earnings (losses) 16.100 3,500 (3,735) (7.235) 
Other revenues 50.400 79,900 258,782 178,382 

Total revenues 628.900 911,300 1,097,453 186.153 

Expenditures; 

Current: 
Public safety 571,500 696,000 444,325 251,075 

Cepital outlay 149.500 - - -
Total expenditures 721,000 696,000 444,325 251.675 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) 

expenditures before other financing sources (uses) 107,900 216,300 653,128 437.828 

Other financing sources (uses); 

Transfers in 146,600 118,400 84,053 (34,347) 

Transfers out (73,600) (75,000) (75,0001 -
Total other financing sources (uses) 73,200 43,400 9,053 (34,347) 

^et change in fund balance 181,100 250,700 662,18t 403,481 

Fund balance, beginning of year 3,372,150 3,481,204 3,481,204 
Fund balance, end of year S 3.553,250 S 3.739,904 $ 4.143,385 3 403,481 
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St. James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

Emergency Communication Fund 
Schedule of Revenues. Expenditures, and Changes In Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual 
Forthe Year Ended December31. 2021 

Variance with 

Final Budget 
Budget Posltitve 

Original Final Actual (Negative) 

Revenues: 

Federal $ . $ 5,000 a II 5,050 $ 50 

Local 1,500 4.500 3,042 (1.458) 

Charges for services 324,400 372,300 337.826 (34.474) 

Total revenues 325,900 381.600 345.918 (35,882) 

Expenditures; 

Current: 
Public safety 437,500 539,100 496,868 42,232 

Total expenditures 437,500 539.100 496,866 42,232 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) 

expenditures before other financing sources (uses) (111,000) (157.300) (150,950) 6,350 

Other financing sources (uses): 

Transfers in 73,600 75,000 75,000 -
Total other financing sources (uses) 73.600 75,000 7S,000 -

Net change in fund balance (38.000) (82,300) (75,950) 6,350 

Fund balance, beginning of year 38.167 128,488 128,468 

Furid balance, end of year S 167 $ 46,188 ! S 52,536 $ 6,350 
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St. James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

Elderiyand Emergency N/ledical Services Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes In Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Budget 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Posititve 
Original Final Actual (Negativs) 

Revenueer 

Taxes: 

Sales and use $ 1,767,800 £ 1.350,100 $ 1,415.132 £ 65,032 

1 ntergove m mental 

Federal - 2,900 2,889 (11) 

State 800 800 779 (21) 

Investment earnings (losses) 18,200 1,800 (6,540) (8.340) 

Other revenues - - 366,681 366,681 

Total revenues 1,786,800 1.355,600 1,778.941 423.341 

Expenditures; 

Current: 

Health and welfere 2,246,800 2,109,900 2,320,416 (210,518) 

Capital outlay 168,000 - - -
Total expenditures 2,414,800 2.109.900 2,320,416 (210,516) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) 

expenditures before other financing sources (uses) (628,000) (754.300) (541,475) 212,825 

Other financing sources (uses): 

Transfers in 540.500 961.900 1.066,391 104,491 

Transfers out (95,700) (31.000) (51.631) (20,631) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 444,800 930.900 1.014.760 83,860 

Net cttange in fund balance (183,200) 176,800 473.285 296,685 

Fund balance. b^iri.njng of year 3,255,106 3,673,195 3,673.195 _ 
Fund balance, end of year S 3,071,906 S 3,849,795 S 4,146,480 S 296,685 
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St. JaTTies Parish 
Convent Louisiana 

Energy Assistance Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes In Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual 

For ttie Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Budget 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Posititve 
Original Final Actual (Negative) 

Revenues: 
Intergovernmental: 

Federal 
Other revenues 

$ 143,300 « 134,700 $ 128,130 
95 

$ (6,561) 

99 

Total revenues 143,300 134,700 126,238 (6,462) 

Expenditures: 

Current: 
Health ar>d welfare 143,300 134,700 128,138 6,562 

Total expenditures 143,300 134,700 128,138 6,562 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) 

expenditures before other financing sources (uses) 100 100 

Net change in fund balance 100 100 

Fund balance, beginning of year 
Fund balance, end of year s - s - $ 100 s 100 
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St. James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

Parks and Recreation Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Charrges in Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Budflet 

Vanance vi/ith 

Final Budget 

Posititve 

Original Final Atduai (Negative) 

Revenues: 

Taxes; 

Sales and use $ 1.767.8Q0 S 1,350.100 5 1,415,132 $ 65,032 

intsrgovemmentar; 

Federal • 1,300 1,323 23 

Charges for services 7,300 9,700 10,655 955 

Investment earnings (fosses) 27.500 4.200 (6,609) (11,089) 

Other revenues 2,600 13,600 248,262 234.662 

Totai revenues 1,805,400 1,378,900 1,668,463 289.583 

Expenditures: 

Current: 

Culture and recreation 1,887.900 1,593.300 1,198.952 394.343 

Capital outlay 3,910,000 306.800 150,603 156,197 

Total expenditures 5,797,900 1,900,100 1,349,555 550,545 

Excess (def ciency) of revenues over (under) 

expenditures before other financing sources (uses) (3,992,500) (521.200) 313.928 040,120 

Other financing sources (uses): 

Transfers in 1,000.000 500,000 44,185 (455,315) 

Transfers out - (91.500) (91,484) 16 

Total other financirtg sources (uses) 1,000.000 408,500 (47,299) (455,799) 

Net change in fund balance (2,992.500) (112,700) 271,629 384.329 

Fund balance, beginning of year 3,526,200 4,205,555 4,205,555 . 
Fund balance, end of year S 533JB0 S 4,092,955 $ 4,477,184 5 384,329 
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St James Parish 

Convent, Louisiana 
Gramercy Recreation District Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual 

For the Year Ended December 31,2021 

Budget 

Vanance with 

Final Budget 

Posititve 
Original Final Actual (Negative) 

Revenues; 

Taxes: 

Property 

intergovemmentai 

Federal 

State 
Other revenues 

$ 203,BOQ $ 

6,700 

1.400 

235,800 S 

200 

6,900 

1,500 

278,619 

203 

6.830 
15.333 

$ 42,819 

3 

m 
13,883 

Total revenues 211,900 244,400 301,035 56,635 

Experdlluresr 

Current: 
Culture and recreation 

Capital outlay 

196,300 

650.000 

196,100 

241,500 

200.021 

220,374 

(3,921) 

21,126 
Total expenditures 846,300 437,600 420.395 17,205 

Excess {deficiency) of revenues over (under) 
expenditures before other financing sources (uses) (€34,400) (193.200) {119.360} 73,840 

Other financing sources (uses): 

Transfers in 400,000 91,500 91,484 (16) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 400,000 91,500 91.434 (16) 

Net change in fund balance (234,400) (101,700) (27,876) 73,824 

Fund balance, beginning of year 305,719 359,724 359.724 . 
Fund balance, end of year S 72,319 S 258,024 S 331,848 $ 73,824 
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St, James Parish 

Convent, Louisiana 

District V Recreation District Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 
Budget and Actual 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Variance with 

Final Budget 
Budget Positrtve 

Original Final Actual (Negative) 

Revenues: 

Taxes; 
Property $ 186,800 $ 194.600 S 211,635 $ 17,235 

Investment earnings (losses) 5.900 400 422 22 

Other revenues - - 5,582 5,582 

Total revenues 192,700 195.000 217,639 22.839 

Expenditures: 

Current 

Culture and recreation 142,100 161,400 132,266 19,115 

Capital outlay 85,000 223,500 211,966 11,634 

Total expenditures 227,100 374,900 344,251 30,649 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) 

expenditures before other financing sources (uses) (34,400) (179,900) (126.412) 63.488 

Net change in fund balance (34,400) (170,900) (128,412) 53,466 

Fund balance, beginning of year 923,176 1,250,407 1,250,407 . 
Fund balance, end of year S 693,776 $ 1,070,507 $ 1.123,995 S 53.488 
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St. James Parish 
Convent. Lojisiara 

St. James Volunteer Fire Department Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Budget 

Variance with 

Final Budget 

Posrtitve 
Original Final Actual (Negative) 

Revenues: 

1 ntergovemmenlal: 

State S 44,700 S 44,500 I S 44,795 $ (5) 

Investment eamrngs (losses) 10.100 1,BD0 (10,097) (11.897) 

Other revenues 200 500 43,560 43,060 

Total revenues 55.00Q 47,100 78258 31.158 

Expenditures: 

Current: 

Public safety 215.100 175.800 165,063 10,737 

Capital outlay - 50,000 11,350 38,650 

Total expenditures 215,100 225,500 176,413 49.387 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) 

expenditures before other financing sources (uses) (160.100) (178,700) (05,155) 60,545 

Other financing sources (uses): 

Transfers in 444,700 837,800 924.505 85,705 
Total other financing sources (uses) 444,700 837,800 924.505 86,705 

Net change In fund balance 284,600 658,100 626,350 167,250 

Fund balance, beginning of year 2,293,059 2,506,437 2,506.437 
Fund balance, end of year S 2,577,659 $ 3,165.537 ! S 3,332,757 S 167,250 

Exhibit B'19 

135 



St. James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

Qramercy Volunteer Fire Department Restricted Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Budget 
Original Final Actual 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Posititve 

Fund balance, beginning of year $ 177,243 S 177,243 S 177,243 3 
Fund balance, end of year $ 177,243 $ 177.243 S 177.243 $ 
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St. Jemes Parish 
Ccnvent, Louisiana 

Union-Covenl Volunteer Fire Departmieril Fuod 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended December 31,2021 

Budget 

Vahancewith 
Final Budget 

Positrtve 
OriginaJ Final Actual (Negative) 

Revenues: 

htergovemmental 

State $ 7.300 $ 7,300 J 7,327 $ 27 

Investment earnings (tosses) 4,400 1,100 (2,148) (3.248) 

Other revenues 2.200 2,800 142,631 139,831 

Total revenues 13.900 11,200 147.810 136,610 

Expenditures: 

Current: 

Public safety 134,700 117,700 69,002 48.698 

Total expenditures 134,700 117,700 69.002 48.698 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) 

expenditures before other financing sources (uses) (120,800) (106,500) 78,808 185,308 

Other financing sources (uses): 

Transfers in 247,700 410.600 457,627 47,027 

Total other financing sources (uses) 247,700 410,600 457,627 47,027 

Net change in fund balance 126,900 304,100 536,435 232,335 

Fund balance, beginning of year 907,417 1,008.847 1,000.847 

Fund balance, end of year $ 1,034,317 $ 1,312.947 % 1,545.282 $ 232.335 
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St, James Parish 

Convent. Louisiana 
North Vacherie Volunteer Fire Department Fund 

Schedule of Rever^ues. Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual 

Forthe Year Ended December31, 2021 

Budget 

Revenues; 
IntergovemmentBl: 

State 
Investment earnings (losses) 

Other revenues 

Total revenues 

Hxpendllures: 

Current: 

Public safety 

Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

Excess (defidency) of revenues over (under) 

expenditures before other nnancing sources (uses) 

Other financing sources (uses): 

Transfers in 
Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balance 

Fund balance, beginning of year 
Fund balance, end of year 

Variance with 

Final Budget 

Positftve 

Original Final Actual (Negative) 

1 19,000 S ig.DOQ ¥ 1B.5S1 $ (19) 

9,600 1.400 (1,831) (3,231) 

. 234,400 234,396 (4) 

2S,600 254,600 251,546 (3,254) 

165,300 377,700 308,938 68,762 

130.700 72,400 7,415 64,965 

296.000 450,100 316.353 133,747 

(267.400) (195,300) (64.807) 130,493 

357.100 632,600 690,416 66,816 

357.100 632,600 699,416 66,816 

B9.70D 437,300 634,609 197,309 

952.950 1,231,163 1,231,183 
S 1,042.650 S 1,668,483 S 1,866,792 $ 197,309 

Exhibit B • 22 

136 



St, James Parish 
Conveht Louisiana 

South VacKerie Volunteer Fire Department Fund 
Schedule of Revenues. Expenditures, and Changes in Fund SaTances 

Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Budget 

Variance with. 
Final Budget 

Positilve 
OflSlnal Final Actual (Negative) 

Revenues; 

Intergovernrnentalr 

State 3 13,800 3 13,800 1 & 13,807 S 7 
Investment earnings (losses) 8,600 1,800 (3,478) (5.278) 
Other revenues - - 27 27 

Total revenues 22,400 15,600 10,356 (6,244) 

Expenditures: 

Current 

Public safety 196,300 223.200 149,700 73,500 
Capital outlay 40,500 61,500 61,505 (6) 

Total expenditures 236,800 234,700 211,206 73,494 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) 

expenditures before other financing sources (uses) (214,400) (269,100) (200,850) 68,250 

Other financing sources (uses): 

Transfers in 267,900 447.600 497,791 50,191 

Total other financing sources (uses) 267,900 447,600 497,791 50,191 

Net change in fund balance 53,500 178.500 296,941 118,441 

Fund balance, beginning of year 1,601,478 1.809,775 1,809,775 
Fund balance, end of year $ 1,654,978 S 1,988,275 ! i 2,106,716 $ 118,441 
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St. Jsmss Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 
Ciiminal Court Fund 

Schedute of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes In Fund Balances 
Budget and Actual 

For the Year Ended Decemder 31, 2021 

Variance with 

Final Budget 

Budget Positltve 

Oiiginal Finai Actual (Negative) 

Revenues; 

Intergovemmentat; 

State S 15.600 $ 15,800 J E 15,798 $ (2) 

Local 27,600 22,000 20,971 (1,029) 

Fines and forfeits 110,100 130,300 156,463 28,163 

Other revenues - 800 644 44 

Total rever^ues 153,700 168,900 196,076 27,176 

Expenditures; 

Current: 

General govemment 967,200 1,069.800 1,066.168 3.632 

Total expenditures 967,200 1,069,800 1.066,166 3,632 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over {under} 

expenditures before other financing sources {uses) (833,500) (900,900) (870.092) 30,808 

Other financing sources (uses): 

Transfers in 833,500 B87.200 861.000 (26,200) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 833,500 387,200 861,000 (26,200) 

Net change in fund balance - (13,700) (9,092) 4.608 

Fund balance, beginning of year 61 13,701 13,701 

Fund balance, end of year £ 61 $ 1 : % 4,609 S 4.6Q8 
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St. James Parish 
Convent, Lojisiana 

CC - Juror Compensation Fees Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Budget 

Variance with 

Final Budget 

Posititve 
Oiiglnal Final Actual (Negative) 

Revenues: 

Investment earnings (lasses) 

Other revenues 

S 3.400 

36.000 
1 700 

34.000 

$ {720} 

48,274 

S {1,420) 

14,274 

Total revenues 39,400 34,700 47,554 12,854 

Expenditures: 

Current: 

General government 32.000 25,000 11,098 13,902 

Total expenditures 32,000 25,0QQ 11,098 13,902 

Excess (deftcienoy) of revenues over (under) 

expenditures before other financing sources (uses) 7.4QD 9,700 36,456 26,756 

Net change in fund balance 7,400 9,700 36,456 26,756 

Fund balance, beginning of year 661.233 657.383 687,383 

Fund balance, end of year S 668,633 I 697.QS3 5 723,839 5 26,756 
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St, James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

CO ' Law Ersforcement Officer Witness Fees Fund 
Scheduie of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget and Actuai 
For the Year Ended December 31. 2021 

Budget 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Posititve 
Original Ftnai Actual {Negative) 

Revenues: 

Other revenues % 22.800 $ 27,200 S 38,600 $ 11,400 

Total revenues 22.800 27.200 38,500 11,400 

Expenditures; 

Current; 

General government 21,000 10,400 9,500 900 

Total expenditures 21,000 10,400 9,500 900 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) 

expenditures before other firvancing sources (uses) 1,800 16,800 29,100 12,300 

Net change in fund balance 1,800 18,600 29,100 12,300 

fund balance, beginning of year 57,415 59,445 59,445 

Furid balance, end of year £ 59.215 £ 76,245 £ 83,545 S 12,300 
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St. James Parish 

Convent. Louisiana 
Community Services Block Grant Fund 

Schedule of Revenues. Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Budget 

Variance with 

Final Budget 

Posititve 

Oiiginal Final Actuai (Negative) 

Revenues: 

I n tergovemmentat: 

Federal 

Other revenues 

S 65,600 $ 105.900 $ 65.024 

(1) 

$ (40,676) 

(t) 

Total revenues 85,600 105,900 65,023 (40,877) 

Expenditures; 

Current: 

Health and welfare 65.600 105,900 65.023 40,877 

Total expenditures 65.600 106,500 65,023 40,877 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) 

expenditures before other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balance 

Fund batance. begirtning of year 
Fund balance, end of year 
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SI. Jamas Pansh 

Convent, Louisiana 

Emeiigency Food & Shelter Fund 

Schedule of Revenuas, Expenditures, and Changes In Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Budget 

Variance with 

Final Budget 

Posititve 

Original Final Actual (Negative) 

Revenues; 

Intergovernmental; 

Federal $ 17.000 S 9.000 $ 17.364 S 8,364 

Other revenues - 7,200 7.185 (5) 

Total revenues 17,000 16,200 24.559 8,359 

Expenditures: 

Current: 
Health and welfare 17.000 17,400 25.783 (6,383) 

Total expenditures 17.000 17,400 25,783 (8,303) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) 

expenditures before other financing sources (uses) - (1,200) (1;224) (24) 

Other financing sources (uses): 

Transfers in - 1,200 1,224 24 

Total other financing sources (uses) - 1,200 1,224 24 

Net change in fund balance 

Fund balance, beginning of year 
Fund balance, end of year 
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SI. James Paristi 
Convent. Louisiana 

Title Ell - C-2 Home Delivered Meals Fund 
Schedule of Revenues. Expenditures, arvj Changes In Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Budget 

Variance with 
Finai Budget 

Posititve 
Original Final Actual (Negative) 

Revenues: 

Intergovernmental; 

Federal $ 37,500 S 42,100 ! E 41,822 S (278) 

State 7.300 17,900 7.888 (10,012) 

Other revenues 6.200 S.400 4,088 (4,312) 

Total revenues 51,000 68,400 53,798 (14,602) 

Expenditures: 

Current: 

Health and welfare 239,400 210,700 221,145 (10,445) 

Total expenditures 239.400 210,700 221,145 (10,445) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) 

expenditures before other financing sources (uses) (186,400) (142,300) (167,347) (25.047) 

Other financing sources (uses); 

Transfers In 188,400 142,300 167,347 25.047 

Total other financing sources (uses) 188,400 142,300 167,347 25.047 

Net change in fund balance 

Fund balance, beginning of year 
Fund balance, end of year 
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St. James Pariah 
Convent, Louisiana 

Trtle III - C-1 Congregate Meals Fund 
Schedule of Revenues. Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Budget 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Posititve 
Original Final Actual (Negative) 

Revenues: 

Intergovernmental; 

Federal $ 28,50(1 $ 23,200 S 23,236 $ 36 

State 27.000 19.300 27,129 7,829 

Other revenues 4,600 5.400 4,222 (1,178) 

Total revenues 60,100 47.900 54,587 6,687 

Expenditures: 

Current: 

Health and welfare 111,800 114,700 129,042 (14,342) 

Total expenditures 111,800 114,700 129,042 (14,342) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) 

expenditures before other financing sources (uses) (51,700) (66,800) (74,455) (7,6551 

Other financing sources (uses): 

Transfers in 51,700 66,800 74,455 7.655 

Total other financing sources (uses) 51,700 66,800 74,455 7.656 

l^et change in fund balance 

Fund balance, beginning of year 
Fund balance, end of year 
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St. Jamas Parish 
Convent. Louisiana 

Title III - B Supportive Services Fund 
SchedLile of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Budget 

Variance with 
Rnai Budget 

Posititve 
Original Final Actual (Negative) 

Revenues; 
(ntergovemmentat: 

Federal $ 26,900 $ 31,600 ! $ 27,602 $ (3,99B) 

State 1,400 1,500 6.157 4.657 

Other revenues - (4,300) (6.203) (1,903} 

Total revenues 28,300 28,800 27,556 (1,244) 

Expenditures: 

Current: 

Health and welfare 46,900 44,700 39,122 5.578 

Total expenditures 46,900 44jao 39.122 6.578 

Excess {deficiency) of revenues over (under) 

expenditures before other financing sources (uses) (18,600) (15,900) (11.566) 4.334 

Other financing sources (uses): 

Transfers in 18,600 15.900 11,506 (4,334) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 18,600 15.900 11,566 (4,334) 

Net change in fund balance 

Fund balance, beginning of year 
Fund balance, end of year 
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St. James Parish 

Convent, Louisiana 

Title lit - C-1 Area Agency Administration Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual 

For the Year Ended December 31. 2021 

Budget 

Variance with 

Final Budget 

Posititve 

Original Final Actual (Negative) 

Revenues; 

Intergovernmental-

Federal 

State 

Other revenues 

s 10,100 

3,400 

$ 10,300 

3,500 

$ 10,339 

3,447 
(4) 

S 39 
(53) 

(4) 

Total revenues 13.500 13,800 13.782 (18) 

Expenditures: 

Current: 

Health and welfare 13.500 13,800 13,782 18 

Total expenditures 13.500 13,800 13,782 18 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) 

expenditures before otiier f nandng sources (uses) _ 

Net change tn fund balance 

Fund bafsnce, beginning of year 
Fund baFance, end of year 
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SI. James Parish 
Convent. Louisiana 

Title III - D Preventive Health Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended Decamber 31, 2021 

VarJance with 
Final Budget 

Posititve 
Original Rnai Actual (Negative) 

Revenues: 
intergovernmental 

Federal 
Other revenues 

S 3.300 $ 3,300 S 

1,600 

3,309 

12 

$ 9 

(1.588) 

Total revenues 3,300 4,900 3,321 (1.579) 

Expenditures: 

Current: 

Health and welfare 3,300 1,600 1,600 

Total expenditures 3.300 1,600 - 1.600 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) 

expenditures before other financing sources (uses) 3,300 3,321 21 

Other financing sources (uses): 

Transfers out (3.300) (3,321) (21) 

Total other financing sources (uses) - (3.300) (3,321) (21) 

Met change In fund balance 

Fund balance, beginning of year 
Fund balance, end of year 
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St James Parish 

Convent, Louisiana 

Title 111' E NFCSP (Caregiver) Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Barances 

Budget and Actual 

For the Year Ended December 31. 2021 

Budget 

Variance with 

Final Budget 

Posititve 

Original Final Actual (Negative) 

Revenues: 

intergovernmental: 

Federal $ 14.100 S 14.400 i E 14,401 $ 1 

State 3.600 3.700 3.658 (42) 

Other revenues - 2,600 2,943 343 

Total revenues 17,700 20,700 21,002 302 

Expenditures: 

Current: 
Health and welfare 36,900 30,100 30,044 56 

Total expenditures 39.900 30,100 30,044 56 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) 

expenditures before other financing sources (uses) (22,200) (9.400) (9,042) 358 

Other fmancing sources (uses); 

Transfers in 22,200 9,400 9,042 (358) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 22,200 9,400 9,042 (358) 

Net change in fund balance 

Fund balance, beginning of year 
Fund balance, end of year 

Dthlbit B - 34 
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St. James Parish 

Convent, Louisiana 

Senior Center Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Budget 

Variance v/ith 

Final Budget 

Positltve 
Onglnai Final Actual (Negative) 

Revenues: 

intergovernmental: 

State S 30,500 $ 30.BO0 $ 30,506 $ (94) 

Other revenues - - (1.012) (1,012) 

Total revenues 30,^0 30,600 29.49A (1,106) 

Expenditures: 

Current: 
Health and welfare 7,aOQ 8.700 3.945 4.756 

Total expenditures 7,aoo 8,700 3,945 4,755 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) 

expenditures before other financing sources (uses) 22.700 21.900 25.549 3.649 

Other financing sources (uses): 

Transfers in 7,300 13,700 8,955 (4,745) 

Transfers out (30,500) (35,600) (34,504) 1,096 

Total other financing sources (uses) (22.700) (21,900) (25,549) (3,649) 

Net change in Fund balance 

Fund balance, beginning of year 
Fund balance, end of year 
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St. James Pariish 

Convent, Louisiana 

GOEA Supplemental Senior Center Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes In Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Budget 

Variance with 

Final Budget 

Posititve 
Original Final Actual (Negative) 

Revenues: 

Intergovemmental: 

Stale $ 3,D00 i » 3.100 $ 3,100 3 
Total revenues 3,000 3.100 3,100 _ 

Excess {def ciency) of revenues over {under) 

expenditures before other nnancir\g sources (uses) 3,000 3,100 3.100 -

Other financing sources (uses): 

Transfers out (3,000) (3.100) (3.100) -
Total other financing sources (uses) (3,000) (3.100) (3.100) -

Net change in fund balance 

Fund balance, beginning of year 
Fund balance, end of year 
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St. James Parish 

Convent, Louisiana 

Senior Center Additional Appropriation Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Budget 

Variance with 

Final Budget 

Positltve 

Original rina) Actual (Negative) 
Revenues; 

Taxes: 
Intergovernmental: 

State S 7.800 5 7,800 $ 7.B14 $ 14 
Ottier revenues - 3,900 1,141 (2,759) 

Total revenues 7,800 11,700 8.9S5 (2.745) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) 
expenditures before other financing sources (uses) 7.800 11,700 8,955 (2.745) 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers out (7,800) (11,700) (8,955) 2,745 

Total otfierFnancing sources (uses) (7.800) (11,700) (8,955) 2.745 

Net change in fund balance 

Fund balance, beginning of year 
Fund balance, end of year 
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St. James Parish 
Convent, Lauisiana 

ntle V Senior Employment Fund 
Schedule of Revenues. Expenditures, and Changes tn Fund Ba.^nces 

Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Budget 
Oitglna! Final Actual 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Posititve 
(Negative) 

Revenues: 
Other revenues S - s $ 27 5 27 

Total revenues - 27 27 

Excess (deficiency) o1 revenues over (under) 
expenditures before other financing sources (uses) 27 27 

Net change In fur^d balance 27 27 

Fund balance, beginning of year - _ . 

Fund balance, end of year $ - $ £ 27 $ 27 

Exhibit B - 3B 
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St. James Parish 
Ccnvem, Louisiana 

Area Agency on Aging - Parish Council on Aging Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes In Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Budget 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Posititve 
Origlnai Final Actual (Negative) 

Revenues: 

Intergovemnwntal: 

State 

Other revenues 

$ 100,000 $ 92,000 

11,100 

$ 100,000 

11,104 

S 8,000 

4 

Total revenues 100,000 103,100 111,104 B,004 

Excess {deficiency) of revenues over (under) 

expenditures before other financing sources (uses) 100,000 103,100 111,104 8,004 

Other financing sources (uses): 

Transfers out 
Total other financing sources (uses) 

(100,000) 

I100.000) 

(103,100) 

(103,100) 

(111,104) 

(111.104) 

(8,004) 

(8,004) 

Net change in fund balance 

Fund balance, beginning of year 
Fund balance, end of year 

Exhibit B - 39 
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St. James Parish 
Corn/ent, Louisiana 

Area Agency on Aging - Nutritional Services incentive Program Fund 
Scheduie of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended Decemlaer 21, 2021 

Budget 

Variance with 

Final Budget 
Posititye 

Original Final Actual (Negative) 

Revenues: 

Intergovernmental: 

Federal 

Other revenues 

£ 51,700 £ 48.800 

11.500 

$ 47,201 

11,549 

S {1,599) 

49 

Total revenues 51,700 60,300 58,750 {1.550) 

Exc^s (deficiency) of revenues over (under) 

expenditures before other financing sources (uses) 51,700 60.200 58,750 {1.550) 

Other financing sources (uses); 

Transfers out (S1,70O) (60,300) (58,750) 1.550 

Total other financing sources (uses) (51,700) (60,300) (58,750) 1.550 

Net change In fund balance 

Fund balance, beginning of year 
Fund balance, end of year 

Exhibit B -40 
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St. James Parish 
Convert, Louisiana 

Older Americans Act Fund 
Schedule of RevenueSn Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Budget 

Variance with 

Final Budget 

Posititve 

Oriqinal Final Actual (Negative) 

Revenues; 

Intergovernmental: 

Federal 

Other revenues 

1 
1 

1,900 $ 1,879 

[1.879) 

S (21) 

(1.879) 

Total revenues • 1,900 - (1,900) 

Expenditures: 

Current: 

Health and welfare 1,900 1,900 

Total expenditures - 1.900 - 1,900 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) 

ej^nditures before other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balance i. 

Fund balance, beginning of year _ • 
Fund balance, end of year $ - s - s $ 

Exhibit B-41 
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SI. James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

Rtver Parish Youth Build Fur\d 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes In Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Budget Posilitve 
Original Final Actual 

Revenues: 

Other revenues $ $ - $ 429 £ 429 

Total revenues - - 429 429 

Expenditures: 

Current; 

Health and welfare 500 494 6 

Total expenditures - 500 494 5 

Excess (def ciency} of revenues over (under) 

expenditures before other financing sources (uses) (500) (65) 43S 

Other rinancing sources (uses): 

Transfers In 500 494 (6) 

Total other financing sources (uses) - 500 494 (6) 

Net change In fund balance 429 429 

Fund balance, beginning of year . 
Fund balance, end of year $ S $ 429 S 429 

Exhibit B - 42 
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St. Jamss Parish 
Convent Louisiana 

Youth Build AmsriCorps Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes In Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Budget 
Original Final Actual 

Revenues; 
Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) 
expenditures before other financing sources (uses] 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Posititve 
(Negative) 

$ 

Net change in fund balance 

Fund balance, beginning of year 
Fund balance, end of year 

Exhibits'43 
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St. Jam^s Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

Housing Preservatior Grant Fund 
Schedule of Revenues. Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Budget 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Posititve 

Original Final Actual (Negative) 

Revenues: 

Intergovernmental: 

Federal $ 24,100 $ 36.900 $ 36,907 3 7 

Total revenues 24,100 36.900 35,907 7 

Expenditures: 

Current; 
Health and welfare 24,100 36.900 38.669 (1,769) 

Total expenditures 24,100 36.900 38.669 {1J69) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over {under) 

expenditures before other Unandng sources (uses) (1.762) (1.762) 

Other financing sources (uses); 

Transfers in 1.752 1,762 

Total other financing sources (uses) - - 1.762 1.762 

Net change in fund balance 

Fund balance, beginning of year 
Fund balance, end of year 

Exhibits -Ai 
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St James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

SI. James Youth Center Fund 
Schedule of Revertues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fur^d Balances 

Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended December 21, 2021 

Budget 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

PosititvB 
Ohginal Final Actual (Negative) 

Revenues: 

Taxes: 

Property S 323,500 S 367,500 S 395,543 $ 28,043 

Rnaa ar>d forfeits 1,000 1,000 1,001 1 
Investment earnings (losses) 16.900 2.100 (11,395) (13,495) 

Other revenues - - 41 41 
Total revenues 351,400 370,600 385,190 14,590 

Expenditures: 

Current: 

Public safety 152.700 184,000 195,454 (11,454) 

Total expenditures 162,700 184,000 195,454 (11,454) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) 

expenditures before other financing sources (uses) 188,700 186,600 189,736 3i136 

Other fnanclng sources (uses): 

Transfers out (1.200,000) - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) (1,200,000) - -

Net change in fund balance (1,011,300) 186.600 189.736 3,136 

Fund balance, beginning of year 3.0&B.750 3,157,947 3,157,947 
Fund balance, end of year $ 2,087,450 S 3,344,547 $ 3,347,683 S 3,136 
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NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

The debt service funds are used to account for the accumulation of principal and interest from govemmental resources. 
Revenues for the debt service funds are provided by property taxes, sales taxes, and Interest on investments. The Parish 
maintains the following debt service funds: 

Certificates of Indebtedness Fund 

The Certificates of Indebtedness Fund accounts for the retirement certificates of indebtedness. In 2010 the Parish issued 
certificates of indebtedness totaiing $2,000,000 for the purpose of renovating, improving, equipping, and expanding the 
library facilities on the East Bank. Limited Tax Certificates, Series 2011, in the amount of $2,500,000 were Issued for the 
purpose of renovating. Improving and expanding St James Pansh Hospital. In 2012, the Parish issued Limited Tax 
Certificates. Series 2012, in the amount of $180,000 for the purpose of purchasing a fire truck and other fire equipment. 

Consolidated General Obllgafion Bonds Fund 

The Consolidated General Obligation Bonds Fund accounts for the property tax levies needed to comply with the interest 
and principal redemption requirements of the General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2005 Issue, the General 
Obligation Bonds. Series 2007 issue, and the General Obligation Bonds. Series 2014 issue. 

Limited Tax Bonds Fund 

The Limited Tax Bonds fund accounts for the sale of $850,000 in Limited Tax Bonds, Series 2017, for the payment of the 
pre-constnjction design and engineering costs in connection with the widening of Louisiana Highway 20, 

60MESA Revenue Bonds Fund 

The GOMESA Revenue Bonds Fund accounts for the revenues needed to comply with the Interest and principal 
redemption requirements of the GOMESA Senas 2019 Issuance. 

162 



St. James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

Nonmajor Debt Service Funds 
Combining Balance Sheet 

December 31, 2021 

Certificates of 
Indebtedness 

Consolidated 
General 

Obligation 
Bonds 

Limited 
Tax 

Bonds 

GOMESA 
Revenue 

Bonds Total 
Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Receivables 

$ 6,166 S 10,626 

474,026 

O
 

1 
1 

o
 

$ 464,582 $ 481,474 

474,026 

Total assets $ 6,166 5 484,652 $ 100 $ 464,582 $ 955,500 

Liabilities and fund balance 
Liabilities; 

Accounts payable $ 3 15,277 $ $ $ 15,277 
Total liabilities - 15,277 - - 15,277 

Fund balance: 
Restricted 6.166 469,375 100 464,502 940,223 

Total fund balance 6.166 469,375 100 464,582 940,223 
Total liabilities and fund balance $ 6,166 $ 484,652 $ 100 $ 464,582 S 955,500 

EXHIBIT B-46 

163 



St. James Paristi 
Convent, Louisiana 

Nonmajor Debt Service Funds 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Certificates of 
Indebtedness 

Consolidated 
General 

Obligation 
Bonds 

Limited 
Tax 

Bonds 

GOMESA 
Revenue 

Bonds Total 
Revenues: 

Taxes: 
Property 

Investment earnings (losses) 
$ $ 477,081 3 

(144) 
- £ - $ 

291 
477,081 

147 
Total revenues - 476,937 - 291 477,228 

Expenditures; 
Current: 

General government: 
Financial administration 

Debt Service; 
Principal 
Interest and other costs 

- 15,371 

380,000 
62,178 

80,000 
13,826 

315,000 
302,445 

16,371 

775,000 
378,449 

Total expenditures - 458,549 93,826 617,445 1,169,820 

Excess of revenues over (under) 
expenditures before other 

financing sources (uses) 18,388 (93,826) (617,154) (692,592) 

Other financing sources (uses); 
Operating transfers in 
Operating transfers out 

- - 93,826 683,308 
(356,897) 

777.134 
(356,897) 

Total ottier financing 
sources (uses) . 93,826 326,411 420,237 

Net change in fund balance - 18,388 - (290,743) (272,355) 

Fund balance, beginning of year S,1B6 450,937 100 755,325 1,212,578 
Fund balance, end of year $ 6,166 $ 469,375 $ 100 $ 464,582 $ 940,223 

EXHIBITS-47 
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St. James Parish 

Convent, Loutsiana 

GertifTcates of Indebtedness Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Budget 

On'gina! Ffnal Actual 

Variance with 

Rnal Budget 

Posititve 

Fund balance, beginning of year $ 6,166 $ 6,166 S 6,166 £ 
Fund balance, end of year $ 6.166 S 6,166 $ 6,166 $ 
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St James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

Consolidated General Obligation Bonds Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes In Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended December 31,2021 

Budget 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Posltitve 
Original Final Actual (Negative) 

Revenues: 

Taxes: 

Property $ 288,100 $ 311,800 ! E 477,081 S 185.281 

Investment earnings (losses) 700 - (144) (144) 

Total revenues 288,600 311,800 476,937 165,137 

Expenditures; 

Current: 

General government 12,700 n,7Q0 16,371 (4.671) 

Debt Servica 
Principal 380,000 380.000 380,000 -
Interest and other costs 52,200 62,200 62,178 22 

Total expenditures 454,900 453,900 458,549 (4.649) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) 

expenditures before other financing sources (uses) (166,100) (142,100) 18.388 160,488 

Net change in fund balance (166,100) (142,100) 18,388 160,488 

Fund balance, beginning of year 429,828 450,987 450,987 

Fund balance, end of year $ 263J28 $ 308,887 1 S 469,375 $ 160,486 
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St. James Parish 
Convent. Louisiana 

Limited Tax Bonds Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Budget 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Posititve 
Original Final Actual [Negative) 

Expenditures; 

Debt Service: 

Prtncipa} 

Interest and other costs 

$ 80.000 $ 

13,800 

80,000 1 

13,800 
S 80.000 

13,826 (26) 

Total expenditures 93.800 93.800 93,826 (26) 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) 

expenditures before other finar\clng sources (uses) (93.800) (93.800) (93,826) (26) 

Other financing sources (uses): 

Tratisfers in 93.800 93,800 93,826 26 
Total other financing sources (uses) 93.800 93,800 93,826 26 

Net change in fund balance . 

Fund balance, beginning of year 101 100 100 
Fund balance, end of year $ 101 $ 100 1 S 100 $ 
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St. James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

GOMESA Revenue Bonds Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes In Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Budget 

Variance with 

Final Budget 

Posititve 

Ohginal Final Actual (Negative) 

Reversues; 

Investment earnings (fosses) $ m s 100 $ 291 $ 191 

Total revenues 100 100 291 191 

Expenditures: 

Debt Service; 

Principal 

Interest end other costs 

205,000 

312,000 

310,000 

302,400 

315.000 

302,445 

(5,000) 

(45) 

Total expenditures 517.00D 612,400 617,445 (5,045) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) 

expenditures before other financing sources (uses) (516,900) (612,300) (617,154) (4,854) 

Other financing sources (uses): 

Transfers In 
Transfers out 

966,000 682,300 

(356,900) 

683,308 

(356.897) 

1.008 

3 

Total other financing sources (uses) 965,000 325,400 326.411 1,011 

Net change In fund balance 448,100 (286,900) (290,743) (3.843) 

Fund balance, beginning of year 1,000,883 755.325 755.325 
Fund balance, end of year $ 1,448,983 $ 468,425 S 464.582 $ (3,843) 

Exhibit B - 51 
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NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 

Capital projects lunds are used to account for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities other than those 
financed by proprietary ̂ nds and trust funds. The following are the Parish's capital projects fijnds; 

Partshwide Road tmprovement Fund 

The Partshwide Road Improvement Fund accounts for partshwide road Improvements which includes the construction of 
new roads and bridges. This fund is supported by transfers from the Road and Bridge Maintenance Fund. 

Parishwfde Sewer Construction Fund 

The Parishwide Sewer Construction Fund accounts for expenditures associated with the proposed construction of a 
parishwide sewer system. The program was financed by the United States Environmental Protection Agency (75%) and 
the St. James Parish Council (25%) through the sale of general obligation bonds. The program consisted of three phases 
of which two phases have been completed. Actual construction on the third phase has not yet begun. 

LCDBG Road Improvement Fund 

The LCDBG Road tmprovement Fund accounts for parishwide road Improvements funded with a Louisiana Community 
Development Block Grant. Funding Is provided from the State of Louisiana, Division of Administration, Office of Community 
Development. 

LCDBG Sewer Construction Fund 

The LCDBG Sewer Construction Fund Is used to account for expenditures associated with the development and 
construction of a community sewerage treatment and disposal system funded with a Louisiana Community Development 
Block Grant. Funding is provided from the State of Louisiana, Division of Administration, Office of Community 
Development 

District V Recreation Construction Fund 

The District V Recreation Construction Fund accounts for the construction of a multi-purpose building for the District V 
Recreation District. Funding was provided by the sale of general obligation bonds in the amount of $1.700,000. 

IHazard Mitigation Grant Program Fund 

The Hazard (litigation Grant Program Fund accounts for projects that help localized drainage improvements, and building 
retrofitting and hardening. Funding is provided by FEMA through the State of Louisiana. Governor's Office of Homeland 
Security and Emergency Preparedness. 

Highway 20 Widening Project Fund 

The Highway 20 Widening Project Fund accounts for the expenditures of the pre-construction design and engineering fees 
for the widening of Louisiana Highway 20. 

CDBG Disaster Recovery Projects Fund 

The CDBG Disaster Recovery Projects Fund accounts for projects relating to hurricane disaster recovery. Funding Is 
provided from the State of Louisiana, Division of Administration, Office of Community Development. 
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NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 
(Concluded) 

GOMESA Series 2019 Construction Fund 

The GOMESA Construction Fund accounts for the revenues to be spent on projects and activities for the purposes of 
coastal protection, including conservation, coastal restoration, hurricane protection, and infrastructure directly affected by 
coastal wetland losses; mitigation of damage to fish, wildlife or natural resources; implementation of a federally-approved 
marine, coastal or comprehensive conservation management plan; mitigation of the Impact of outer Continental Sheff 
activities through the funding of onshore infrastructure projects; and associated planning and administrative costs. 

GOMESA Federal Grant Revenue Fund 

The GOMESA Federal Grant Revenue Fund accounts for the federal funding received from the Gulf of Mexico Energy 
Security Act of 2006 (GOMESA). Beginning in 2020. the cument receipt of this Federal revenue has been pledged to pay 
the principal and interest due each year for the $8,000,000 sale of Revenue Bonds. St, James Parish GOMESA Project, 
Series 2019. The proceeds from the Revenue Bonds, Series 2019, will finance projects for coastal protection, hurricane 
protection, infrastructure directly affected by coastal wetland losses, and mitigation measures for coastal restoration 
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St. James Parish 
Convent Louisiana 

Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds 
Combining Salance Sheet 

December 31, 2021 

Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 

Parishwide 
Road 

Improvement 

$ 

Parishwide 
Sewer 

Construction 

I 201.720 
26,426 

LCDBG 
Road 

improvement 

LCD5G 
Sewer 

Construction 

S 45.618 S 

District V 
Recreation 

Construction 

5,614 $ 126.917 
566.593 

Receivables 
Due from other funds 51.068 

*• 
: 

• 34,438 
147 

Total assets 91.068 $ 228.146 t 45,618 s 5.614 3 i 748,095 

Liabilities and fund balance 
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable 
Due to other funds 

5 91.068 $ - £ • s - a 1 123,262 

Total liabilities 91.068 - - - 123,262 

Fund balance: 
Restricted 
Committed 

' 226.146 
45,619 

5.614 624,833 

Total fund balance - 228,146 45,618 5,614 524,833 

Total liabilities and fund balance 5 91,068 $ 228,146 5 45,818 % 5,614 3 i 748,095 

EXHIBIT B-52 
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Hazard 
Mitigation Highway 20 COBG Disaster GO MESA GOMESA 

Gram Widening Recovery Series 2019 Federal Grant 
Program Project Projects Construction Revenue Total 

s 3.000 $ 695,819 S 63,055 $ 7,401,732 $ 312,370 $ 8,875,845 
- - - - 831,249 1,444,268 
- - 12,675 - • 47,114 
- - - - - 91.215 

3,000 S 695,819 $ 95,731 $ 7,401,732 $ 1,143,619 $10,458,442 

$ $ 5 $ 5,000 $ $ 219,330 
3,000 20,050 12,628 - - 35,678 
3,000 20,050 12,628 5,000 - 255,008 

675,759 63.103 7,396,732 1,143.619 10,157,816 
- - - - • 45,618 
- 675,769 83,103 7,396,732 1,143,619 10,203.434 

$ 3,000 $ 695,819 $ 95,731 S 7,401,732 $ 1,143,619 $10,458,442 
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St James Parish 
Convent. Louisiana 

Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds 
Combining Statement of Revenues. Expenditures, and Chartges in Fund Balances 

For the Year Ended Decemk>er 31,2021 

Parishswide 
Road 

improvement 

Paiishwide 
Sewer 

Construction 

LCDBG 
Road 

Improvement 

LCDBG 
Sewer 

Construction 

District V 
Recreation 

Construction 
Revenues: 

1 nte rgovemmentab 
Federal 

Investment earnings (losses) 
$ S 

1 
$ 5 

(iai) 
Total revenues - 1 - - (191) 

Expenditures 
Current; 

Public safety 
Htghways and streets 

Sanitation 
Culture and recreation 

Capital outlay 

360,24S - -

30 

656,199 
134 

Total expenditures 360,245 - - 656,229 134 

Excess (deftciency) of revenues over 
(under) expenditures before ottier 

financing sources (uses) (360,245) 1 (656,229) (325) 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Operating transfers in 
Operating transfers out 

360,245 - - 661,543 -

Total Other financing sources (uses) 360,245 - - 661,943 -

Net change in fund balance - 1 • 5.614 (325) 

Fund balance, beginning of year - 226.145 45.618 - 625.158 
Fund balance, end of year $ $ 228.146 $ 45,618 $ 5,614 3 624,633 
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Hazard 
Mitigation 

Grant 
Program 

Highway 20 
Widening 
Project 

CDBG Disaster 
Recovery 
Projecte 

GOMESA 
Series 2019 
Construction 

GOMESA 
Federal Grant 

Revenue Total 

S $ $ $ 
2.035 

$ 681,467 S 
445 

681,467 
2,290 

- - 2.035 681,912 683,757 

- - - 5,000 395,507 400,507 
360.245 

- - - -
30 

134 
656,199 

- - - 5,000 395.507 1,417,115 

(2,965) 286,405 (733,353) 

-
(20.050) 

-
(1.841) 

356,897 
(681.467) 

1,378,985 
(703,358) 

(20.050) - (1.841) (324,570) 675,627 

- (20.050) - (4.806) (38,165) (57,731) 

- 695,819 83,103 7,401.536 1.181,784 10,261,165 

$ $ 675,769 $ 83,103 S 7,396,732 $ 1,143,619 $ 10,203,434 
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St. James Pari^ 
Convent. Louisiana 

Parishwide Road Improvement Fund 
Scheduie of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual 

Fof the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Budget 

Variance with 

Final Budget 
Posltitve 

Oiiqinal Final Actual (Negative) 

Expenditures: 

Current; 
Highways and streets $ 1,119,903 $ 360,400 $ 360.245 155 

Total expenditures 1.119.903 360.400 360,245 155 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) 

expenditures before other financing sources (uses) (1,119,903) (300,400) £360,245) 155 

Other financing sources (uses): 

Transfers in 1,119,900 360,400 360,245 (155) 

Total other flnancing sources (uses) 1,119,900 360,400 360,245 (155) 

Net change In fund balance (83) _ 

Fund balance, beginning of year 83 
Fund balance, end of year $ - S - $ $ 
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St. James Parish 
Convent. Louisiana 

Parlshwide Sewer Construction Fund 
Sctiedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Budget 
Original Final Actual 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Posititve 

Revenues: 
Investment earnings (tosses) 
Other revenues 

$ 5,800 $ $ 1 $ 1 

Total revenues 5.800 - 1 1 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) 
expenditures before other financing sources (uses) 5.800 1 1 

Net change in fund balance 51000 1 1 

Fund balance, beginning of year 228,129 228.145 228.145 
Fund balance, end of year $ 233.929 $ 228.145 $ 228,146 $ 1 
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St. James Pansh 
Convent. Louisiana 

LCDBG Road Improvement Fund 
Schedule of Revenues. Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Budget 
Original Final Actuai 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positltve 

Fund balance, beginning of year ; 45,618 $ 45,618 S 45.618 S 
Fund balance, end of year S 45,618 S 45,618 S 45,618 S 
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St James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

LCDBG Sewer Construction Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Budget 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Posititve 
Original Final Actual (Negative) 

Expenditures: 

Current: 

Sanitation 5 - $ 100 $ 30 $ 70 

Capital outlay 265,900 656,200 656,199 1 

Total expenditures 265,900 656,300 656,229 71 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) 

expenditures before other financing sources (uses) (265,900) (S56.300) (656,229) 71 

Other financing sources (uses): 

Transfers in 266,000 661,800 661.843 43 

Total other financing sources (uses) 266,000 661,800 661,843 43 

Net change in fund balance 10O 5,500 5,614 114 

Fund balance, beginning of year 79 

Fund balance, end of year $ 179 $ 5,500 $ 5,614 $ 114 
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St James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

District V Recreation Construction Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Budget 

Original Finaf Actual 

Variance with 

Final Budget 

Posititve 
(Negative) 

Revenues: 

investment eamihgs (losses) S 4,100 £ 300 ! E (191) S (491) 

Total revenues 4,100 300 (191) (491) 

Expenditures: 

Current; 
Culture and recreation 20,200 20,300 134 20,166 

Totai expenditures 20,200 20.300 134 20.166 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) 

expenditures before other financing sources (uses) (16,100) (20,000) (3251 19,675 

Net change in fund balance (16,100) (20.000) (325) 19.675 

Fund balance, beginning of year 628,503 625.158 625,158 

Fund balance, end of year £ 612,403 $ 605,158 { S 624.633 S 19.675 
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St. James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

Hazard Mitigation Grant Program Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended Decemtjer 31, 2021 

Variance with 
Fir>al Budget 

Budget Posititve 
Original Final Actual (Negative) 

Revenues: 
Total revenues $ - $ $ - S 

Expenditures: 
Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) 
expenditures before other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balance 

Fund balance, beginning of year 
Fund balance, end of year 
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St. James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

Highway 20 Widening Project Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended December 31. 2021 

Budget 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Posilitve 
Original Final Actual (Negative) 

Other financing sources (uses); 

Transfers cut $ £400,000) $ (35,400) $ (20,050) S 15.350 

Totat other financing sources <uses) £400,000) (35,400) (20,050) 15,350 

Net change in fund balance (400,000) (35,400) (20,050) 15,350 

Fund balance, beginning of year 695,968 695,819 695,819 
Fund balance, end of year S 295,966 S 660,419 $ 675,769 $ 15,350 
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St. James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

CDBG Disaster Recoverv Projects Pund 
Scheduie of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Budget 
Original Final Actual 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Posititve 

Fund balance, beginning of year S 1.645 $ 83,103 S S3.103 $ 
Fund balance, end of year $ 1,645 $ 83,103 S 83.103 $ 

Exhibit B -61 

182 



St. James Parish 

Convent, Louisiana 

OOMESA Series 2019 Construction Fund 

Scheduie of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget and Actuai 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Budget 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Posititve 

Oripinai Final Actuai (Negative) 

Revenues; 

Investment earnings (losses) $ SCO S 900 £ 2,035 S 1,135 

Total revenues 800 500 2,035 1,135 

Expenditures: 

Current: 

Public safety 7,-107.700 5.000 5,000 

Total expenditures 7,407,700 5.000 5,000 -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) 

expenditures before other finandng sources (uses) (7,406,900) (4.100) (2,965) 1,135 

Other financing sources (uses); 

Transfers out (600) (1,841) (1.041) 

Total other financing sources (uses) - (800) C1.B41) (1.041) 

Net change in fund balance (7,406,900) (4,900) (4,806) 94 

Fund balance, beginning of year 7,406,945 7,401,538 7,401,538 
Fund balance, end of year $ 45 $ 7,396,638 $ 7,396,732 $ 94 
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St. James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

GO^^ESA Federal Grant Revenue Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balancee 

Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Budget 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positltve 
Original Final Actual (Negative) 

Revenues; 

fnter^overrimental: 

Federal S S65.000 $ 681,500 $ 681,467 $ (33) 

Investment earnings (losses) 3,100 400 445 45 

Total revenues 968,100 681,900 681,912 12 

Expertditures: 

Current: 

Public satiety - 409,900 395,507 14,393 

Total expenditures - 409,900 395,507 14,393 

Excess (deficiency] of revenues over (under) 

expenditures before other f nandng sources (uses) 968,100 272,000 286,405 14,405 

Other financing sources (uses): 

Transfers in - 356,900 356.897 (3) 

Transfers out (965,000) (681,500) (681,467) 33 

Total other financing sources (uses) (965,000) (324,600) (324,570) 30 

Net change in Hind balance 3,100 (52.000) (38.165) 14,435 

Fund balance, beginning of year 1,182,800 1,101,784 1,181,734 . 
Fund balance, end of year $ 1,185,900 S 1,129,184 $ 1,143,619 $ 14,435 
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St. James Parish 
Convent. Louisiana 

Schedule of Compensation, Benefits, and Other 
Payments to Agency Head 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Agency Head Name: Peter A Dufresne, Parish President 

Purpose Amount 
Salary $ 180,117 
Benefits - insurance 10.835 
Benefits • retirement 22,064 
Benefits - deferred compensation 676 
Benefits - long term disability 246 
Benefits - life insurance 189 
Benefits - workers compensation 500 
Car allowance 2,070 
Vehicle - repairs & maintenance 88 
Vehicle - insurance 1,250 
Vehicle - fuel/oil 2,698 
Membership dues 5,083 
Registration fees 275 
Conference lodging 703 
Conference meals 234 

1 227.028 
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St. James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

Schedule of Compensation Paid to 
Parish Council Members 

For the Year Ended December 31,2021 

Parish Council Amount 

Alvin J. St. Pierre, Jr., Chairman 
Vondra Dee Etienf>e-Steib, Vice Chairwoman 
Jason P Amato 
Bradley Ryan Louque 
Mason Bland 
Clyde M Cooper. Sr. 
Donald Nash 

15,600 
14,400 
14,400 
14,400 
14,400 
14,400 
14,400 

102,000 
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St James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

Justice System Funding Schedule - Receiving Entity 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2Q21 

First Six Month 
Period Ended 

6/30/21 

Second Six 
Month Period 

Ended 
12/31/21 

Receipts From: 

St. James Parish Sheriff. Crimfna! Court Costs/Fees 
St. James Parish Sheriff, Asset Forfeiture/Sale 
St James Parish Sheriff. Other 

Total Receipts 

68.736 

33.717 
102,453 

98,907 
3.B88 

62.877 
165.672 
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St. James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

Schedule of Program Rever^ues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 
Contracts and Grants Provided Through the Louisiana Governor's Office of Elderly Affairs (GOEA) 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

C'2 Home Delivered Meals C-1 Congregate Meals 
For the 6 months ended For the 6 months ended 
D6/30/21 12/31/21 Total 06/30/21 12/31/21 Total 

Revenues; 
tntergovem mental: 

GOEA: 
Federal S 25,093 $ 16,729 $ 41.822 $ 10,392 $ 12.844 $ 23.236 
State 4,558 3,330 7,888 14,860 12,269 27.129 

Other revenues: 
SaJe of meals 4,420 3,594 8,014 2,379 1,043 4,222 
Other (9) (3,917) (3,926) 12 (12) -
Total other revenues 4,411 (323) 4,088 2,391 1,831 4,222 

Total revenues 34,062 19,736 53,798 27,843 26,944 54,587 

Expenditures: 
fi/teals 111,462 107,891 219,353 69.026 57,422 127,248 
Distributed administrative costs - - - - - -
Program support - - - - -
Information and assistance - - - - - --
Outreach - - - - -
Other priority services - - - - - -
Med alert - - - - -
Wellness - - - - -
Public education - - - - - •»» 
Legal assistance - - - - - -
Other costs 1,024 768 1,792 1,024 770 1,794 

Total expenditures 112,486 108,659 221,145 70.850 58,192 129,042 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) 
expenditures before other financing 
sources (uses) (70,424) (80,923) (167,347) (43.207) (31,248) (74,455) 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 78,415 88,932 167,347 43,220 31,235 74,455 
Transfers out - - - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) 70,415 08,932 167.347 43,220 31,235 74,455 

Net chenge In fund balance 03 9 _ 13 (13) 

Fund balance, beginning of period _ m _ _ 13 

Fund balance, end of period $ (9) $ S S 13 $ $ 
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Title lll-B Senior Center Parish Council on Aging 
For the 6 months ended For the 6 months ended For the 6 months ended 
06/30/21 12/31/21 Total 06/30/21 12/31/21 Total 06/30/21 12/31/21 Totat 

$ 18,873 3 8,729 S 27.602 $ $ $ $ $ $ 
659 5.468 6.157 15,253 15,253 30,506 50,000 50,000 100,000 

(3,752) (2,451) (6,203) 
-

(1,012) (1.012) 20,928 (9,824) 11,104 
(3,752) (2,461) (6,203) - (1,012) (1.012) 20,928 (9.824) 11,104 
15,810 11,746 27.556 15,253 14,241 29.494 70,928 40,176 111,104 

- -
•• 

639 639 
-

-

3,737 5,136 8,S73 - - - - -
623 677 1,300 - - It -

4,360 4,738 9,098 - - - - • 

4,526 5,006 9,532 - - - - -
1,241 1,075 2,316 - - - - -
3,737 4,061 7,798 - - - - -

205 - 205 - - - - -
- - - 2,803 503 3.306 - - -

18,429 20.693 39,122 2,803 1,142 3,945 - - -

(2.619) (8,947) (11,566) 12.450 13,099 25,549 70,928 40.176 111,104 

5,967 5,599 11,566 7.813 1,142 8.955 
- - - (20,263) (14.241) (34,504) (61,104) (50,000) (111,104) 

5,967 5,599 11,566 (12,450) (13,099) (25,549) (61,104) (50,000) (111,104) 

3,348 (3,348) - . 9,824 (9,824) 

. 3,348 _ . _ _ 9,824 _ 

$ 3,348 £ $ $ s $ $ 9.824 $ $ 

(Continued) 
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St. James Parish 
Convent. Louisiana 

Schedule of Program Revenues. Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balartce 
Contracts and Grants Provided Through the Louisiana Governor's Office of Elderly Affairs (GOEA) 

Forthe Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Nutritional Services Incentive Program Title IIIC-1 Area Agency Administration 
For the 6 months ended For the 6 months ended 

Revenues: 
intergovemnnentai; 

GOEA; 
Federal 
State 

Other revenues: 
Sale of meals 
Other 
Total other revenues 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Meals 
Distributed administrative costs 
Program support 
Information and assistance 
Outreach 
Other priority services 
Med alert 
Wellness 
Public education 
Legal assistance 
Other costs 

06^30/21 12/31/21 Total 06/30/21 12/31/21 Total 

$ 20,367 S 26,834 $ 47,201 S 5.045 
1.682 

$ 5,294 
1.765 

$ 10,339 
3,447 

11,549 
-

11,549 (4) 
-

(45 
11,649 - 11,549 (4) - (45 
31,916 26,834 58,750 6,723 7.059 13,782 

- - -
6,723 7.059 13,782 

Total expenditures - - - 6,723 7,059 13.782 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) 
expenditures before other fanancing 
sources (uses) 31,916 26.834 58.750 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 
Transfers out (31.916) (26,834) (58,750) 

- - -

Total other financing sources (uses) (31.916) (26.834) (58.750) " - -

Net change In fund balance 

Fund balance, beginning of period 

Fund balance, end of period $ - S - S - $ - $ - $ 
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TfUe HID Preventive Health Title HIE National FmlyCaregiverSupport GOEA Supplemental Senior Center 
For the 6 months ended 
06/30/21 12/31/21 Total 

For the 6 months ended 
06/30/21 12/31/21 Total 

For the 6 months ended 
06/30/21 12/31/21 Total 

$ 1,661 $ 1.648 $ 3,309 $ 8,772 
1,782 

$ 5,629 
1.876 

$ 14,401 
3,658 

$ - $ -
1,550 1.550 3,100 

1,660 (1.648) 12 2,624 319 2.943 
- -

1,660 (1.548) 12 2,624 319 2.943 - -
3.321 3,321 13,178 7,824 21.002 1.550 1.550 3.100 

- -

12.303 
500 

15.802 28.105 
500 

- - -

1,359 1,359 

- -

- - 12,803 17,241 30,044 - -

3.321 3,321 375 (9.417) (9,042) 1.550 1.550 3.100 

£3,321) 
- 4,369 4,673 9,042 

(1,550) (1,550) (3,100) 
(3,321) (3,321) 4,369 4,673 9,042 (1,550) (1.550) (3.100) 

- - 4,744 (4,744) 

4,744 

- - -

$ - $ $ $ 4.744 $ S $ - $ s 

(Continued) 
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St. James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

Schedule of Program Revenues. Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 
Contracts and Grants Provided Through the Louisiana Governor's Office of Elderly Affairs (GCEA) 

For the Year Errded December 31.2021 

Title V Senior Community Service 
SrCenter Additional Appropriation Fund 

Revenues: 
intergovernmentai: 

GOEA: 
Federal 
State 

Other revenues: 
Sale of meals 
Other 
Total other revenues 

Total revenues 

For the 6 months ended For the 6 months ended 
06/30/21 12/31/21 Total 06/30/21 12/31/21 Total 1 

1 
1 

1
 

J 

S $ 
3,906 

$ 
3,908 

$ 
7,814 

27 27 3,906 (2,765) 1,141 
27 27 3,906 (2.765) 1,141 
27 27 7,812 1,143 8,955 

Expenditures: 
Meals 
Distributed administrative costs 
Program support 
Information and assistance 
Outreach 
Other priority services 
Med alert 
Wellness 
Public education 
Legal assistance 
Other costs 

Total expenditures ______ 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) 
expenditures before other financing 
sources (uses) 27 27 7,812 1,143 3,955 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

- -
(7,813) (1,142) (8,955) 

Total other financing sources (uses) - - (7.813) (1,142) (3,955) 

Net change in fund balance 27 27 0) 1 _ 

Fund balance, beginning of period 27 _ _ (1) 

Fund balance, errd of period $ 27 $ 27 $ 27 $ (1) $ - $ 
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Older Americans Act-Expanding Access 
to COVID-19 Vaccine 

Forth© 6 months ended 
06/30/21 12/31/21 Total Totals 

$ - £ 1.879 $ 1.879 $ 169,789 
189,699 

(1.079) (1,879) 
12,236 
13,752 

(1.879) (1,879) 25,988 
- - 385,476 

346.601 
13,782 
28,824 
9.373 
1.300 
9,098 
9.532 
2,316 
7,798 

205 
8,251 

437,080 

(51,604) 

271,365 
(219,734) 

51.631 

27 

$ 2^ 

(Concluded) 

EXHIBIT B - 67 

193 



St. James Parish 
Convent Louisiana 

Schedule of Program Expenditures - Budget vs. Actual 
Contracts and Grants Provided Through the Louisiana Governor's Office of Elderly Affairs (GOEA) 

For the Year Ended December 31. 2021 

Variance 
Favorable 

Budget 

Title III C-2 Home Delivered Meals 
Home delivered meats 
Other priority services 
Nutritional education 

Total 

Title III C-1 Congregate Meals 
Congregate meals 
Nutritional educatior> 

Total 

Title III B • Supportive Services 
Information and assistance 
Legal assistance 
Outreach 
Other priority services 
Med Alert 
Wellness 
Public education 

Total 

Senior Center 
Non-Capital Office Furniture & Equipment 
Supplies-program 
Program support 
Congregate meals transfers 

Total 

Parish Council on Aging 
Home delivered meals transfers 
Congregate Meals transfers 
IIIB Social Services transfers 
Senior Center Fund transfers 
ItlE Caregivers transfers 

Total 

Nutritional Services IncQhtive Program 
Home delivered meats transfers 

Title ill C - Area Agency Administration 
Distributed administrative costs 

Total 

Actual 

$ 185.100 200,354 S (15,254) 
1.300 - 1.300 
1,000 1,792 <792) 

$ 137.400 $ 202,146 S (14.746) 

$ 112.700 s 127,248 % (14,548) 
2,000 1.794 206 

$ 114,700 $ 129,042 $ (14.342) 

¥ 7,800 i 8,873 $ (1.073) 
1,000 205 795 
1,000 1,300 (300) 
BIOQ 9,098 2 
9,700 8,635 1,065 
5,500 2,316 3,164 
7,800 7,798 2 

i 41,900 $ 38,225 $ 3,675 

$ 2,800 $ 3,306 $ (506) 
3,900 - $ 3,900 
2,000 639 $ 1,361 

35,600 34,604 1,096 
$ 44,300 $ 38,449 $ 5,851 

$ 66,900 E 82,114 $ (15,214) 
8,900 8,382 513 

15,900 11.566 4,334 
2.000 - 2,000 
9A00 9.042 358 

% 103,100 $ 111,104 $ (8.004) 

S 60.300 3 58.750 $ 1.550 
$ 60.300 $ 58.750 s 1.560 

E 13.800 S 13.782 s 18 
S 13,800 $ 13,782 s 18 
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St James Parish 
Convent. Louisiana 

Schedule of Program Expenditures - Budget vs. Actoaf 
Cortracte and Grants Provided Through the Louisiana Governor's Office of Elderly Affairs (GOEA) 

For the Year Ended December 31. 2021 

Variance 
Favorable 

Budget 

Title [jj D - Preventive Health 
Wellness 
Congregate Meals transfers 

Total 

Title III E - National Family Caregiver Support 
Program support 
Informstion and assistance 
Public education 
Support groups 
Material aid 

Total 

GOEA Supplemental Senior Center 
Congregate meals transfers 

Total 

MIPPA- Medicare Improv-Patients&Providers 
Outreach 

Total 

Sr Center Additional Appropriation 
Senior Center Fund transfers 

Total 

COVlD-19 
Title ill-C-2 Home Delivered Meals 
Title lll-B Supportive Services med alert 
Title lll-B Supportive Services wellness 
Title lll-E NaLtonal Caregiver program support 

Total 

HOC S Consolidated Appropriations Act 2021 
Title Ill-C-2 Home Delivered Meals 

Total 

Older Amencans Act-Expand Access to COVID-19 Vaccine 
Program support 

Total 

Actual 

s 1,600 3 $ 1,800 
3,300 3,321 3 {21) 

$ 4,900 $ 3,321 3 1,579 

3 21,200 S 21,338 S (138) 
800 500 300 
300 - 300 
300 - 300 
700 1,359 (659) 

S 23,300 S 23,197 3 103 

3 3,100 $ 3,100 3 
S 3,100 $ 3,100 $ -

3 2,000 3 $ 2.000 
3 2.000 S • $ 2,000 

S 11,700 s 8,955 3 2,745 
s 11,700 $ 8,955 3 2.745 

5 17,000 s 17,036 3 (36) 
% 900 897 3 3. 

1,900 - 3 t.900 
6,800 6,647 (47) 

S 26.600 s 24,780 3 1.820 

$ 6.300 1,963 3 4,337 
$ 6,300 $ 1,963 3 4.337 

$ 1,900 $ 3 1.900 
$ 1,900 $ - 3 1.900 

EXHIBIT B-68 
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STATISTICAL SECTION (UNAUDITED) 



St. James Parish 
Convent. Louisiana 

Net Position by Component 
For the Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Unaudited) 

Govemmenta! Activities 
Net Investment in Capital Assets 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total Government Activities Net Position 

Business-type Activities 
Net Investment in Capital Assets 
Unrestricted 

Total Business-type Activities Net Position 

Primary Government 
Net lr>vestment In Capital Assets 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total Primary Government Net PosWon 

2021 2020 2019 2018 
£ 58.035,249 $ 60.772.724 $ 60,284,841 $ 61,273.545 

81.693.836 79,199.812 74.097,334 63,734,142 
4.284.044 3,692,447 2.097.629 328,006 

£ 144.013.129 $ 143.664.983 $ 136.479.804 $ 125,335,693 

£ 16.529.382 $ 13,846.550 $ 14,571.303 $ 15,148,310 
12.694.794 13,890,350 13.529.426 15,403.851 

£ 29.224.170 $ 27,736,900 £ 28,100.729 £ 30,552,181 

S 74,564,631 S 74,619,274 £ 74,856,144 $ 76,421.855 
81.693.836 79,199.812 74.097.334 63.734.142 
16,978.838 17,582,797 15,627,055 15.731.657 

£ 173,237.305 $ 171.401,883 S 164.580.533 $ 155,887,854 

Source; Audited Annual Comprehensive Financial Report 

Table 1 
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2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 
$ 61.210,241 S 61,400,991 S 60,873,245 $ 57,265,911 S 50.197.934 S 46,411,603 

57.514.476 52,179,052 49,214,805 43,371,268 40.881,997 39,808,673 
4.992,472 4,881.018 5,064,110 4,678,608 4.620.483 2,479,232 

$ 123,717,191 $ 110,469,061 $ 115,152,160 $ 105,335,787 $ 95.700,414 S 88,699,508 

$ ie.313.284 $ 15,879,896 $ 13,027,858 $ 13,136,113 $ 14.520,264 £ 16,174,036 
13,997,872 12,858,453 10,815,683 9,107,625 7,879,290 6,171,145 

$ 30,311,156 $ 20,730,349 $ 23,843,541 8 22,243,730 $ 22.399,554 £ 22,345,181 

s 77.523.525 S 77,288,887 S 73,901.103 S 70.422.024 S 64.710.198 $ 62,585,639 
57.514,478 52.179,052 49,214,805 43,371,268 40,881,997 39,808,673 
18.990.344 17,739,471 15,879,793 13,786,233 12.499.773 8,650,377 

s 154.028,347 $ 147,207,410 S 138,995.701 £ 127,579,525 $ 118.099,968 £ 111,044,689 

Table 1 
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Si. Jarriu Pirtsli 
Co^ivanl. Louisiana 

ChdnQea <r> Nat Po&ton 
Fof tra Last T«'> Ftscal Yaam 

(Unaudliad) 

2021 202Q 2019 2016 2017 2016 
Enatnaa* 
QovaTimantal Acdvrties: 

Gar«rai Govamirant 9 0,349.656 S 7,040,729 5 7,786,677 S 7,279,198 8 7.591 4€S s 10 689 064 
PuBsic Safety fi,504 023 6.994.285 5.963,663 4,741 898 4.625 3(0 5.180.001 
Higirwsvs and Streets 5275.614 <l.8e4.65S 4.761,210 4,765.204 4.353 062 4 423.367 
Sanilalinn 3.696.862 1.892.1961 1,821,725 1.657,341 1 757 001 1 762.686 
Public Housing 256 580 1,669 1 120 •rsso 2.040 
Public Trenacortaban 1,097.446 990.625 1,251,134 (.162,070 1,137,728 1.066,491 
Healtfi and Welfare 6,386,107 4.98S.232 5.413,207 4.648.972 4.634 706 4.380.426 
Culture ard fjecraawn 3.223.163 3.221,320 3.301,256 3072 364 3.140.606 3.<X».542 
Sconcmlc ^veloprneni 346.216 300,963 542,1» 369.106 591039 545,160 
Iruarest on Long Term DsU 41S434 390 776 101.411 150 S27 161 533 194013 

Total Govemirental AetivJliea Eapervses. 37,366.130 30,671,722 31.093,434 26,087.595 20,294.237 31.651,420 
SuBins3S-lype Activilies 

Gas and water 6,365.067 s, mi,208 5.(03.022 4.688.804 4,849,402 4.004.450 
Youtn aeteniion . . - 206.116 321 151 337.224 

Total Buainees-ivpeAooviQea Eapansee. 6393.067 5.001.205 S 163.022 5.D9S.S20 4.37D.S53 5 141.663 
Total Primery GowemrnenI Ecpeneee 43.SB9.217 s 35.752.9?7 3 36 276.463 s 33 184 216 s S3294 79Q s 30 793103 

Pranram Ravarfufi 
Governmental ActkirDaa 

C^a^ges for Servisa. 
General GovemmenE S 635.746 s 1.062.2O5 5 1 067442 s t 187,586 s 152,249 s 133,717 
Public Safety 497.773 330,240 381 652 338.346 3'17,75Q 234,566 
Safirtenon 579.085 576,248 S74 168 569 226 501,863 892.296 
Public Transportalior 14,010 13 1SS 26.619 26.690 20,894 22,453 
Cullura and Reoreation 24,563 16726 36 271 49,570 30,601 51,117 

Operating Grants and ConlribUtlona: 
General Goverrmenl 1,974,772 401245 366.069 620.642 1.180,898 1.622,607 
PuCC Safety 149,628 316 878 260.512 •330,860 236,517 141.444 
Hignways anidSraets 339.471 272,Sra 682.124 289.820 367.054 209,713 
Sanitaben 3,104,620 37,460 <5) 62 B58.87S 261.450 
PutMc Trarsponaiien 739.746 BOS 199 601,702 497.904 4SS.S1B 810 048 
Hearth and Welfare 610.530 1,107.508 037,600 9D0.14D 601.607 979.162 
Culture and Recreation 46.591 34.901 3.439 22.910 37,127 26.400 
Economic Oevatopment - - - 17.1661 11.000 -

Capital Grama ana CorttftButions. 
General Co<remmenl - 66.256 0111,629 (27,676) 316,309 3,458.600 
PuBiic Safely 691,467 964.996 - (.Wt.OOO 625.000 
Highways and Streets - - - - -
Sanitation - • 660004 517.2S4 -
PuDlcTransportaUon M7.335 
Culture and Recreation - - - - - -

Total GaVBrrvmerttalActiviuef Pragnm Reyanuea- 6,008.232 5,e72,«71 8,463,591 ^483,209 6,862.146 9.069.57S 
Boamesa-type Acbviiiee 

crtarges for Service: 
Gas and water 5.233,655 4J520.644 4,068.291 5.120.520 S140 051 S.97110T 
Youth detention - S46 634 604 

Operating Grants and Conthbybons 32S.39S 60,686 84,287 277.449 1,003,272 113,355 
Capital Grants and Contnbubons , . . . . 3S07 643 

Total BusirYsss-typaAcrtiviiiaa Program Pevenuee 5.558.850 4.609 309 4.952.558 5-390.517 S.162 007 9.692 799 
Total Pnmary GoverhrneAi Program Peuenitai s 13.666 082 s 10481660 s 11 406149 s 10681 606 s 13.034 153 I 10762 377 

General Revenues and Other Ctianges in Net Position 
Oovemrnentsi AcbviPBS 

Tables: 
property Tase? ( 20,982,776 s 21.331.603 $ 20.016.815 3 18,718.971 s 17,107,025 9 15,933,381 
Voiumary PaymenB in Lieu ofTaxea 586.106 567 026 530.933 490.306 490,972 472,032 
Sales and Uee Toras 96SD.S2B 7 157.586 8.361.852 8,230,164 6,391.264 0,194.400 
Alcoholic Beverages te.C36 20.876 19,749 19.591 20,718 24,060 
Franchise Fees - - - - 134,803 134,607 
Other • . • 

Grenis and ContniiMlione Not Rutnned foi 
SpaoAc Purposes 737,842 1336.960 746,881 55.379 6144,339 967 196 
fnvesimane eermngs (lessee^ (262 681; 557.081 1.426.484 704 477 291012 104.035 
Omer Revenue 4.096.307 I.408 S6D 1.359.613 1,290.000 1,401 266 2.055 795 
Gain (loss) en saleoffiicadaaaate • (413.S6B1 • (44.0331 (4r9iffii (20.36St 
Assets transferred (2.4S2.521) - - - - -

S84030 (4,0041 117.8^1 fS.470l 21390 32.203 
Totar Governmental Aebvitias' 29,936044 31.984 330 34.301,316 30.6gS.09( 26,810,267 20 031 946 
Susinessuype Aetivibes 

Taxes 
Prr^ierty Taxes - 864.631 833,930 320.487 

Fines arid Forfeits - - - 750 500 ?50 
Grams ana Comnouiions Not Resiriaed fpr 
Soanflc Pi'rjKwes - - - - -
(nvastmanl earnings (lOMee) (50974) - - 209,662 73.091 19.091 
Omer Revenue S3 595 103,903 311,292 1150 461 53 
ContnlDutions • - -
Gain (loss) on sale of fixed aUets - - - 210,000 (6,256; 2.850 
Assets trar^ferred 2452,521 - • -

(864,830; 4.004 17 830 5 470 110 3901 
Total Busineie-^pe AcHvitisc: 1 920 813 106.067 329112 791663 391.363 343 211 
Total Pnmary Govemirent General RevOnues s 31 R.<S 8S7 f 32 092 397 s 34.»Q42a i 3< 400 954 s 27 301 020 ? 20 37.5 057 

criarisoe m Nat Position 
COwarTwnenwi AcBviffBs $ 346,1-46 8 7,185.179 s 9.661 473 8 8.090.7SS s 5.395.776 s 3.450,004 
Busirvess'^ype Acnvities 1.407 276 1383 0291 98648 1 053780 1 S72 807 4 064 327 

Total Primary Govemmerx Change m Net Poeitwh 1.835.422 % 6.S21.3S0 s 9 760121 S 9 164 845 s 6 970SB3 s 8 344 331 

$auree. Audited Annual Corrprotneneive Pinandal fiapoit 
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3015 2014 2013 2012 

7.001.067 $ 9 688,333 5 8.236 128 5 6.722.098 
4,279.421 4 037,958 «.a7S63 4816.301 
£135.675 4.602.549 *988.297 4.7*8.877 
1640634 1888.173 2.114 6K 2.254.460 

1760 1.520 1.520 1.440 
97B,S77 1050,665 1 106,617 1,079.5*2 

4,330.^9 4.418,589 *.267.5*6 4.360.769 
2,639.566 2.82B.449 2.BS1 85* 3,536 859 
1.^.942 2.300,837 2 SSI 191 2*71,457 

234 068 271.867 303 918 378.241 
36.793389 31.065.730 30,470,911 26.407.064 

*712,158 4.949,697 *.851,137 4305.332 
396 6*2 443 686 1,162.990 2801,189 

511I.SM 5 393.886 5.814.097 6998.401 

% 33 906.1619 8 36469.418 ? 39.288 006 

s 186.630 t 185.969 5 797.*93 S 833,889 
235.652 242.902 248.6*9 230,416 
669250 598,021 943.790 868.977 
43020 78,245 80.648 74.243 
38846 3B.S14 34.952 30.651 

1.767.48S 539,769 I.IOO.MO 1.378,W5 
117 796 (6.629) 11 343 858.348 
313.243 729 720 385.456 1.495,715 

66.168 81.809 38 281 93.476 
B&566S 542.833 751 583 844 590 
Bsaeao S3.37Q 925 781 1.195.866 
36.907 469593 26234 14.050 

766.838 1,517 741 1.4*5,071 1487.846 

4,876766 7.O54.540 , 608.600 
18.686 4.298.189 17,057 

-
640.082 17 878 

-

10,387,457 13.632.606 11,133,707 10.026,305 

S,365.K4 5.450,680 5.371.T7B 4.589.403 
21213 47.878 5S8.D71 T.431 321 

121 548 (3.258) 119.693 212,645 
BS6 847 24.287 9116 

6165 482 5519586 6 088 856 6.213.569 
18SS2719 f 19152 393 f 17222566 f 16241874 

s 17.825991 S 18.937 947 t 16.7*2.02* $ 15.851 387 
41S.10S 366.945 90.507 442 923 

6.86Q.147 6.563038 6.«30.sa0 7,848.215 
19.896 19281 21.255 21 679 

124.962 11Z635 103.044 92.003 

- 2».&88 460,466 35.633 

697,027 537 886 448088 82S263 
93,182 88.236 16.005 98695 

1.770.486 2.248,604 2 (29683 1.823.533 
(340,673) (4 494) (91.862) 79.424 

75.^12 1443 r3.772t (622,7121 
27.453,701 27 253.860 27,D»l,3ia 28,634.228 

33&,137 328,319 536,074 489,409 
5N 550 1,050 

. 3641 
19.293 5,394 - 8,758 
5,292 - 294.887 

9M.DOO -
20.536 - - 7.020 

33528 70 ASS 90.007 623.047 
408286 405.219 1619.472 1422 181 

s 27 871.987 s 27959.019 $ KS70.790 $ 26056409 

s 9.057.789 s 9.620 875 $ 7.714.1U s 7 255489 
1461 948 531.121 1 894.234 839 349 

s 10519 737 s 10.351 996 J- 9 808.343 s 7 89*818 
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St James Parish 
Convent. Louisiana 

General Government Tax Revenues by Source 
For the Last Ten Fiscal Years 

{Unaudited) 

Fiscal 
Year 

Ad Valorem Tax 
and Revenue Sharing Sales and Use Tax Totals 

2021 $ 20,982.775 $ 5,660,528 $ 26,643,303 

2020 21,331.603 7,157,568 28,489,171 

2019 20,816,615 8,361.852 29,168,467 

2015 19,081,802 8,230,164 27,311,966 

2017 17,440.955 6,391,264 23,832,219 

2016 16,253.818 6,194,460 22,448,278 

2015 18,265.118 6,560.147 24,825,265 

2014 17,266,266 6,553,038 23,829,304 

2013 17,277,098 6,930,580 24,207,676 

2012 16,340,796 7,843.215 24,189,011 

Source; Audited Annual Comprehensive Financial Report 
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St. James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 
For the Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Unaudited) 

General Fund: 
Nonspendable 
Restricted 
Comnnittad: 
Assigned 
Unassigned 

Total General Fund: 

2021 

6,930 
9.480.241 

6,261.763 

2020 

22,190 
9.039,025 

7,210.317 

2019 

22.193 
8,034,473 

6,599.544 

2018 

$ 21,776 
7,293,716 

5,927,831 
$ 15,748,934 $ 16,271,532 $ 14,556.210 $ 13.243,323 

All Other Governmental Funds: 
Nonspendable 
Restricted 
Committed 
Assigned 
Unassigned 

Total All Other Governmental Funds: 

100 
81,912.569 

858,002 
58,816 

45.919 
79,592.817 

792,446 
67,908 

(43,892) 

106,315 
75,381.010 

764,691 
98.568 

118.512 
55,296,235 
1.346.935 

54,228 

$ 82,829,487 $ 80,455,198 $ 76,350.584 S 56,815,910 

Source: Audited Annual Comprehensive Financial Report 

Table 4 
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2Q17 201B 2015 2014 2013 2012 

2,405 £ 43,382 £ 36.691 $ 38,724 £ 35,049 $ 39,552 
6,545,773 6.085,801 5.685.398 5.085,694 4,370.193 3,709,980 

5,107,704 4,563,329 4,125,646 4,295,190 4,227,644 3,683,019 
$ 11.755,882 $ 10,692,512 $ 9.847,735 $ 9,419,608 £ 8.632,786 $ 7.432,551 

101,664 $ 112,580 $ 16,476 $ 114,164 $ - £ 
49,120,330 44.902,447 43.074,139 39,056,167 36,613,396 35.592.130 

1,573,390 660,970 771,687 786,653 908,876 544.755 
77,588 90,747 65,138 165,461 161,399 29,038 

(493,386) (386,970) (233,594) (37,421) (15,210) 
$ 50,872,972 £ 45,273,358 $ 43.540,470 $ 39.888,671 $ 37,646.250 $ 36.150.713 

Table 4 
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St- James Parish 

Convent, Louisiana 
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 

For the Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

2021 2020 2019 2Q16 
Revenues 
Taxes: 

Property S 20,949,808 $ 21,194,377 3 20,854,119 $ 18,712.780 
Voluntary payments rrt lieu oflaxes 588,106 587,826 530,933 490,366 

Sales and Use 5,660,528 7,157,563 8,351.852 8,230,164 

Alcohoiic Beverages (Beer) 19,036 20,676 19,746 19,591 
Licenses and Permits 835,746 951,972 929,585 1,019,000 
Intergovernmental; 

Federal 6.307,987 2,981,-J 05 2,053,202 1,856,545 

State 1,322,002 1,885,218 2,301,883 1,172,213 

Local 164,140 346,62€ 805.518 564,834 
Fines and Forfeits 159,947 r0,233 137,857 138,586 
Charges for Services 956,250 936,367 972.127 980,841 
Investment earnings (losses) (248,906) 537,875 1,371.097 744,365 

In-kind contributions - 26,839 219,582 98,855 

Other 3,983,465 1,277,040 1,041.654 1,063,407 
Total Revenues 39,698,113 38,015.742 39,589.155 35,094.048 

Exoenditures: 
Current: 

General Government 8,714,855 7,421,292 7,041,760 6,857.233 
Public Safety 8,385,483 6,855.159 4,785.384 3.887.485 
Highway and Streets 3,416,586 2,969,022 2,958,778 2,618,801 

Sanitation 3,912,869 1,819,034 1.726,656 1,583,226 
Public Housing 256 560 1,669 1,120 

Public Transportation 960,725 868,957 1,083,458 1,059,422 

Health and Welfare 6,269,826 4.710.237 4.823,202 4,441.431 
Culture and Recreation 2,753,279 2.664,033 2,711,585 2,529,968 
Economic Development 332.260 287,662 522,204 569,813 

In-kind Expenses - 28,839 219,582 98,855 
Debt Service: 

Principal 775,000 1,028.550 745.531 722,605 

Interest and Other Costs 378,449 413,308 121.482 138,644 

Capital Outlay 3,471.464 4,205,069 2,151,700 2,948,753 
Total Expenditures 36,411.052 32,291,722 28,893,091 27,657,156 

Excess Revenu6/(Expenditures) 
before other finar^cing services 1,287,061 5,724,020 10.696,064 7.436,892 

Other FinancirO Sources/fUsesV 
Bond Issuance Cost - - (280,753) (1,043) 

Proceeds from Debt Issuance - - 8,000,000 -
Transfers In 7,530,843 7.195,228 12,878,182 4.678,551 
Transfers Out (6,966,213) (7,199,312) (12.896,012) (4,684,021) 

Payment to Refunded Bond Agent - - - -
Total Other Financing Sourc8sy(Uses} 564.630 (4,084) 7,701,417 (6.513) 

Net Changes In Fund Balance S 1,851,691 $ 5,719,936 S 18,397,481 $ 7,430.379 

Det>t Service as a Percentage of 
Noncapital Expenditures: 3.30% 5-13% 3.24% 3.49% 

Source: Audited Annual Comprehensive Financial Report 

Tattle s 
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20t7 2018 2015 2014 2013 2012 

$ 17.879.134 S 15.576.026 S 17,531,951 $ 16.935,943 $ 16,735,601 3 15.850,168 
490,372 472.882 415,105 356,945 90,507 442,923 

€.391,264 €.194,460 6,560,147 6,563,038 6,930,580 7,848,215 
20,716 24,080 19.896 19,261 21.255 21,579 

929,703 1,053.476 770,883 742,755 721,027 691,770 

2,645,017 5,283,741 4,806.637 8,473,145 4,203,112 6,909,898 
1.150,488 1,447,626 4,044.364 4,138,518 5,925,294 1,803,864 

548,756 527,281 510,144 503,517 507,535 664.142 
150,046 133,103 169,306 185,502 179,042 237.986 
958,272 001,064 908,092 958,179 1,306.416 1,228.911 
279,151 103,511 92,313 63,694 15,210 91,942 
200,817 70,090 509,070 420,032 531,375 519,713 

1,102,207 1,880,311 1,163,364 549,151 918,808 856,318 
32.745,953 33,667.641 37,501,262 40.009,710 38,085,762 36.967,527 

6.662,015 6,491,032 7.542.722 8.200,935 6,955,368 6,289,408 
3.866,673 4.375.873 3,912.047 3,450,136 3,517,021 4.150.396 
2,554,955 2,551,449 3,393,299 2,889,836 3,301,145 3,134,004 
1.689,281 1.677,219 1,579,538 1.830,998 2,051,552 2,198.518 

1,520 2,040 1.75Q 1,520 1,520 1.440 
999,550 981,189 867,146 927,793 1,041,326 989,523 

4,369,150 4.418,675 4.133.592 4.082,536 4,128,375 4,280.612 
2,595,494 2.496.170 2,440,099 2.465,007 2,371,793 2,219.137 

567,358 511.562 1,353.675 2.033,136 1,962,579 1.928.087 
200.817 70,090 509,070 420,032 531,375 519.713 

1,212,768 1,174.019 1,125,353 1.087,769 1,714,000 1.680.000 
154,043 194,027 233,248 250,470 334,329 394.916 

2,609,452 6.706,814 6,868,319 9,822,581 8,157,163 6,397.433 
27.487,246 31.652.179 33.959.668 37.470,749 36,067,546 34.183.185 

5,258,707 2,015,462 3.541,414 2.538,961 2,018,216 2,784.342 

(17,113) . . (32,156) . (2.582) 
850,000 - 2,530,000 629,596 180,000 

6,536,698 4.619.011 3.792.127 2.711,871 4,235,145 3,306,375 
(6,965.308) (4,056,808) (3,253,815) (2,229,429) (3,768,918) (3,373,067) 

- - - (2.489,804) - -
1,404.277 562.203 538,312 490,482 1,095,823 109,706 

5 6.662.984 $ 2.577.665 $ 4.079.726 $ 3.029,443 S 3,114,039 3 2.894,048 

5.49% 5.48% 5.01% 4.84% 7.34% 7.47% 
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St- Jsmes Pensti 
Conveni. Louisiana 

A^sessad Valuation of Taiiabie Propaf^ 
For the Last Ten FiscalYears 

(Unauaited) 

Assessed 
Total Amount of Total Total Estimated Value as a 

Fiscal Assessed Homestead Taxable Direct Actual Percentage of 
Year Value Exemption Assessed Value Tax Rate Taxable Value Aciual Value 

2021 S 7l7.4&9,2a7 $ 42,175,490 S 675.323,797 44.83 3 6,139,307,245 11% 
2020 698,461,031 41,550,460 656,930,551 44.30 5 972,095,918 11% 
2019 641.605,867 41,299.337 600.306,530 44 30 5,457,332.091 11% 
201 @ 635.293,866 279,920.446 555,373,440 44.30 5,048,849,455 11% 
2017 557,539,110 40,704.290 516,634,820 43 56 4,696.498.364 11% 
2016 617.169,587 39.385.919 577,783,668 43 67 5,252,578.800 11% 
201S 584,035,788 39,268.684 544,767,104 43.57 4,952.423.218 11% 
2014 574.4&1,990 38.980.307 535,511,583 43.67 4,366.283,027 11% 
2013 528,213,839 36.665,723 489,547,116 43-87 4,450.428.327 11% 
2012 449.158,779 39.396.264 409,762,515 4367 3,725.113.773 11% 

Real Property Tots! Amount of Total 
Fiscal and Personal Public Service Assessed Homestead Taxable 

Year itnpfovemenis Property Property Valuation Exemption Assessed Value 

2021 $ 142,373,157 S 498.084 840 $ 77,041,290 $ 717.499.287 5 42.175.490 S 875.323.767 
2020 129,860,164 497,334,317 71,286.550 696,461.031: 41.550,460 656.630,551 
2019 127,827,706 680,437,685 60,810.400 875,075.791 41.299,337 B33.776.4S4 
2018 128,269.331 649,963.867 59.060,690 635,293.368 279,920,448 555.373.440 
2017 123,557,466 374,971,224 59.010,420 557.539.110 40,704.290 5lS.e34.820 
2016 112,067,637 449,002,170 56.099,730 617,169.567 39,385,915 577.783.668 
ZOlS 110,755,135 418,669.353 54,611,300 584.035.760 39,268,684 544.767.104 
2014 111,405,120 411,887,594 51,189,270 574.481.990 38,980 307 535,511.683 
2013 106,063,357 372,665,492 49,494,990 528,213,839 30,608,723 489,547,116 
201Z 100,621,381 300.400,056 46,137,350 449,158,779 39,396,264 409,762.515 

Source: SI James Parish Assessor's Office 
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St. James Parish 
Convent Louisiana 

Ad Valorem Tax Rates and Tax Levies 
Direct and Overlapping Governments and Assessed Millages 

For the Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

TAX RATES (Mills per Dollar) 

Fiscal School Road Recreation 
Year SherifTs Office Taxes Taxes Parish Council Districts 
2021 20.96 44.83 5.96 20.13 6.13 
2020 20.96 44.30 5.97 20.20 6.11 
2019 20.96 44.30 5.97 19.95 5.98 
2016 20.96 44.30 5.97 19.95 5.88 
2017 20.96 43.56 5.95 19.94 6,03 
2016 20.96 43.67 5.95 20.05 6.23 
2015 20.96 43-67 5.95 20-12 6.23 
2014 20.96 43.67 5.95 20.22 6.63 
2013 20.96 43.67 5.95 21.27 6.63 
2012 20 96 43.67 5.97 21.27 6.71 

TAX LEVIES 

Fiscal School Road Recreation 
Year SherifTs Office Taxes Taxes Parish Council Districts 
2021 $ 14,154,812 $ 30.274,782 $ 3,951,447 $ 14.364,137 $ 580,547 
2020 13,769,290 29,102,031 3,855,982 13,269,994 572,004 
2019 12,582,450 26,593,586 3,521,609 11,976,124 507,238 
2018 11,640,653 24,603,050 3,258,804 11,079,708 453,558 
2017 10,832,883 22,513,323 3,017,122 10,305,677 485,097 
2016 12,110,370 25.231.824 3,388,182 11,584,568 591,082 
2015 11,418,341 23.789,998 3,185,587 10,960,740 562,281 
2014 11,224,347 23,385,814 3,128,867 10,828,065 601,613 
2013 10,260,929 21,378,539 2,851,522 10,412,689 600,213 
2012 8,588,641 18,013,174 2,394,401 8,715,669 490,838 

Source: St. James Parish Assessor's Office 
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Public Detention Levee Drainage Fire Otber Parish 
Safety Center Districts Taxes Protection Taxes Totals 

5.18 0.60 7.03 299 0.74 3.04 117,59 
5.19 0.60 7.41 300 0.74 3.04 117.52 
5.19 0.60 7.40 3.00 0.74 3.04 117,08 
5.19 0.60 7.26 3.00 0.74 2.89 116.74 
5.18 0.60 7.26 2.99 0.74 2.89 116.10 
5.19 0.60 7.40 3.00 0.74 2.59 116.38 
5.19 0.60 7.35 3.00 0.74 2,59 116.40 
5.19 1.00 7.35 2.98 0.74 259 117,28 
5.19 1.00 7.35 2,98 0.74 28.62 144.36 
5.19 1.00 742 2.98 0.74 2.61 118.52 

Public Detention Levee Drainage Fire Other Parish 
Safety Center Districts Taxes Protection Taxes Totals 

$3,504,930 $405,196 $2,311,181 $2,019,218 $445,907 $1,762,595 $73,774,752 
3,409,480 394,160 2,403,976 1,970,797 437,369 1,518,080 70,703,163 
3,115,601 360,185 2,199,766 1,800,925 398.184 1,387,232 64,442,900 
2,882,397 333,226 2,002,958 1,666,126 368,963 1,283,112 59.572.555 
2,677,829 310,102 1,865,811 1,545,335 339,509 1,198,216 55,090,904 
2,998,713 346,670 2,124,360 1,733,353 386,146 1,322,511 61,817,779 
2,827,356 326,863 1,983.636 1,634,307 361,438 1,251,344 58,302,391 
2,779,321 535,518 1,952,976 1,595,830 353,355 1,246,014 57,631,720 
2,540,764 489,552 1,777,307 1,458,855 316,461 1,539,994 53,626,825 
2,126,681 409,766 1,501,590 1,221,098 264,832 955,577 44,682,267 
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St. James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

Principal Property Taxpayers 
As of December 31.202! and December 31. 2012 

(Unaudited) 

Taxpayer 

2021 2012 

Taxpayer 
Assessed 

Value Rank 

Percent of 
Total Assessed 

Value 
Assessed 

Value Rank 

Percent of 
Total Assessed 

Value 

Equiion Enterprises LLC* s eso.id&.rga 1 92.38% $ 126,421.854 1 23.93% 

Mosaic Fertilizer LLC - Uncle Sam 167.B85.aS6 2 23.85% 36.612.189 3 6.93% 

Mosaic Fertitizer LLC - FausUrta 94,689.049 4 13.45% - - -

American Styrenics LLC 77,203.277 6 10.97% 24,174.792 4 4.58% 

Zen-ftoh Grain Corp. 82,818.907 5 11.77% 9.828.926 10 1,86% 

Noranda Alumina LLC 15,107,839 7 2.15% 11,288,964 7 2-14% 

Locap. Inc 14.419,400 S 2.05% 12,029,440 6 2.28% 

Louisiana Sugar Rating LLC 133.418,030 3 18.96% 10,183,211 9 1 93% 

Occidental Chemical Corp. 13.488.503 10 1.02% 12.680.981 5 240% 

Rains MarKeting. LP 13.843,872 9 1.97% 10.237.100 fi 1.94% 

Valero Marketing & Supply . - 46,216.125 2 8,75% 

TOTALS S 1.263.072.723 82 85% $ 299.673.582 56.74% 

Source; St. James Parish Assessor's Office 

*Equllon Enlerpnses. LLC is the parent company operating the Shefi On Refinery in Convent. Louisiana, 
See Footnote H to the attached Financial Statements for additional information regarding its closure In 2021. 
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Si. James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

Ad Valorem Tax Levies and Collections 
For the Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Unaudited) 

Fiscal 
Year 

Amount of 
Tax Levied 

Collected in 
Current 

Year 

Percent of Levy 
Collected In 
Current Year 

Collected in 
Subsequent 

Years 

Total 
Collections 

to Date 
Percent of Levy 

Collected 

2021 ¥ 21.024.031 $ 20,708,670 98.50% £ 71,671 $ 20,760,341 98.84% 

2020 $ 21,065,467 $ 20,928,542 99.35% 3 94,500 3 21,023,042 99.80% 

2019 $ 18,600,066 $ 18,531,076 99.63% S 51,765 £ 18,582,841 99.91% 

2018 $ 18,600,066 $ 18,268,194 98.22% s 144,648 $ 18,412,842 98.99% 

2017 $ 17,207,848 $ 17,076,181 99.23% 3 22.700 £ 17,098,881 99.37% 

2Q1G S 15.746,252 $ 15,634,897 99.29% S 23.863 3 15,658,760 99.44% 

2015 S 17,647,624 $ 17,315,673 98.12% $ 20.825 S 17,336,498 98.24% 

2014 S 16,639,183 £ 16,330,539 98.15% $ 21,690 £ 16,352,229 98.28% 

2013 $ 16,356.489 £ 16,239,627 99.29% £ 110,236 £ 16,350,063 99.96% 

2012 $ 14.952,562 £ 14,759.400 98 78% $ 99,665 S 14,869.065 99,44% 

Amount 
Source: 

of Tax Levied represents Assessor's original levy less homestead exemption. 
St. James Parish Assessor 

Amount of Tax Collected represents Parish levies and coiiections only. Amounts do not include payments 
in lieu of taxes, which are reported on thebaslcfinancialstaternentsinthe Ad Valorem Tax line item. 
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St. James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type 
For the Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Unaudited) 

Fiscal 
Year 

2021 

2020 

2019 

2018 

2017 

2016 

2015 

2014 

2013 

2012 

Governmental Activities 

Gen Oblgtn 
Bonds and 
Premium 

$ 1,625,000 

2,005,000 

2,375,000 

2,725,000 

3,065,000 

3,390,000 

3,710,000 

4,010,000 

4,130,000 

5,160,000 

Certificates 
Indebtedness/ 
Capital Lease 

333,551 

654,082 

961,687 

1,261,455 

1,548,474 

1,827,827 

2,099,596 

1,650.000 

Limited 
Tax 

Certificates 

588.000 

1,155,000 

1.701,000 

2,217,000 

2.721.000 

Limited 
Tax 

Bonds 

540,000 

620,000 

700,000 

775,000 

850,000 

GOMESA 
Revenue 
Bonds 

$ 7,440.000 

7,755,000 

8.000.000 

(1) U.S. Census estimates. Not readily available for 2021. 
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Total Debt 
(1) 

Total 
(1) 

Percent of 
Total 
Debt 

Parish 
Population 

Personal 
Income 

Per 
Capita 

Personal 
Income 

$ 9,605,000 19,742 - $ 487 -

10.380.000 21,096 610,602,624 492 1.700% 

11.408.551 21,037 564,085,944 542 2.022% 

4.154,082 21,367 549,644,708 194 0.756% 

4.876,687 21,557 544,853,175 226 0.895% 

5,239,455 21.460 543.195.520 244 0.965% 

6.413,474 21,567 519.139,257 297 1.235% 

7.538.827 21,664 479,489,312 348 1.572% 

8,446,596 21,781 439,867,295 388 1.920% 

9,531.000 21.888 399,609,216 435 2-385% 
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St. James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding 
For the Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Unaudited) 

Fiscat 
Year 

Gen Oblgtn 
Bonds and 

Premmm 

Less Amounts 
Available in 

Debt Service Fund Total 

Percentage of 
Estimated 

Actual Taxable 
Value of Property 

Per 
Capita 

2021 $ 1,625,000 $ 10,626 $ 1,614,374 0.03% $ 82 

2020 2,005.000 75,263 1,929,747 0.03% 91 

2019 2,375.000 21,124 2.353,876 0.04% 112 

2018 2,725,000 28,688 2,696,312 0.05% 126 

2017 3,065,000 12,926 3,052,074 0.06% 142 

2016 3,390.000 24.700 3,365,300 0.06% 157 

2015 3,710,000 118,145 3,591,855 0.07% 167 

2014 4,010.000 235,606 3,774,394 0.08% 174 

2013 4,130,000 6.469 4,123,531 0.09% 189 

2012 5,160,000 84.541 5,075,459 0.14% 232 
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St. James Parish 
Convent, Louisjana 

Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt 
As of December 31, 2021 

(Unaudited) 

Governmental Unit 

Direct: 
St. James Parish Government 

General Obligation Bond (1) 
Limited Tax Bond (1) 
GOMESA Revenue Bond {1} 

Debt 
Outstanding 

1,625.000 
540.000 

7,440.000 

Estimated 
Percen^ge 
Applicable 

100% 
100% 
100% 

Estimated Share of 
Oyerlapping Debt 

1,625,000 
540,000 

7.440,000 

Subtotal. Direct Debt 

Overlapping Debt: 
St James Parish School Board (4) 
Town of Lutcher {2} 
Town of Gramercy(3) 

Subtotal, Overlapping Debt 

Total Direct and Overlapping Debt 

9,605.000 

64,553,987 
1,206,000 
1,045,441 

€6,605,428 

78,410,428 

100%. 
100% 
100% 

9.605,000 

64.553,987 
1,206.000 
1,045,441 

66,805,428 

76,410.428 

Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part with the geographic boundaries of the parish. This schedule 
estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is borne by the residents and businesses 
of St, James Parish, This process recognizes that, when considering the government's ability to issue and repay long-term debt 
the entire debt burden borne by the residents and businesses should be taken into account However, this does not imply that 
every taxpayer is a resident and therefore responsible for repaying the debt of each overlapping government. 

The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable assessed property values. Applicable percentages wen 
estimated by determining the portion of The Council's taxable assessed value that is within tiie government's boundaries and 
dividing it by the parish's total taxable assessed value. 

(1) As of December 31. 2021 
(2) As of April 30,2021 
(3) As of June 30, 2021 
(4) As of June 30, 2021 
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St. James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

Legal Debt Margin Information 
For the Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Unaudited) 

Fiscal 
Year 

Debt 
Limit 

Total Net Debt 
Applicable 

to Limit 

Legal 
Debt 

Margin 

Total Net Debt 
Applicable to Limit 

as a Percentage 
of Debt Limit 

2021 $ 246.351.803 $ 9,605,000 S 236,746.803 3.90% 

2020 251,124,750 10,380,000 240,744,750 4.13% 

2019 244.468.361 11.408.551 233,059.810 4.67% 

2018 224.562.053 4,154,082 220,407,971 1.85% 

2017 292.352.861 4,876,687 287,476,174 1.67% 

2016 195,138.689 5,239,455 189,899,234 2.68% 

2015 216,009,355 6,413,474 209,595.881 2.97% 

2014 204,412,526 7,538,827 196,873,699 3.69% 

2013 201,072,197 8,446,596 192,625,601 4.20% 

2012 184,874,844 9,531,000 175,343,844 5.16% 

Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Fiscal Year 2021 
Assessed Value $ 703,862,295 
Debt Limit - 35% of 
Assessed Value (1) 246,351,803 
Less Bonded Debt 9,605.000 

Legal Debt Margin $ 236,746,803 

(1) State law allows a maximum of 35% of assessed valuation for total bonded general obligation debt 
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St. James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

Demographic and Economic Statistics 
For the Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Unaudited) 

Fiscal 
Year (1) Population 

(1) Per Capita 
Income 

(1) Median 
Age 

(2) 
Unemployment 

Rate 

2021 19,742 $ 28,944 39.6 5.8% 

2020 21,096 26,739 39.9 11.8% 

2019 21,037 25,736 38.9 6.9% 

2018 21,367 25,724 38.8 7.8% 

2017 21.557 25.275 38.9 7.9% 

2016 21,460 25,312 38.9 6.7% 

2015 21.567 24,071 38.8 9.3% 

2014 21,664 22,133 38.6 9.4% 

2013 21,781 20,195 38.5 10.5% 

2012 21,888 18,257 38.2 11.6% 

(1) Amounts are estimates from the U.S. Census. 
(2) Amounts are from the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics. 
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St. James Parish 
Convent. Louisiana 

Principal Employers 
Current Year and Nine Years Ago 

{Unaudited} 

2021 2012 

Employer 

Equilon Enterprises LLC* 

St. James Parish Schl Brd 

Alaico Alumina 

Noranda Alumina, LLC 

Mosaic fertillaer, LLP 

St. James Parish Co unci! 

Zen-Noh Grain Corp. 

Associated Terminals 

Louisiana Sugar Rerming 

St. James Parish Hospital 

Nucor Steel La 

Amerlcsn Styrenics 

Occld^tal CheinlGai Corp. 

Koch Mettiano! 

UTZ/^ps 

Type ot Business 

Percent of 
Number of Total 

Rank Employees Employment 

Petroleum Refinery 

K-12 Public Education 

Aluminum Manufacturer 

Chemical Plant 

Fertilizer Production 

Parish Government 

Grain Processor 

Shipping and Cargo 

Sugar Refining 

Hospital 

Steel Production 

Chemical Refinery 

Chemical Refinery 

Methanol Manufacturer 

Potato Chips/Snacks 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

9 

7 

5 

6 

11 

10 

12 

27 

624 

480 

32B 

2S& 

190 

150 

190 

270 

255 

IIS 

123 

106 

0.39% 

9.0694 

6.97% 

4.76% 

4.15% 

2.76% 

2.18% 

2.76% 

3.92% 

3.70% 

1.67% 

179% 

1.54% 

Percent of 
Number of Total 

Rank Employees Employment 

9 

7 

10 

540 

600 

490 

240 

365 

120 

336 

109 

134 

95 

5.30% 

5.89% 

4.81% 

2.35% 

3.58% 

1.18% 

3.30% 

1.07% 

1,31% 

0.93% 
3144 0.4565 3029 0.2972 

* Equilon Enterprises, LLC is the parent company operating the Shell Oil Rehnery in Convent, Louisiana. 
See Footnote H to the attached Financial Statements for additional Information regarding Its closure in 2021. 

Source: St. James Parish Assessor. 
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St. James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

Employees by Function 
For the Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Unaudited) 

Function 2019 2020 2021 

General Government 143 148 133 
Judicial 26 26 26 
Public Safety/Health 12 12 12 
Public Works 35 38 47 
Solid Waste 5 5 4 
Recreation 12 12 27 
Water and Gas 35 37 37 

Total 268 278 286 

NOTE: Number of Employees by Function prior to 2019 is not available. 
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St James Parish 
Convent. Louisiana 

Operating Indicators by Function 
For the Last Ten Fiscai Year^ 

{Unaudited) 

Public Safety 
Totai number of rolls 
Number fires 
Number of rescue calls 
Number of service calls 

2018^ 

237 
72 
36 
96 

2019 

308 
71 
65 
127 

2020 

280 
81 
43 

122 

2021 

521 
116 
€0 
273 

Public works 
Water/Gas Leaks and otiier issues 
Tree Branch Removal/Trimming 
Potholes 
Drainage/Channel/Facility Maintenance 
Culvert Cleaning 

165 
850 
32 
530 
110 

161 
987 
28 
526 
130 

179 
1,097 

31 
584 
145 

507 
1,089 
48 
427 
71 

Public Utility 
Water and Gas 

Average Number of Billed Accounts 
East Bank 
West Bank 
New Connections 

2376 
3,555 

72 

2.384 
3,636 

89 

2,407 
3,668 

55 

3,312 
5.6S3 

122 

Building Permite 
Electrical Connection 
Water Connection 
Gas Connection 
Municipal Address 

Storage Shed (Less than 200 Sq. Ft.) 
Culvert Installation 
Change of Ownership 
Change of Qccuipancy 
Temporary Jobslte Trailer 
Name Change on Billing 
New Residential 
New Residential Addition 
New Residential Accessory 
Residential Modular 
Other 
Mobile Home 
Residential Renovation $10,001 and More 
In-Ground Swimming Pool 
Electrical 
Gas 

547 
387 
168 
88 
3 
74 
92 
209 
1 

41 
44 
7 
S3 

26 
4 
23 
57 

466 
441 
168 
76 
5 
56 
103 
174 

132 
33 
4 
34 

23 
5 
11 
70 
1 

367 
333 
178 
44 
7 
82 
91 
141 

26 
43 
8 
62 
1 
2 

31 
11 
22 
57 
1 

386 
352 
168 
144 
14 
94 
81 
121 

sa 
24 
2 

36 
B 
13 
73 
4 

' Information prior to 2018 is not available. 
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2018 2019 202O 2021 
Building Pennlts (Continued) 

Mechanical 2 3 1 61 
Plumbing 3 5 1 4 
Non-Residential Change of Occupancy - 6 7 5 
Temporary Travel Trailer - - 1 -
Sign Permit t 1 1 -
Culvert Temporary - 1 - -
Farm Exempt 2 - - 2 
Industrial Permit ($0 Fee) - 1 - -
Industrial Permit (Based on Value) 2 2 2 -
Detached Accessory without Walls < 500 sq.ft 4 2 3 -
Detached Accessory Without Wails > 500 sq.ft 5 1 - -
Attached Patio Cover 2 4 5 2 
Whole Home Generator 24 28 44 60 
Residential Renovation < $5000 4 9 6 3 
Residential Renovation SSDOOto $10000 2 3 2 2 
After the Fact Permit Fee 6 6 9 10 
New Commercial 19 24 12 S 
Commercial Renovations 6 10 3 1 
Commercial Storage 3 2 - 1 
Pylon Sign Permit 2 4 - 2 
New Cell Tower 2 - - a 
Cell Tower Co-location/Antenna Change Out 9 8 S 7 
Commercial/Institutional Re-Roof 2 ' 1 1 
Cammercial/lnstitutional Generator 5 - - 1 
Demolition 3 7 20 
Ida Commercial Renovations 2 
Ida Mobile Home Replacement 5 
Ida Shingle Replacement 65 
Ida Utility Reconnect 16 
Ida Demolition 35 
Ida Electrical Connection 121 
Ida Accessory Building 12 
Ida Mechanical S 
Ida Plumbing 38 
Ida Renovations 31 
Ida Temporary RV 46 
Ida Roof Replacement 379 
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St. James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

Capital Asset Statistics by Function 
For the Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Unaudited) 

201B* 
General 

Vehicles 
Utility Vehicles/Equipment 
Transit Busses 
Trailers 

35 
7 
20 
4 

2019 

3B 
7 
22 
4 

2020 

41 
7 
22 
5 

2021 

76 
7 

21 
5 

Public Safety - Fire/911 
Vehicles 
Utility Vehicles/Equipment 
Trailers 
Fire - Other 

4 
1 
4 
5 

4 
1 
4 
5 

Solid Waste 
Vehicles 
Utility Vehicles/Equipment 

10 
2 

Culture and Recreation 
Vehicles 
Tractors 
Trailers 

7 
12 
2 

7 
13 
2 

7 
14 
2 

5 
15 
4 

Public Works 
Vehicles 
Tractors with attachments 
Trailers 
Boats 
Excavators 

22 
77 
7 
2 
5 

22 
80 
7 
2 
5 

24 
80 
7 
2 
7 

24 
81 
5 
2 
8 

Water and Gas 
Vehicles 
Trailers 
Equipment 

Information prior to 2018 is not available. 

20 
5 
5 
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SPECIAL REPORTS OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC 
ACCOUNTANTS AND OTHER SCHEDULES REQUIRED BY 

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS AND UNIFORM 
GUIDANCE 



•p&N 215 Saint Patrick St. - Donatdsonville, LA 7034B 
225-473-4179 Phone - 225-473-7204 Fax - pncpa com 

PostlethwaJie & Netterville -4 Professional Accounting Corporation 

INDEPENOEISTT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE 
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Preeidenl and Members 
St. James Parish Coundi 
Convent, Louisiana 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards g^erally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to finandal audits contained in Government Auditing Standards Issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely 
presented component unit, each major tijnd, and the aggregate remaining ^ind information of St. James Parish, State of 
Louisiana (the Parish), as of and for the year ended December 31. 2021, and the related notes to the flnancral statements, which 
collectively comprise the Parish's basic finandal statements, and have Issued our report thereon dated June 27, 2022. Our report 
Includes a reference to other auditors who audited the financial statement of the aggregate discretely presented component unit, 
St James Parish Hospital, as described in our report on the Parish's financial statements. This report does not include the results 
of the other auditors' testing of intemal control over finandal reporting or compliance and other matters that are reported on 
separately by those auditors. 

Report on Intemal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the finandal statements, we considered the Parish's Intemal conlrol over financial 
reporting (intemal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate In the drcumstances for the purpose of 
expressing our apinions on the finandal statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Parish's Internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Parish's intemal control. 

A deficiency in intemal control exists when tiie design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the 
normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A 
materiai weakness is a defidency, or a combination of defvdendes, in intemal control such that there is a reasonable possibility 
ttiat a material misstatement of the entity's tinandal statements vrill not be prevented, or detected and cx)rrected, on a timely 
basis. A significant deficiency is a defidency. or a combination of def dendes, in Intemal control that is less severe than a material 
weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with govemance. 

Our consideration of Intemal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not 
designed to identic all defidencies in intemal control that might be material weaknesses or significant defdendes. Given these 
limitations, during our audit we did not Identify any deficiendes In intemal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses or significant defdendes may exist that have not been identified. 

Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Parish's financial statements are free from material misstatement, 
we performed tests of its cx)mpliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, atvl grant agreements, noncompliance 
with which could have a direct and material effect on the financiai statements. However, providing an opinion on comFriiance with 
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests 
disdosed one instance of noncompliance or other matters that is required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards 
and which Is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2021 -001. 

St James Parish, State of Louisiana Resporrse to Findings 

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the Parish's response to the findings 
identified in our audit and described in the accompanying schedufe of findings and questioned rosts. The Parish's response was 
not subjected to the other auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no 
opinion on the response. 
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Purpose of ̂ is Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the so^pe of our testing of tnlemai control and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal conbx)! or on compliance. This report is an integral 
part of an audit performed in accordance with Govemm&nt Auditing Standards in considering fte entily's internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Oonaidsonville. Louisiana 
June 27, 2022 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL 
CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

To the President and Members 
St. James Parish Council 
Convent Louisiana 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited St. James Parish, State of Louisiana's (the Parish) compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements Identified as subject to audit in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and 
material effect on the Parish's major federal program for the year ended December 31, 2021. The Parish's major 
federal program is jdentified In the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings 
and questioned costs. 

In our opinion, the Parish, complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to 
above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federai program for the year ended December 31, 
2021, 

Basis for OpjViron on Each Mafor Federal Program 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America; the standards applicable to i^nancial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of title 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are 
further described In the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report. 

We are required to be independent of the Parish and to meet our other ethical responstbilitles. In accordance with 
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. Our 
audit does not provide a legal determination of the Parish's compliance with the requirements referred to above. 

Responsibilities of Managemen t for Compliance 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of effective fntemal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, 
statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the Parish's federal 
programs-
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Auditors' Responsibitities for the Audit of Contptience 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about vvhether material noncompliance with the compliance 
requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on the Parish's 
compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance Is a high level of assurance but is not absolute 
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted 
auditing standards. Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material 
noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher 
than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements 
referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or In the aggregate, 
it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the Parish's 
compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a whole. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Government Auditing 
Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we: 

« Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

« Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test 
basis, evidence regarding the Parish's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above 
and perfonning such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

• Obtain an understanding of the Parish's internal control over compliance relevant to the audit In order 
to design audit procedures that are appropriate In the circumstances and to test and report on internal 
control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Parish's internal control over compliance. 
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses In Internal 
control over compliance that we Identified during the audit. 

Report on Jntemal Control Over Complfance 

A deficiency in internal conlrt)} over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a 
timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deflciencEBs, in Internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material 
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and 
cotTected, on a timely basis A signifcant deficiency in interna/ control over compliance is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in Internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program that is less severe than a material weakness in Internal controJ over compliance, yet Important enough to 
merit attention by those charged with governance. 
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Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditors' 
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in 
intemat control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control 
over compliance. Given these limitations during our audit, we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies In internal control over compliance may exist thai were not identified. 

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over 
compliance. Accordingly, no suc^ opinion is expressed. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of Intaimal 
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. 
Accordingly, this report Is not suitable for any other purpose 

Donaldsonville, Louisiana 
June 27. 2022 
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St. James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Federal Granlor/Pass-Throuflh Grantor Name/Proaram Title 

Federal 
Assistance 

Listing 
Number 

Agency or Pass-Tnrougn 
Entity identifying Number 

Federal 
Exoenditures 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CLUSTER 
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 

Direct Program • Economic Adjustment Assistance 11.307 08-79-05118 S 318,230 
Total Economic Development Cluster 318,230 

TRANSIT SERVICES PROGRAMS CLUSTER 
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

Passes through Louisiana Department of Trartsportetion 
and Development - Federal Transit Administration 

Job Access and Reverse Commute Operating Aasiatanca Program 20.ste JA37-47-21 121.729 
Job Access and Reverse Commute Operating Assistance Program 20.516 4A37-47.22 86.243 

Total Transit Services Programs Cluster 207,972 

FEDERAL TRANSIT CLUSTER 
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATJON 

Passes through Louisiana Department of Transportation 
and Development - Federal Transit Adminislralion 

Bus and Bus Facilities Formula Program 20 526 RU 18-99-22 307,335 
Total Federal Transit Program Cluster 307,335 

AGING CLUSTER 
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 

Passed through Louisiana Governor's Office of 
Elderly Affairs - Special Programs for the Aging 

Title III - Part B Grant for Supportive Services arvd Seni^ Centera 93.044 4400019423 11.774 
Title III - Pari B Grant for Supportive Services and Senior Centers 93.044 4400022204 8.729 
COVlD-19 - Title III - Pad B Grant for Supportive Services and Senior Centers 93.044 4400019423 5.189 
Title III - Par! C for Nutrition Services (Area Agency Administration) 93.045 4400019423 5,045 
Title ill - Part C for Nutrition Services (Area Agency Administration) 93.045 4400022204 5.294 
Ttle lll-C-1 93.045 4400019423 10,302 
Title lll-C-1 93 045 44000ZZZ04 12,844 
Title lll-C-2 S3.04S 4400019423 8,057 
Title lll-C-2 93.045 4400022204 10.840 
COVID-19-Title lll-C-2 93.045 4400019423 17,036 
COVID-19-Tills lll-C-2 93.045 4400021649 1,963 
Nutrition Services Incentive PjOgrarti 93 053 4400018886 20.367 
Nulntion Services incentive Program 93.053 440Q022S20 26,834 

Total Aging Cluster 144.364 

OTHER PROGRAMS 
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 

Direct Program - Rural Development - Rural Housing Preservation 10.433 RO-1944-N 36,907 
Total United States Department of Agriculture 36.907 

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 
Passed through Louisiana OepertmentofNatufBl Resources 

Coastal Zone Managemeni. FY 19-22 11.419 2005426716 22.933 
Total United States Department of Commerce 22.933 

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF INTERIOR 
Direct Program - GOMESA 15435 Norte 395,487 

Total United Stales Department of Interior 395.437 

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
Passed through Louisiana DepertmentofTrsnsporlation 

and Development - federal Trartsit Administration 
Nonurbanized Formula Grants, Section S311 

FTA Qrert LA-1B-X031 /LA-2019-011 
FTA Grant LA-2020-007 
Rural Transit Assistance Program 
Total United Sutes Department of Transportation 

20.509 
20.509 
20.509 

RU-18-A7-21 
RU-IS'47-22 

None 

208.990 
312,157 

1.379 
522,526 

EXHieiTC - 1 
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St. James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

Schedute of Exoenditures of Federal Awards 
For the Year Ended December 31. 2021 

Federal Grantor/Paas-Throi^h Grantor Name/Program Title 

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
Passed through Louisiana Governor's Office of 

Elderly Affairs - Special Programs for the Aging 
Tiiie III'D 
Till© lll-E 
Title lll-E 
COVJO'19 Tills lll-E 

Subrecipient of Louisiara Housing Corporation 
Low Income Horn© Energy Asststance Program 
Low Income Home Energy Assistsnce Program 
Low Income Horn© Energy Assistance Program - Admfn 
COVIO-15 - Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program 
Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program -Client Education, FY20 

Passed through Louisiana Department of Health and 
Hospitals - OPH Center for Community Preparedness 

Cjlies Readiness Initiative Program 
Passed through Louisiana Department of Labor 

Community Services Block Grant. FY20 
Contmuriity Services Block Grant. FY21 
COVID-18 Community Se.n;ices Block Grant 

Total United States Department of Health and Human Services 

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY 
Passed through United Way of Amenca 

Emergency Food and Shelter National Board Program - Phase 37 
Emergency Food and Snaiter National Board Program - Phase 38 
COV^D-tS - Emergency Food and Shelter National Board Program 

Passed through Louisiana Governor's Office of 
Homeland Security and Emergency Preparedness 

Subrecipient of South Central Planning & Development Commission 
Homeland Security Grant Program FY 2019 

Passed through Louisiana Governors Office of 
Homeland Secunty and Emergency Preparedness 

Hazard Mitigation Grant Program • Interior Drainage 
Hazard Mitigation Grant Program - Humble St. Drainage 
DissEter Grants - Public Assistance (Presidentially Declared Disasters} 
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance (Presidenlialiy Declared Disasters) 

Total United States Department of Homeland Security 

Federal 
Assistanoa 

Listing 
Number 

93.043 
93.052 
93.052 
93.052 

93 56S 
93 566 
93.566 
93.568 
93 566 

93.074 

93 569 
93.569 
93.569 

97.024 
97.024 
97.024 

97.087 

97 039 
97.039 
97 036 
97.036 

Agency or Pass-Through 
Entity Identifying Number 

4400019423 
4400019423 
4400021947 
4400019423 

None 
None 
None 
None 

None 

200051471B 

2000460SSO 
2000551669 
2001LACSC3 

37-3684-00 
38-3684-00 

CARES 3664-00 

EMW-2019-00014-S01 

FEMA-1786-DR-LA 
FeMA-1603-365 
FEMA-DR4550 
FEMA-DR46T1 

federal 
Ei^penditurw 

3,321 
5,347 
5.829 
6,847 

93,576 
18.259 
10,225 
5.765 

314 

15.243 

45.265 
11.684 
8075 

229.550 

IBS 
10,216 
15,274 

730 

12.595 
817,137 
60.171 

1,269.865 
7.986.206 

VARfOUS AGENCIES 
Institute of Uuseurn and Library Services 

Passed through Office of State Libraries 
COVID-19 -JMLS CARES ACT 

Total Various Agencies 

TOTAL OTHER PROGRAMS 

TOTAL FEDERAL ASSISTANCE EXPENDED 

45.312 CAG-ML-FY20 37.300 
37.309 

3H230.9?8 

4.208.619 

EXHIBIT C - 1 
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St. James Parish 
Convent, Louisiana 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
For the Year Ended Decemt)er 31.2021 

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE 

(1) Basis of Presentation 

The accompanymg schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal award activity of St. 
James Parish under programs of the federal government for the year ended December 31 2021. The information in this 
Schedule Is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Pn'nc/p/es, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because 
the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operation of SI. James Parish, it is not intended to and does not 
present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of St. James Parish. 

(2^ Indirect Cost Rate 

St. James Parish has not elected to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform 
Guidance 

(3) Reconciliation of Federal Expenditures 

Federal assistance expended as reported on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Add: current year revenues received and not utilized In current year 

Add: revenues accrued for FEMA Project Worksheets approved after year end 

Less: revenues accrued In previous years for expenditures not reimbursed by grantor 

Less: revenues received in the prior year but expenditures incurred In the current year 

Federal grant revenues 

Federal grant revenues as reported on; 
Exhibit A-5 • All Governmental Fund Types - Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 

Changes in Fund Balance 

Exhibit A-8 - Proprietary Funds - Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

(4) Amounts Passed Through to Subrecioients 

The Parish did not pass through any Federal Funding to subrecipients. 

$ 4,208.819 

700,580 

1,133,463 

(1.224) 

(407,656) 

S 5.633,982 

$ 5,307,987 

325,995 

$ 5.633,982 

EXHlBITC-1 (Concluded) 
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ST JAMES PARISH 
CONVENT, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTJONED COSTS 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditors' report issued: 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

« Material weakness(es) identified 

• Signifrcsnt deficiency(ies) identified 

Unmodified 

Yes X No 

,Yes X None reported 

Noncompliance material to firtancial statements noted 

Federal Awards 

internal control over major federal programs: 

• Material weakness(es) identified 

« Significant deficiency(ies) identified 

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major programs: 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in 
accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(d) 

Identification of major federal programs: 

Name of Federal Program or Cluster 

Disaster Grants - Public Assistance (Presidentlaity Declared Disaster) 

Yes No 

Yes X No 

Yes X None reported 

Unmodified 

Yes No 

Federal Assistance Listing Number 

97,036 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and 
Type B programs: 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee 

S75Q.GQ0 

X Yes No 
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ST. JAMES PARISH 
CONVENT, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS 

2021-001 DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS MOVABLE PROPERTY 

Criteria: Louisiana Revised Statute 49:125 provides that a local government may sell movable property at a 
public auction open to private persons once a resolution is passed giving the reasons for the auction and 
setting the minimum price and terms of the sale. The iocal government must advertise the sale, and no sale 
shall be at a price less than is required by law, with the local government reserving the right to reject any and 
all bids and remove them from the sale. Notice of the sale should be published at least once, at least fifteen 
days prior to the sale, indicating the minimum bid and appraised value of the item and the municipality's right 
to reject any and all bids. 

Condition: The Parish advertised their annual public auction online via FacebooK. The date of the auction and 
the minimum price levels were undeterminable from the Facebook posting. 

Cause: The Parish does not have policies and procedures in place to ensure compliance with Louisiana asset 
disposal laws. 

Effect: The Parish failed to set a minimum sales price, receive an appraisal, or advertise the auctton via the 
official journal at least 15 days prior to the auction. The Parish is in violation of Louisiana Revised Statute 49:125. 
The Parish may not have received the maximum proceeds for the assets disposed. 

Recommendation: The Parish should implement policies and procedures that ensure the proper procedures are 
followed regarding the disposal of surplus movable property. 

View of Responsible Official: Management concurs with the finding. 

SECTION III - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

None, 
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ST. JAMES PARISH 
CONVENT. LOUISIANA 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 
For the Year Ended December 31. 2021 

I. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT 

None. 

II. FINDINGS - COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS 

None. 

III. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT 

2020-001 ALLOWABLE COSTS 

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY 

Condition: The Parish requested $1,269,084 of Coronavirus Relief Funds of which $141,837 was 
denied and $1,127,247 was allowed. Of the amount allowed $317,141 was reimbursed to the 
Parish based on allocating Relief funds to Parishes and to individual governments within each 
Parish. Out of a population of 616 payroll transactions totaling $1,197,065. a sample of 38 was 
selected for testing. One of the 38 was to request reimbursement for retirement expenses in the 
amount of $40 that were not paid. Two of the 38 transactions totaling $2,862 did not have 
supporting documentation due to the employee not working during the pay period selected for 
testing, And an additional two of the 38 transactions charged to the program totaling $5,375 were 
for an individual whose salary is paid for through another Federal grant. 

Current status: Resolved. 
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St. James Parish Government 
P.O. Box 106 

Convent, Louisiana 70723-0106 Peter A« Dufresne 
(225) 562-2260 Parish President 

FAX (225) 562-2279 
TDD: <225)562-8500 

June 27,2022 

Louisiana Legislative Auditor 
PO Box 94397 
Baton Rouge, LA 70804-9397 

RE: Correction Action Plan for Audit Finding 2021-DOl - Disposal of Surplus Movable 
Property - Year Ended 2021 

The following is St. James Parish Government's corrective actions taken and/or responses to the 
audit findings for the year ended 2021: 

2021-001 Disposal of Surplus Movable Property 

St James Parish has an annual sale of surplus equipment. A new employee was assigned to 
coordinate this sale. The sale was advertised on the Parish's website and Facebook page but not 
in the official journal. An in-service was held on sales of surplus property. In addition, prior to 
the annual sale, the operations department will review the sales procedures with the finance 
department. 

Sincerely, 

"elix K 
Director" 

Rkhard Webrc Felix Boogbton Ingrid Bergeron-LeBlanc Eric Deroche 
Director of Director of Director of Director of 
Operations Finance Human Resources Emergency Prepar^ness 

232 



•p&N 215 Saint Patrick St. - Donaldsonville, LA 70346 

225-473-4179 Phone - 225-473-7204 Fax - pncpa.com 

„ „ A Professional Accounting Corporation 
PostLethwarte& NetterviLle 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT 
ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 2021 

To the President and Members of St. James Parish 
Council (Parish) 
St. James Parish 
P.O. Box 106 
Convent, LA 70723-0106 
and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor: 

We have performed the procedures enimierated below on the control and compliance (C/C) areas identified 
in the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's (LLA's) Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures (SAUPs) for the fiscal 
January 1, 2021 through December 31, 2021. St. James Parish's management is responsible for those C/C 
areas identified in the SAUPs. 

The Parish has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are appropriate to meet the 
intended purpose of the engagement, which is to perform specified procedures on the C/C areas identified 
in LLA's SAUPs for the fiscal period January 1, 2021 through December 31, 2021. Additionally, LLA has 
agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are appropriate for its purposes. This report 
may not be suitable for any other purpose. The procedures performed may not address all the items of 
interest to a user of this report and may not meet the needs of all users of this report and, as such, users are 
responsible for determining whether the procedures performed are appropriate for their purposes. 

The procedures performed and the results thereof are set forth below. The procedure is stated first, followed 
by the results of the procedure presented in italics. If the item being subjected to the procedures is positively 
identified or present, then the results will read "no exception noted" or for step 25 "we performed the 
procedure and discussed the results with management". If not, then a description of the exception ensues. 

A - Written Policies and Procedures 

1. Obtain and inspect the entity's written policies and procedures and observe whether they address each 
of the following categories and subcategories (if applicable to public fimds and the entity's operations): 

a) Budgeting., including preparing, adopting, monitoring, and amending the budget. 

No exceptions noted. 

b) Purchasing, including (1) how purchases are initiated; (2) how vendors are added to the vendor 
list; (3) the preparation and approval process of purchase requisitions and purchase orders; (4) 
controls to ensure comphance with the Public Bid Law; and (5) documentation required to be 
maintained for all bids and price quotes. 

No exceptions noted. 

c) Disbursements, including processing, reviewing, and approving. 

No exceptions noted. 
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d) Receipts/Collections, including receiving, recording, and preparing deposits. Also, policies and 
procedures should include management's actions to determine the completeness of all collections 
for each type of revenue or agency fund additions (e.g., periodic confirmation with outside parties, 
reconciliation to utility billing after cutoff procedures, reconciliation of traffic ticket nimiber 
sequences, agency fund forfeiture monies confirmation). 

No exceptions noted. 

e) Payroll/Personnel, including (1) payroll processing, (2) reviewing and approving time and 
attendance records, including leave and overtime worked, and (3) approval process for employee(s) 
rate of pay or approval and maintenance of pay rate schedules. 

The Entity has written policies for Payroll/Personnel; however, the policies do not contain attribute 
(3) regarding approval or rate of pay. 

f) Contracting, including (1) types of services requiring written contracts, (2) standard terms and 
conditions, (3) legal review, (4) approval process, and (5) monitoring process. 

The Entity has written policies for Contracting; however, the policies do not contain attribute (2) 
regarding standard terms and conditions. 

g) Credit Cards (and debit cards, fuel cards, P-Cards, if applicable), including (1) how cards are to 
be controlled, (2) allowable business uses, (3) documentation requirements, (4) required approvers 
of statements, and (5) monitoring card usage (e.g., determining the reasonableness of fuel card 
purchases). 

No exceptions noted. 

h) Travel and E:q}ense Reimbursement, including (1) allowable expenses, (2) dollar thresholds by 
category of expense, (3) documentation requirements, and (4) required approvers. 

No exceptions noted. 

i) Ethics, including (1) the prohibitions as defined in Louisiana Revised Statute (R.S.) 42:1111-1121, 
(2) actions to be taken if an ethics violation takes place, (3) system to monitor possible ethics 
violations, and (4) a requirement that documentation is maintained to demonstrate that all 
employees and officials were notified of any changes to the entity's ethics policy. 

The Entity has written policies for Ethics; however, the policy does not specifically include a system 
to monitor possible ethic violations according to attribute (3) above or require employees and 
officials to annually attest through signature verification that they have read the Entity's ethics 
policy according to attribute (4). 

j) Debt Service, including (1) debt issuance approval, (2) continuing disclosure/EMMA reporting 
requirements, (3) debt reserve requirements, and (4) debt service requirements. 

No exceptions noted. 
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k) Information Technology Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity, including (1) identification of 
critical data and frequency of data backups, (2) storage of backups in a separate physical location 
isolated from the network, (3) periodic testing/verification that backups can be restored, (4) use of 
antivirus software on all systems, (5) timely application of all available system and software 
patches/updates, and (6) identification of personnel, processes, and tools needed to recover 
operations after a critical event. 

The Entity does not have a written policy for Information Technology Disaster 
Recovery/Business Continuity. 

1) Sexual Harassment, including R.S. 42:342-344 requirements for (1) agency responsibilities and 
prohibitions, (2) annual employee training, and (3) annual reporting. 

The Entity has written policies for Sexual Harassment however the policy does not 
specifically address attribute (2) regarding annual employee training nor (3) annual 
reporting. 

B - Board or Finance Committee 

2. Obtain and inspect the board/finance committee minutes for the fiscal period, as well as the board's 
enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or equivalent document in effect during the fiscal period, and: 

a) Observe whether the board/finance committee met with a quorum at least monthly, or on a 
frequency in accordance with the board's enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or other equivalent 
document. 

No exception noted. 

b) For those entities reporting on the governmental accounting model, observe whether the minutes 
referenced or included monthly budget-to-actual comparisons on the general fund, quarterly 
budget-to-actual, at a minimum, on proprietary funds, and semi-annual budget- to-actual, at a 
minimum, on all special revenue funds. Alternately, for those entities reporting on the nonprofit 
accounting model, observe that the minutes referenced or included financial activity relating to 
public funds if those public funds comprised more than 10% of the entity's collections during the 
fiscal period. 

No exception noted. 

c) For governmental entities, obtain the prior year audit report and observe the unassigned fund 
balance in the general fund. If the general fund had a negative ending unassigned fund balance in 
the prior year audit report, observe that the minutes for at least one meeting diuing the fiscal period 
referenced or included a formal plan to eliminate the negative unassigned fund balance in the 
general fund. 

No exception noted. 
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C - Bank Reconciliations 

3. Obtain a listing of entity bank accounts for the fiscal period from management and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Ask management to identify the entity's main operating 
account. Select the entity's main operating account and randomly select 4 additional accounts (or all 
accounts if less than 5). Randomly select one month from the fiscal period, obtain and inspect the 
corresponding bank statement and reconciliation for each selected account, and observe that: 

A listing of bank accounts provided and included a total of 36 hank accounts. Management 
identified the entity's main operating account. No exceptions were noted as a result of performing 
this procedure. 

From the listing provided, we selected 5 bank accounts (1 main operating and 4 randomly) and 
obtained the bank reconciliations for the month ending May 31, 2021, resulting in 5 bank 
reconciliations obtained and subjected to the below procedures. 

a) Bank reconciliations include evidence that they were prepared within 2 months of the related 
statement closing date (e.g., initialed and dated, electronically logged); 

No exceptions noted. 

b) Bank reconciliations include evidence that a member of management/board member who does not 
handle cash, post ledgers, or issue checks has reviewed each bank reconciliation (e.g., initialed and 
dated, electronically logged); and 

No exceptions noted. 

c) Management has documentation reflecting it has researched reconciling items that have been 
outstanding for more than 12 months from the statement closing date, if applicable. 

No exceptions noted. 

D - Collections (^eluding electronic funds transfers) 

4. Obtain a listing of deposit sites for the fiscal period where deposits for cash/checks/money orders (cash) 
are prepared and management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 deposit 
sites (or all deposit sites if less than 5). 

A listing of deposit sites was provided and included a total of 8 deposit sites. No exceptions were noted 
as a result of performing this procedure. 

From the listing provided, we randomly selected 5 deposit sites and performed the procedures below. 
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5. For each deposit site selected, obtain a listing of collection locations and management's representation 
that the listing is complete. Randomly select one collection location for each deposit site (i.e. 5 
collection locations for 5 deposit sites), obtain and inspect written policies and procedures relating to 
employee job duties (if no written policies or procedures, inquire of employees about their job duties) 
at each collection location, and observe that job duties are properly segregated at each collection 
location such that: 

A listing of collection locations for each deposit site selected in procedure #4 was provided and 
included a total of 20 collection locations. No exceptions were noted as a result of performing this 
procedure. 

From each of the listings provided, we randomly selected one collection location for each deposit site. 
Review of the Entity's written policies and procedures or inquiry with employee(s) regarding job duties 
was performed in order to perform the procedures below. 

a) Employees responsible for cash collections do not share cash drawers/registers. 

For 1 of the 5 locations selected for our procedures, employees share the cash drawer. 

b) Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for preparing/making bank 
deposits, unless another employee/official is responsible for reconciling collection documentation 
(e.g. pre-numbered receipts) to the deposit. 

For 2 of the 5 locations selected for our procedures, the employee responsible for collecting cash 
prepares/makes the bank deposit and reconciles collection documentation to the deposit. 

c) Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for posting collection entries to 
the general ledger or subsidiary ledgers, unless another employee/official is responsible for 
reconciling ledger postings to each other and to the deposit. 

No exceptions noted. 

d) The employee(s) responsible for reconciling cash collections to the general ledger and/or subsidiary 
ledgers, by revenue source and/or agency fund additions are not responsible for collecting cash, 
unless another employee verifies the reconciliation. 

No exceptions noted. 

6. Obtain from management a copy of the bond or insurance policy for theft covering all employees who 
have access to cash. Observe the bond or insurance policy for theft was enforced diuing the fiscal 
period. 

No exceptions noted. 
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7. Randomly select two deposit dates for each of the 5 bank accounts selected for procediure #3 imder 
"Bank Reconciliations" above (select the next deposit date chronologically if no deposits were made 
on the dates randomly selected and randomly select a deposit if multiple deposits are made on the same 
day). Alternately, the practitioner may use a source document other than bank statements when 
selecting the deposit dates for testing, such as a cash collection log, daily revenue report, receipt book, 
etc. Obtain supporting documentation for each of the 10 deposits and: 

We randomly selected two deposit dates for each of the 5 bank accounts selected in procedure #i. It 
was noted that 2 of the 5 bank accounts had no activity during the year. For the remaining 3 bank 
accounts, we obtained supporting documentation for each of the 6 deposits and performed the 
procedures below. 

a) Observe that receipts are sequentially pre-numbered. 

The Entity does not maintain sequentially pre-numbered receipts. 

b) Trace sequentially pre-numbered receipts, system reports, and other related collection 
documentation to the deposit slip. 

No exceptions noted. 

c) Trace the deposit slip total to the actual deposit per the bank statement. 

No exceptions noted. 

d) Observe the deposit was made within one business day of receipt at the collection location (within 
one week if the depository is more than 10 miles from the collection location or the deposit is less 
than $100 and the cash is stored securely in a locked safe or drawer). 

For 2 of the 6 deposits selected for our procedures, the deposit was not made within one business 
day of receipt at the collection location (within one week if the depository is more than 10 miles 
from the collection location or the deposit is less than $100 and the cash is stored securely in a 
locked safe or drawer). 

e) Trace the actual deposit per the bank statement to the general ledger. 

No exceptions noted. 
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E - Non-payroll Disbursements (^eluding card purchases/payments^ travel reimbursements^ and petty 
cash purchases) 

8. Obtain a listing of locations that process payments for the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 locations (or all locations if less than 5). 

The listing of locations that process payments for the fiscal period was provided. No exceptions were 
noted as a result of performing this procedure. 

From the listing provided, only 1 location was identified. Therefore, this location was selected and the 
following procedures were performed. 

9. For each location selected under #8 above, obtain a listing of diose employees involved with non-
payroll purchasing and payment functions. Obtain written policies and procedures relating to employee 
job duties (if the agency has no written policies and procedures, inquire of employees about their job 
duties), and observe that job duties are properly segregated such that: 

The listing of employees involved with non-payroll purchasing and paymentfunctions for each payment 
processing location selected in procedure #8 was provided. No exceptions were noted as a result of 
performing this procedure. 

Review of the Entity's written policies and procedures or inquiry with employee(s) regarding job duties 
was performed in order to perform the procedures below. 

a) At least two employees are involved in initiating a purchase request, approving a purchase, and 
placing an order/making the purchase. 

No exceptions noted. 

b) At least two employees are involved in processing and approving payments to vendors. 

No exceptions noted. 

c) The employee responsible for processing payments is prohibited from adding/modifying vendor 
files, unless another employee is responsible for periodically reviewing changes to vendor files. 

For the one disbursement processing location selected for our procedures, one of the individuals 
involved in processing payments was not prohibitedfrom adding / modifying vendor files. There is 
no periodic review of vendor maintenance. 

d) Either the employee/official responsible for signing checks mails the payment or gives the signed 
checks to an employee to mail who is not responsible for processing payments. 

No exceptions noted. 
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10. For each location selected under #8 above, obtain the entity's non-payroll disbursement transaction 
population (excluding cards and travel reimbursements) and obtain management's representation that 
the population is complete. Randomly select 5 disbursements for each location, obtain supporting 
documentation for each transaction and: 

A listing of non-payroll disbursements for each payment processing location selected in procedures #8 
was provided related to the reporting period. No exceptions were noted as a result of performing this 
procedure. 

From each of the listings provided, we randomly selected 5 disbursements and performed the 
procedures below. 

a) Observe whether the disbursement matched the related original itemized invoice, and that 
supporting documentation indicates deliverables included on the invoice were received by the 
entity. 

No exceptions noted. 

b) Observe whether the disbursement documentation included evidence (e.g., initiaFdate, elechonic 
logging) of segregation of duties tested under #9, as applicable. 

For 5 of the 5 disbursements selected for our procedures, the individual who is responsible for 
processing payments is also responsible for mailing signed checks. 

Additionally, there was 1 disbursement where the purchase order was not approved by anyone 
other than the purchasing agent whenever the purchase order was generated. This invoice related 
to this same disbursement also did not appear to be approved. 

F - Credit Cards/Debit Cards/Fuel Cards/P-Cards 

11. Obtain from management a listing of all active credit cards, bank debit cards, fuel cards, and P-cards 
(cards) for the fiscal period, including the card numbers and the names of the persons who maintained 
possession of the cards. Obtain management's representation that the listing is complete. 

A listing of cards was provided. No exceptions were noted as a result of performing this procedure. 

12. Using the listing prepared by management, randomly select 5 cards (or all cards if less than 5) that were 
used during the fiscal period. Randomly select one monthly statement or combined statement for each 
card (for a debit card, randomly select one monthly bank statement), obtain supporting documentation, 
and: 

From the listing provided, we randomly selected 5 cards (1 credit cards and 4 fuel cards) used in the 
fiscal period. We randomly selected one monthly statement for each of the 5 cards selected and 
performed the procedures noted below. 
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a) Observe whether there is evidence that the monthly statement or combined statement and 
supporting documentation (e.g., original receipts for credit/debit card purchases, exception reports 
for excessive fuel card usage) were reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone other than the 
authorized card holder 

No exceptions noted. 

b) Observe that finance charges and late fees were not assessed on the selected statements. 

No exceptions noted. 

13. Using the monthly statements or combined statements selected under #12 above, excluding fuel cards, 
randomly select 10 transactions (or all transactions if less than 10) from each statement, and obtain 
supporting documentation for the transactions (i.e., each card should have 10 transactions subject to 
testing). For each transaction, observe it is supported by (1) an original itemized receipt that identifies 
precisely what was purchased, (2) written documentation of the business/public purpose, and (3) 
documentation of the individuals participating in meals (for meal charges only). For missing receipts, 
the practitioner should describe the natiure of the transaction and note whether management had a 
compensating control to address missing receipts, such as a "missing receipt statement" that is subject 
to increased scrutiny. 

We randomly selected all (10) transactions for the 1 credit card selected in procedure #12 (4 fuel cards 
excluded) and performed the specified procedures. No exceptions noted. 

G - Travel and Travel-Related Expense Reimbursements (excluding card transactions) 

14. Obtain from management a listing of all hravel and travel-related expense reimbursements during the 
fiscal period and management's representation that the listing or general ledger is complete. Randomly 
select 5 reimbursements, obtain the related expense reimbursement forms/prepaid expense 
documentation of each selected reimbursement, as well as the supporting documentation. For each of 
the 5 reimbursements selected: 

The listing of travel and travel-related expense reimbursements was provided for the fiscal period. No 
exceptions were noted as a result of performing this procedure. 

From the listing provided, we randomly selected 5 reimbursements and performed the procedures 
below. 

a) If reimbursed using a per diem, observe the approved reimbursement rate is no more than 
those rates established either by the State of Louisiana or the U.S. General Services 
Administration (www.gsa.gov). 

Of the 5 reimbursements selected for our procedures, 3 were related to milage reimbursements. 
Mileage rate agreed to the Louisiana Travel Guide Policy. No exceptions noted. 

http://www.gsa.gov
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a) If reimbursed using actual costs, observe the reimbursement is supported by an original itemized 
receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased. 

Of the 5 reimbursements selected for our procedures, 2 used actual cost. No exceptions noted. 

b) Observe each reimbursement is supported by documentation of the business/public purpose (for 
meal charges, observe that the documentation includes the names of those individuals participating) 
and other documentation required by written policy (procediure #lh). 

No exceptions noted. 

c) Observe each reimbursement was reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone other than the 
person receiving reimbursement. 

No exceptions noted. 

H - Contracts 

15. Obtain from management a listing of all agreements/contracts for professional services, materials and 
supplies, leases, and construction activities that were initiated or renewed during the fiscal period. 
Alternately, the practitioner may use an equivalent selection source, such as an active vendor list. 
Obtain management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 contracts (or all 
contracts if less than 5) from the hsting, excluding the practitioner's contract, and: 

A listing of all active contracts during the fiscal period were provided. No exceptions were noted as a 
result of performing this procedure. 

From the listing provided, we randomly selected 5 contracts and performed the procedures below. 

a) Observe whether the contract was bid in accordance with the Louisiana Public Bid Law (e.g., 
sohcited quotes or bids, advertised), if required by law. 

Of the 5 contracts selected for our procedures, 1 was subject to Louisiana Public Bid Law. No 
exceptions noted. 

b) Observe whether the contract was approved by the governing body/board, if required by policy or 
law (e.g. Lawrason Act, Home Rule Charter). 

No exceptions noted. 

c) If the contract was amended (e.g., change order), observe the original contract terms provided for 
such an amendment and that amenchnents were made in compliance with the contract terms (e.g., 
if approval is required for any amendment, was approval documented). 

Of the 5 contracts tested, 1 was amended. No exceptions noted. 
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d) Randomly select one payment from die fiscal period for each of the 5 contracts, obtain the 
supporting invoice, agree the invoice to the contract terms, and observe the invoice and related 
payment agreed to the terms and conditions of the contract. 

We randomly selected 1 payment for 4 of the 5 contracts selected in procedure #15 and performed 
the specified procedures. 1 of the 5 contracts selected did not include payments. No exceptions 
noted. 

I - Payroll and Personnel 

16. Obtain a listing of employees/elected officials employed during the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 employees/officials, obtain related paid 
salaries and personnel files, and agree paid salaries to authorized salaries/pay rates in the personnel 
files. 

A listing of employees/elected officials employed during the fiscal year was provided. No exceptions 
were noted as a result of performing this procedure. 

From the listing provided, we randomly selected 5 employees/officials and performed the specified 
procedures. Of the 5 employees, I employee did not have documentation of approved rate ofpay that 
agreed to paid salary. 

17. Randomly select one pay period during the fiscal period. For the 5 employees/officials selected under 
#16 above, obtain attendance records and leave documentation for the pay period, and; 

We randomly selected 1 pay period during the fiscal period and performed the procedures below for 
the 5 employees/officials selected in procedure #16. 

a) Observe all selected employees/officials documented their daily attendance and leave (e.g., 
vacation, sick, compensatory). (Note: Generally, an elected official is not eligible to earn leave and 
does not document his/her attendance and leave. However, if the elected official is earning leave 
according to policy and/or contract, the official should document his/her daily attendance and 
leave.). 

No exceptions noted. 

b) Observe whether supervisors approved the attendance and leave of the selected employees or 
officials. 

No exceptions noted. 

c) Observe that any leave accrued or taken during the pay period is reflected in the entity's cumulative 
leave records. 

No exceptions noted. 
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d) Observe the rate paid to the employees or officials agree to the authorized salary/pay rate found 
within the personnel file. 

Of the 5 employees selected for our procedures, 1 employee did not have documentation of 
approved rate of pay that agreed to actual rate paid. 

18. Obtain a listing of those employees or officials that received termination payments during the fiscal 
period and management's representation that the list is complete. Randomly select two employees or 
officials, obtain related documentation of the hours and pay rates used in management's termination 
payment calculations and the entity's policy on termination payments. Agree the hours to the employee 
or officials' cimiulative leave records, agree the pay rates to the employee or officials' authorized pay 
rates in the employee or officials' personnel files, and agree the termination payment to entity policy. 

A listing of employees/officials receiving termination payments during the fiscal period was provided. 
No exceptions were noted as a result of performing this procedure. 

From the listing provided, we randomly selected 2 employees/officials and performed the specified 
procedures. No exceptions noted. 

19. Obtain management's representation that employer and employee portions of third-party payroll related 
amounts (e.g., payroll taxes, retirement contributions, health insurance premiums, garnishments, 
workers' compensation premiums, etc.) have been paid, and any associated forms have been filed, by 
required deadhnes. 

No exceptions noted. 

J- Ethics 

20. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from procedure #16 under "Payroll and Personnel" 
above obtain ethics documentation from management, and: 

a) Observe whether the documentation demonstrates each employee/official completed one hour of 
ethics training during the fiscal period. 

No exceptions noted. 

b) Observe whether the entity maintains documentation which demonstrates each employee and 
official were notified of any changes to the entity's ethics policy during the fiscal period, as 
applicable. 

The entity did not have any changes to the ethics policy, so this step is not applicable. 
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K - Debt Service 

21. Obtain a listing of bonds/notes issued during the fiscal period and management's representation that 
the listing is complete. Select all bonds/notes on the listing, obtain supporting documentation, and 
observe State Bond Commission approval was obtained for each bond/note issued. 

No bonds issued during current period. This step is not applicable. 

22. Obtain a listing of bonds/notes outstanding at the end of the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select one bond/note, inspect debt covenants, 
obtain supporting documentation for the reserve balance and payments, and agree actual reserve 
balances and payments to those required by debt covenants (including contingency funds, short-lived 
asset funds, or other funds required by the debt covenants). 

A listing of bonds/notes outstanding at the end of the fiscal period was provided. No exceptions were 
noted as a result of performing this procedure. 

From the listing provided, we randomly selected 1 bond/note and performed the specified procedures. 
No exceptions noted. 

L - Fraud Notice 

23. Obtain a hsting of misappropriations of public funds and assets during the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Select all misappropriations on the listing, 
obtain supporting documentation, and observe that the entity reported the misappropriation(s) to the 
legislative auditor and the District Attorney of the Parish in which the entity is domiciled. 

This procedure is not applicable as there were no misappropriations ofpublic funds noted during the 
fiscal period. 

24. Observe that the entity has posted on its premises and website, the notice required by R.S. 24:523.1 
concerning the reporting of misappropriation, fraud, waste, or abuse of public funds. 

No exceptions noted. 

M - Information Technology Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity 

25. Perform the following procedures, (verbally discuss the results with management, and report "We 
performed the procedure and discussed the results with management.") 

a) Obtain and inspect the entity's most recent documentation that it has backed up its critical data 
(if no written documentation, inquire of personnel responsible for backing up critical data) and 
observe that such backup occurred within the past week. If backups are stored on a physical 
medium (e.g., tapes, CDs), observe evidence that backups are encrypted before being 
transported. 

We performed the procedure and discussed the results with management. 
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b) Obtain and inspect the entity's most recent docimientation that it has tested/verified that its 
backups can be restored (if no written documentation, inquire of personnel responsible for 
testing/verifying backup restoration) and observe evidence that the test/verification was 
successfully performed within the past 3 months. 

We performed the procedure and discussed the results with management. 

c) Obtain a listing of the entity's computers currently in use and their related locations, and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 computers and 
observe while management demonstrates that the selected computers have current and active 
antivirus software and that the operating system and accounting system software in use are 
currently supported by the vendor. 

We performed the procedure and discussed the results with management. 

N - Sexual Harassment 

26. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from procedure #16 under "Payroll and Personnel" 
above, obtain sexual harassment training documentation from management, and observe the 
documentation demonstrates each employee/official completed at least one hour of sexual harassment 
training during the calendar year. 

No exceptions noted. 

27. Observe the entity has posted its sexual harassment policy and complaint procedure on its website (or 
in a conspicuous location on the entity's premises if the entity does not have a website). 

The notice was not posted on the Entity's website or in a conspicuous location on the Entity's 
premises. 

28. Obtain the entity's annual sexual harassment report for the current fiscal period, observe that the report 
was dated on or before February 1, and observe it includes the apphcable requirements of R.S. 42:344: 

a) Number and percentage of public servants in the agency who have completed the training 
requirements; 

The Entity did not complete the annual sexual harassment report for the current fiscal 
period on or before February 1, 2022. 

b) Number of sexual harassment complaints received by the agency; 

The Entity did not complete the annual sexual harassment report for the current fiscal 
period on or before February 1, 2022. 
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c) Number of complaints which resulted in a finding that sexual harassment occurred; 

The Entity did not complete the annual sexual harassment report for the current fiscal 
period on or before February 1, 2022. 

d) Number of complaints in which the finding of sexual harassment resulted in discipline or 
corrective action; and 

The Entity did not complete the annual sexual harassment report for the current fiscal 
period on or before February 1, 2022. 

e) Amount of time it took to resolve each complaint. 

The Entity did not complete the annual sexual harassment report for the current fiscal 
period on or before February 1, 2022. 

Corrective Action 

27. Obtain management's response and corrective action plan for any exceptions noted in the above agreed-
upon procedures. 

Attached. 
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We were engaged by St. James Parish to perform this agreed-upon procedures engagement and conducted 
our engagement in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified 
Public Accountants and applicable standards of Government Auditing Standards. We were not engaged to 
and did not conduct an examination or review engagement, the objective of which would be the expression 
of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. Accordingly, we do 
not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might 
have come to oiu: attention that would have been reported to you. 

We are required to be independent of the Parish and to meet oiu: other ethical responsibilities, in accordance 
with the relevant ethical requirements related to our agreed-upon procedures engagement. 

This report is intended solely to describe the scope of testing performed on those C/C areas identified in the 
SAUPs, and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or compliance. Accordingly, 
this report is not suitable for any other purpose. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is 
distributed by the LLA as a pubhc document. 

Donaldsonville, LA 
June 27,2022 



St. James Parish Government 
P. O. Box 106 

Convent, Louisiana 70723-0106 
(225) 562-2260 

FAX (225)562-2279 
TDD: (225)562-8500 

Peter A. Dufresne 
Parish President 

June 27,2022 

Louisiana Legislative Auditor 
PO Box 94397 
Baton Rouge, LA 70804-9397 

RE: Correction Action Plan for Agreed Upon Procedures Exceptions - Year Ended 2021 

The following is St. James Parish Government's corrective actions taken and/or responses to the 
exceptions note in the agreed upon procedures report for the year ended 2021: 

A - Written Policies and Procedures 

e) Payroll/Personnel - Management will add the appropriate language to the employee 
handbook 
f) Contracting - Management will add the appropriate language to the parish purchasing policy 
i) Ethics - Management will add the appropriate language to the parish ethics policy. 
k) Information Technology Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity - Management has 
disaster recovery plan and will do a cost/benefit analysis of how to document it. 
I) Sexual Harassment - Management will add the appropriate language to the parish sexual 
harassment policy. 

D - Collections 

5. a) Employee in service scheduled for JulyS'*^ 2022 to address. 
b) Employee in service scheduled for July 5"^ 2022 to address. 

7. a) Employee in service scheduled for July 5"^ 2022 to address, 
d) Employee in service scheduled for July 5'^ 2022 to address. 

Richard Webre 
Director of 
Operations 

Felix Boughton 
Director of 

Finance 

Ingrid Bergeron-LeBlanc 
Director of 

Human Resources 

Eric Deroche 
Director of 

Emergency Preparedness 



£ - Non-payroll Disbursements 

9 c) A monthly report will be given to the Parish President of all changes made to vendor 
records. 

10 b) This was an isolated occurrence. 

1 - Payroll and Personnel 

16. This was an isolated occurrence. Management will ensure needed documentation gets added 
into the employee's file. 

17 d) This was an isolated occurrence. Management will ensure needed documentation gets 
added into the employee's file. 

N- Sexual Harassment 

27, Management will comply and post accordingly. 

28. Management will add appropriate language to the sexual harassment policy and comply with 
all reporting requirements. 

Sincerely, 

Richard Webre Felix Boughton Ingiid Bergeron-LeBlanc Eric Deroche 
Director of Director of Director of Director of 
Operations Finance Human Resources Emergency Preparedness 
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225-473-4179 Phone - 225-473-7204 Fax - pncpa. 

Postlethwaite & Netter.ille ^ Professional Accounting Corporation 

To the President and Members 
St. James Parish Council 
Convent, LA 

We have audited the general-purpose financial statements of the St. James Parish (the Parish) for the year ended 
December 31, 2021, and have issued our report thereon dated June 27, 2022. As part of our audit, we made a study 
and evaluation of internal accounting control to the extent we considered necessary to evaluate the system as 
required by auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Under these standards, the 
purposes of such evaluation are to estabhsh a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of 
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Parish's internal control. 

The objective of internal control is to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance as to the safeguarding of assets 
against loss from unauthorized use or disposition, and the reliability of the financial records for preparing financial 
statements and maintaining accountability for assets. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost 
of a system of internal accounting control should not exceed the benefits derived and also recognizes that the 
evaluation of these factors necessarily requires estimates and judgments by management. 

No matter how good a system, there are inherent limitations that should be recognized in considering the potential 
effectiveness of internal accounting. In the performance of most control procedures, errors can result from 
misunderstanding of instructions, mistakes of judgment, carelessness, or other personal factors. Control procediures 
whose effectiveness depends upon segregation of duties can be circumvented by collusion. Similarly, control 
procedures can be circumvented intentionally by management either with respect to the execution and recording of 
transactions or with respect to the estimates and judgments required in the preparation of financial statements. 
Further, projection of any evaluation of internal accounting control to future periods is subject to the risk that the 
degree of compliance with the procedures may deteriorate. We say this simply to suggest that any system needs to 
be constantly reviewed and improved where necessary. 

However, diuing the course of our audit, we became aware of several matters that are opportunities for strengthening 
internal controls or operating efficiency. Our comments and suggestions regarding those matters are set forth below. 
This letter does not affect our reports dated June 27, 2022, on the financial statements of the Parish or the Parish's 
internal control over financial reporting. 
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ML 21-001 

Condition: 

Recommendation: 

ML 21-002 

Condition: 

Recommendation: 

ML 21-003 

Criteria: 

Condition: 

Payroll Procedures 

The employee handbook, adopted by the Council, allows for the payroll processor to make 
adjustments to employees approved timesheets. There is no authorization of these 
adjustments by someone other than the payroll processor. 

The payroll processor should verify that all of the departmental authorizations for 
timesheets are in place prior to processing payroll. The payroll processor should not make 
unilateral decision about timesheets or adjustments to timesheets. Adjustments to 
employees' timesheets should be supported by documentation from the employee's 
supervisor. Additionally, the Parish should consider the system capabilities and the need 
for access changes. If so, the adjustments should be reviewed and approved by someone 
independent of the employee processing payroll. 

Utility Billing Software 

The Parish converted utility billing software systems subsequent to year end. There has 
been no reconciliation of the two systems. Additionally, there are old delinquent accounts 
on the legacy system which in some instances have been written off of the Parish's books. 

The Parish should perform a reconciliation of the new system at the date of conversion to 
the old system at that same date. At this time, an assessment of accounts that were 
previously written off should be performed. The Parish should also consider whether the 
legacy system history will be available with the new billing system such that customer 
history of delinquencies and charge offs can be used for decisions pertaining to renewing 
or opening customer accounts. The new billing software should be reconciled to the 
Parish's accounting system to ensure accurate conversion took place. 

Information Technology 

Information technology controls (or IT controls) are specific activities performed by 
individuals or systems designed to ensure that the governments objectives are met. The 
objective should be to preserve and foster confidentiahty, integrity, and availability of data 
and the overall management of the IT function. 

Recent disasters and the Corona Virus pandemic has not only had an impact on the total 
population in the parish but also has had a very real impact on the Parish's work force. Turn­
over is commonplace, replacements are hired, but likely will have less experience or will 
have a learning curve or staff duties shifted to other positions. Further, it's hkely that 3'^'^ 
parties and vendors that provide services and products related to the IT function experience 
a similar effect on their workforce as well. The IT department appears to be imderstaffed. 
Additionally, we observed a lack of documented risk assessments in a changing environment 
for the following IT related areas: 

1) Entity and user controls pertaining to 3'^'^ party service organizations such as MIP 
(accounting software), Netchex (payroll), and UDS (Utility billing software UBSbilling) 

2) System seciu:ity and general controls 
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ML 21-003 Information Technology (continued) 

3) Disaster Recovery Plan (DRP) 
4) Training 
5) Security over user accounts for managing back up job schedules 
6) User access for key financial applications 
7) Procedures pertaining to access privileges when employees are terminated or job duties 

shift 
8) Active Directory domain admin account for a 3"^ party that are no longer necessary and 

should be removed 
9) Password settings and configurating to lockout the user after a set number of failed 

attempts 
10) Segregation of incompatible duties 

Recommendations: On an annual basis, or more frequently as there is a change in operations or the environment, 
the Parish should assess the risks associated with certain IT and IT related functions and 
evaluate the Parish's policies and procedures to determine if the controls and/or mitigating 
controls are commensurate with the associated risks. 

This information is intended solely for the use of the Council Members and management of the Parish and should 
not be used for any other purpose. 

Donaldsonville, Louisiana 
June 27,2022 



St. James Parish Government 
P. O. Box 106 

Convent, Louisiana 70723-0106 
(225) 562-2260 

FAX (225) 562-2279 
TDD: (225)562-8500 

Peter A. Dufresne 
Parish President 

June 27, 2022 

Postiethewaite & Netterville 
215 Saint Patrick St 
Donaldsonville, LA 70346 

RE: Correction Management Letter Comments - Year Ended 2021 

The following is St. James Parish Government's corrective actions taken and/or responses to the 
Management Letter Comments for the year ended 2021: 

ML 21-001 Payroll Procedures 

The new payroll procedures, started in 2021, require approval of any change from the Human 
Resource Supervisor, the employee's Supervisor and/or the Director of Finance. 

ML 21-002 Utility Billing Software 

The finance department will assign a finance department employee to assist the utility 
department. Management will evaluate the assessment of accounts and reconciliation of the new 
billing system. 

ML 21-003 Information Technology 

Management acknowledges that there is a certain amount of risk with the current IT structure. 
The IT system, and the responsibility for the system, is shared with the assessor, clerk of court, 
sheriff, and other government agencies. Management will meet these agencies to assess and 
develop policies to address the areas of concern, especially disaster recovery. 

Richard Webre 
Director of 
Operations 

Felix Boughton 
Director of 

Finance 

Ingrid Bergeron-LeBlanc 
Director of 

Human Resources 

Eric Deroche 
Director of 

Emergency Preparedness 



IT does have current control procedures that monitor cyber risk which includes assistance from 
Emergency Support Function 17 (ESP 17). ESP 17, administered by the Governor's Office of 
Homeland Security and Emergency Preparedness, has a cyber security strike team that guides 
management through cyber security. 

Management is understaffed in the IT department and has made several attempts to hire qualified 
personnel. Budget constraints and the ability to pay qualified applicants hinder this process. This 
is an ongoing effort and will continue until IT is staffed appropriately. 

Sincerely, 

^e\ix K: 
Director o 

Richard Webre Felix Boughton Ingrid Bergeron^LcBlanc Eric Deroche 
Director of Director of Director of Director of 
Operations Finance Human Resources Emergency Preparedness 


